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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES

AEERNREERH
As at 1 January 2023
Registered Office

Clarendon House
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Hong Kong
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Hamilton HM 11
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Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Tricor Secretaries Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre
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Hong Kong

Principal Bankers
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Annual Results Announcement

2023 Annual General Meeting (2023 AGM)
— Latest time to lodge transfers

20 December 2022
28 February 2023
22 February 2023
(before 4:30 p.m))

Corporate Communications

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company (“Shareholder(s)”)
either in printed form or on the websites of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (https://www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company. In order to protect the environment, the Company
highly recommends the Shareholders to receive electronic copy of
this Annual Report. Shareholders may have the right to change their
choice of receipt of our future Corporate Communications at any
time by reasonable notice in writing to the Company’s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, by post or by
email at is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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RESULTS SUMMARY
XEME

The board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of
Emperor Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) announces the
audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) for the year ended 30
September 2022 (the “Year”).

HKS'000

EERESEEEERABD(ERTNZES
g(EZg 0 EF) EREAREANEWE
NE)(HEBAIAREE)) B E202249830
BEEFE(XREFE )2 RKBRIEGEE -

For the year ended
30 September

# ZoH30HILLEE

2022

512,824 676,812
418,503 548,448
76,358 99,349
6,823 16,280
11,140 12,735

590,095 939,302

299,234 576,094

Total revenue TN
Financing B
Brokerage Services KA AR 75
Placing & Underwriting FoE BB 3H
Corporate Finance EEME
Impairment allowances' B E
Net loss 18
Basic loss per share (HK cents) SREAREBEBEGEWL)

4.44 8.55

! Represents the net impairment allowances for margin loans, and other
loans and advances
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEw R A

Results

Against a vulnerable global macro economy backdrop, the Group’s
revenue decreased to HKS$512.8 million (2021: HK$676.8 million)
during the Year. Impairment allowances for margin loans, and other
loans and advances (the “Impairment”) decreased to HK$590.1
million (2021: HKS$939.3 million), therefore the loss for the Year
attributable to owners of the Company narrowed to HK$299.2
million (2021: HKS576.1 million). Basic loss per share was HK4.44
cents (2021: HK8.55 cents).

Market Review

The global political and economic issues including geopolitical
tensions, supply chain disruptions, inflationary pressures and
tightened monetary policies have led to a gloomy macroeconomic
environment and weak market sentiment. These factors have
added considerable pressure to the financial markets. Based on
figures provided by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited,
the average daily turnover in Hong Kong securities market in the
first half of 2022 decreased by 26.5% year-on-year. The number of
corporate exercises, including initial public offerings, also decreased
significantly. Amid the volatile market conditions, the Hang Seng
Index plunged from the closing price of 24,576 on 30 September
2027 to 17,223 on 30 September 2022, representing a drop of
29.9%. In addition, the money lending market has been challenging
as creditors have generally tightened loan approval requirements,
and valuations of collaterals tended to be adjusted downwards given
the weak property market.

Business Review

Established in 1993, the Group is a renowned Hong Kong based
financial institution providing a wide range of financial services
including (i) commercial and personal lending as well as margin and
initial public offering (“IPQ”) financing; (ii) brokerage services, wealth
management and asset management; (iii) placing and underwriting
services for listed issuers; and (iv) corporate finance advisory
services. The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in April 2007.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEw R

Financing

The Group's financing segment derives interest income from
commercial and personal lending as well as margin and IPO
financing. The loans granted to customers range from short-term
unsecured loans (e.g. tax loan, bridging loan, term loan and personal
loan) to long-term secured loans (e.g. property mortgage). Built on
a renowned reputation for delivering professional and personalised
loan services, the Group has developed a niche in the loan market,
providing corporate and retail clients with tailored liquidity solutions
to meet their corporate goals and personal needs.

In view of the economic instability, the Group continued to adhere
to its cautious approach to strengthening the overall credit risk
management and control mechanism, in order to minimise default
risks. The Group also adjusted the interest rate and loan-to-value
ratio on a timely basis, according to the market situation. During the
Year, the segment’s revenue was HKS418.5 million (2021: HKS548.4
million), accounting for 81.6% (2021: 81.0%) of the Group’s total
revenue.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EE2F 5 E B ER A G
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEw R A

Brokerage Services

The Group currently provides brokerage services for securities,
futures and options traded on exchanges in Hong Kong, mainland
China (via Shanghai and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect
schemes respectively) and major overseas countries, as well as
wealth management and asset management services. The Group
offers web-based and mobile trading platforms which enable
real-time transaction and investment portfolio monitoring. As at
30 September 2022, the Group operated 2 branches in Hong
Kong and 3 liaison offices in mainland China, which are located
in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou respectively. The Group's
wealth management division provides advice regarding a wide
array of investment services, including securities, mutual funds,
insurance-linked products, and real estate investment. In its asset
management arm, apart from running private equity fund, the Group
also provides customised discretionary investment services to its
customers.

During the Year, the stock market was volatile against a fragile
macroeconomic backdrop. Revenue from brokerage services was
HKS$76.4 million (2021: HK$99.3 million), accounting for 14.9% (2021:
14.7%) of the Group's total revenue.

Emperor Capital Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Placing and Underwriting

With a highly experienced team of professionals, the Group offers
placing and underwriting services to Hong Kong listed companies.
The Group serves as placing agents in equity and debt placing
deals and IPO-related transactions. The Group also participates in
underwriting rights issue exercises.

During the Year, the Group participated in several primary and
secondary market financing projects. Revenue from the placing and
underwriting segment was HKS$6.8 million (2021: HKS$16.3 million),
accounting for 1.3% (2021: 2.4%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Corporate Finance

The division holds a full corporate finance advisory licence under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, allowing it to advise on
Takeovers Code related transactions and undertake sponsor work
for IPOs in addition to general corporate finance advisory services.
Apart from IPO-related services, the Group offers advisory services
for corporate transactions including placing, rights issue, corporate
restructuring and merger and acquisition.

During the Year, the Group handled several corporate transactions
and IPO projects. Revenue from the corporate finance segment was
HKS11.1 million (2021: HKS12.7 million), accounting for 2.2% (2021:
1.9%) of the Group's total revenue.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EE2F 5 E B ER A G
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEw R A

Outlook

In the near term, it is anticipated that the global economy will still
be clouded by a number of unfavourable factors. Fears of continued
interest rate hikes, economy recession in the United States, etc, add
to the uncertainties for the market outlook. On the other hand, with
Hong Kong being an international financial hub and its strategic
role in the Greater Bay Area connecting China and the world, it is
envisaged that the soon-to-be reopened border will be a catalyst
for Hong Kong's capital market.

With an aim of strengthening the Group’s competitiveness and gain
market share when the market revives, it has further upgraded its
digital platform such as through enhancing the automation features,
and enriching the services and functions available. The Group also
strives to enhance its product offerings spanning fixed income,
funds to insurance products, in order to provide more options for
its customers. Regarding its wealth management business, the
Group endeavours to expand its customer base by sourcing more
high net worth customers.

With both opportunities and challenges ahead, the Group will adopt
a prudent approach in the course of its business development,
while exercising stringent control over operating costs and adopting
appropriate strategies to mitigate downside risks, in order to
maintain steady businesses development amid the difficult business
operating environment.

Emperor Capital Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Financial Information

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources
The Group financed its operations by cash mainly generated from
operations and borrowings. As at 30 September 2022, the Group's
current assets and current liabilities were HK$4,984.9 million (2021:
HKS6,106.3 million) and HKS$2,134.5 million (2021: HKS$2,942.3
million) respectively. As at 30 September 2022, aggregate of bank
balances, cash and pledged bank deposits of the Group amounted
to HKS$1,020.8 million (2021: HKS1,024.1 million), which were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

As at 30 September 2022, the Group had bank borrowings of
HKS$430.0 million (2021: HK$370.0 million). As the Group repaid all
of its Hong Kong dollar bonds by deploying internal resources during
the Year, the total borrowings of the Group decreased to HKS$430.0
million (2021: HKS869.1 million), hence the gearing ratio reduced to
12.1% (2021: 22.6%; calculated as a percentage of total borrowings
over total equity of the Group). The Group did not have any material
foreign exchange exposure as at 30 September 2022.

With the Group’s sufficient bank balances and cash, as well as its
available unutilised banking facilities of HK$2,049.0 million (2021:
HKS2,301.2 million), the Board considers the Group has sufficient
working capital for its operation and future development.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EE2F 5 E B ER A G
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERER RN

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 September 2022, bank deposit of the Group with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$160.0 million (2021: HK$160.0 million) was
pledged to a bank as security for banking facilities.

Impairment Allowances

An Impairment of HK$590.1 million (2021: HKS939.3 million) was
recognised this Year. The Impairment was made in respect of
certain margin clients and borrowers in commercial, mortgage and
personal loans. Details of the reasons for the recognition of majority
of the Impairment are set out below:

1.

Net provision for impairment of accounts receivable
arising from margin financing amounted to approximately
HK$269.8 million

a.

During the Year, advances to eight customers in
margin financing with the total gross carrying amount
of approximately HKS1,139.7 million were assessed as
credit-impaired stage mainly due to further decline in
the market price of listed securities pledged as collateral
in the Year and failure of the margin borrowers to fully
make up the margin shortfall by providing additional
collaterals or repayment. The impairment provision of
these eight exposures for the Year was determined
by assessing the future cash flows expected to be
recoverable from the borrowers and the listed securities
pledged as collateral for each of the margin borrowers
on an individual assessment basis. Impairment provision
with a total amount of approximately HKS383.2 million
was made for the Year for these eight exposures.

During the Year, an impairment reversal of approximately
HKS81.0 million was made on advances to three
customers in margin financing with the total gross
carrying amount of approximately HK$239.0 million,
which were assessed as credit-impaired stage, due to
resumption of trading of the listed securities pledged as
collateral in the Year.

During the Year, an impairment reversal of approximately
HKS41.8 million was made on advances to five
customers in margin financing with total gross amount
of approximately HK$268.9 million, which were classified
as credit-impaired stage, due to an increase in fair value
of listed security pledged as collateral and settlement
received of repayment and/or enforcement of collateral
in the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE RN

2. Net provision for impairment of loans and advances 2.

12

amounted to approximately HK$318.1 million

BEmRBUZHEEREFEYS

318,100,000# 57

a. During the Year, additional impairment allowance of a. MEAFE BERRELE—FER
approximately HKS$293.7 million was recognised for FEREBEEERERERZ
twenty-four loans and advances, which were assessed IRE48{E%91,014,000,00058 7089
as credit-impaired stage in previous year, with gross T+ HIEER KB R EE N
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,014.0 million, BB B & £9293,700,00078 7T »
as a result of further decrease in fair value of pledged JsHREERLELMESNEER
listed securities, pledged properties and deterioration of HYEN RN FEE-—DTE
financial capability of these borrowers. URZEERANTBENDR

1t o

b.  During the Year, loans and advances to nine borrowers b REXFERERE&HEY
with the total gross carrying amount of approximately 130,000,000 st I @ L B B
HK$130.0 million were assessed as credit-impaired ANERNBHRWETFEAEELER
stage mainly due to failure of these borrowers to repay EREMRE FEZHRZERE
the interest and the principal on time in the Year. The MAXRENEAFERNRZEEE
impairment provision of these nine exposures for the FMEREE - ZNLERRKA
Year was determined by assessing the future cash FEZBRERBENEANTGRE
flow expected to be recoverable from the borrowers HR AT fE R AU B R SR IR & 0
by estimating the cash flows expected to be collected EET HNBEBMGETERE
including an assessment of cash flows expected to AJWEINREERE  BIELE
be recovered taking account of the current conditions B EERANRITRRRE @
affecting the borrower, past collection history, and W R 0 U RZ BRI MR
consideration of forward looking factors. Impairment RLU T TERR G AT W B RV IR &
provision with a total amount of approximately HK$67.1 ME  AFEEMZNLEBEAR
million was made for the Year for these nine exposures. 5H42 BB # 5 £ 467,100,000

B IT ©
c.  During the Year, an impairment reversal of approximately c. MAEAFE>EEEAERALR

HKS44.2 million was made to four borrowers in loans
and advances with total gross amount of approximately
HKS$76.3 million, which were classified as credit-impaired
stage, due to settlement received in the Year.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EE2F 5 E B ER A G
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEw R A

Follow-up and debt collection actions on overdue
and defaulted loans

The Group has debt recovery procedures in place. For any loans
with shortfall and/or overdue payments, demand letters and legal
letters will be issued. If the borrower does not respond, the Group
will engage external legal advisors for legal actions. At the same
time, the Group will contact the borrower for additional collateral
and/or settlement plan. The Group may also engage debt collection
agents for such loan where appropriate. If the negotiation is not
successful, or additional collateral is not sufficient or default in
settlement plan, external legal advisers will issue final warning to
the borrower. Subsequently, writs of summon will be served to the
borrower to take proceedings to court.

Debt recovery actions had been taken on the credit-impaired loans.
Some legal proceedings on such credit-impaired loans were still in
progress.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 30 September 2022, the Group had 76 (2021: 75) account
executives and 131 (2021: 130) employees. Total staff costs (including
directors’ remuneration) were approximately HKS72.9 million (2021
HKS779 million). Each employee’s remuneration was determined
in accordance with individual's responsibilities, competence and
skills, experience and performance as well as market pay levels.
Staff benefits include medical and life insurance, provident funds
and other competitive fringe benefits. The Company has adopted
a share option scheme to provide incentives or rewards to the
staff, particulars of which are set out in the section headed “Share
Options” in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Final Dividend

The Board did not recommend any payment of final dividend for
the year ended 30 September 2022 (2021: Nil).
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DAISY YEUNG

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
AND CHAIRPERSON

B
HITESRER

Daisy Yeung, aged 57, joined the Group in January 1996. She
is the Chairperson and Managing Director of the Board as well
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Ms. Yeung is the
Chairperson of the Executive Committee as well as a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. She is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company, including Emperor Securities
Limited, Emperor Futures Limited, Emperor Wealth Management
Limited and Emperor Asset Management Limited, all of which
she is also a responsible officer under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"). Moreover, she is now the Permanent Honorary
President and Vice-Chairman of The Institute of Securities Dealers
Limited, a General Committee member of The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies, a member of Advisory Committee of the
Accounting and Financial Reporting Council and a member of
Market Development Committee of Financial Services Development
Council. She has accumulated over 26 years of management
experience in financial industry and has been active in driving the
development of the local securities industry. Ms. Yeung holds a
Bachelor’s Degree of Science in Business Administration.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFNESHREEEBZEE

Executive Directors

Wong Chi Fai, aged 66, joined the Group in December 2022. He
is an Executive Director of the Company and a member of the
Executive Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company as well as a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
Wong has over 30 years of finance and management experience in
different businesses ranging from financial and securities services,
property investment and development, hotel and hospitality, retailing
of watch and jewellery, wholesaling and retailing of furniture,
cinema development and operation to entertainment production and
investment, artiste management as well as media and publication.
He is currently a director of Emperor International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 163) (“Emperor International”), Emperor Entertainment
Hotel Limited (Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor E Hotel”), Emperor
Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock Code: 887) (“Emperor W&J"),
Emperor Culture Group Limited (Stock Code: 491) ("Emperor
Culture”) and Ulferts International Limited (Stock Code: 1711)
("Ulferts”), all being listed members of Emperor Group. Mr. Wong is
a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Former Name: Fan Man Seung), aged
59, joined the Group in December 2022. She is an Executive
Director of the Company, a member of the Executive Committee
and the chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee (since
1 January 2023) of the Company as well as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Fan is currently a responsible
officer of Emperor Capital Limited and Emperor Futures Limited,
both being subsidiaries of the Company under the SFO. She has
over 33 years of corporate management experience in diversified
businesses ranging from financial and securities services, property
investment and development, hotel and hospitality, retailing of
watch and jewellery, wholesaling and retailing of furniture, cinema
development and operation to entertainment production and
investment, artiste management as well as media and publication.
Ms. Fan is currently a director of Emperor International, Emperor E
Hotel, Emperor W&J, Emperor Culture and Ulferts. She is a lawyer
by profession in Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and holds
a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration.
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Executive Director and Company Secretary

Choi Suk Hing, Louisa, aged 58, joined the Board for the period
from March 2008 to December 2022. During the Year, she was an
Executive Director and the Company Secretary of the Company, the
Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee and a member
of the Executive Committee of the Company as well as a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. She was also a responsible
officer of Emperor Capital Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
under the SFO. Ms. Choi has over 24 years of experience in the
finance industry covering securities, futures and corporate finance.
Before that, she had worked in the company secretary profession
in both listed companies as well as professional firms for over 8
years. Ms. Choi holds a Master’'s Degree in Applied Finance from
Macquarie University, Australia. She is a fellow member of both
The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom and The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Wong Tak Ming, Gary, aged 47, joined the Board in February 2022.
He is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. He now runs a professional accountancy firm in Hong
Kong and has over 20 years of experience in the field of auditing and
accounting. Mr. Wong was previously an independent non-executive
director of a Hong Kong listed company, Emperor International until
18 August 2022. He is a certified public accountant (practising), a
fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Poon Yan Wai, aged 52, joined the Board in January 2014. He
is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Mr. Poon is now the financial controller,
company secretary and an authorised representative of a Hong
Kong listed company. He is also an independent non-executive
director of two Hong Kong listed companies, namely Dragon Mining
Limited (Stock Code: 1712) and Emperor International. He has over
20 years of experience in the auditing and accounting field. Mr. Poon
holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Accountancy and a Master’'s Degree
in Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Wan Choi Ha, aged 55, joined the Board in July 2015. She is the
Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well as a member of
the Audit Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee of
the Company. Ms. Wan has been admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong since 1993 and is now a Senior Partner of Wan and Leung,
Solicitors. Ms. Wan graduated from The University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EXEGHRS

The Board presents this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the provision of financial services, including
(i) commercial and personal lending as well as margin and IPO
financing; (ii) brokerage services, wealth management and asset
management; (i) placing and underwriting services for listed
issuers; and (iv) corporate finance advisory services.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 69 of this report.

No interim dividend (2021: Nil) was paid during the Year and the
Board did not recommend any payment of a final dividend for the
Year (2027: Nil).

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis of
the Group's performance during the Year and an analysis of the
likely future development of the Group’s business are set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5 to 13 of this
report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from pages
34 to 60 of this report and notes 38 and 40 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that had occurred
since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’'s environmental policies and
performance, key relationships with the Company’s key stakeholders
as well as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
significant impact on the Company are set out in the 2021/2022
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.
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Reserves and Distributable Reserves of the
Company

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 72.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 30 September 2022 represented the aggregate of
contributed surplus (stated as “special reserve” in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statement) and accumulated loss amounting
to approximately HKS$101.9 million (2021 HKS101.9 million) and
HKS460.9 million (2021: HKS442.1 million) respectively.

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the subsidiaries
of the Company in issue and the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company for acquisition of a subsidiary pursuant to the
group reorganisation on 2 April 2007.

Under the Companies Act in 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to
the Shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or pay a
dividend or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i)  the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 180 of this annual
report.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company'’s
Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

Property and Equipment
During the Year, the Group acquired property and equipment at a
cost of approximately HKS7.7 million.

Details of changes in the property and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debentures
Details of the debentures of the Company in the form of unsecured
bonds are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 15% (2021: 18%)
of the Group's total turnover. The largest customer accounted for
5% (2021: 4%) of the Group’s total turnover.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers.

The Group had no major supplier due to the nature of principal
activities of the Group.
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Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Daisy Yeung (Chairperson)

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (appointed on 1 December 2022)

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (appointed on 1 December 2022)
Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa (to retire on 31 December 2022)
Ms. Pearl Chan (resigned on 30 September 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Poon Yan Wai

Ms. Wan Choi Ha

Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary (elected on 25 February 2022)
Mr. Chu Kar Wing (retired on 25 February 2022)

Biographical details of the current Directors and senior management
as at the date of this report are set out from pages 14 to 16 of this
annual report. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Ms. Daisy Yeung and Mr. Poon Yan Wai shall retire by rotation
at the 2023 AGM. Ms. Daisy Yeung, being eligible, shall offer herself
for re-election while Mr. Poon Yan Wai, who served as independent
non-executive director of the Company (“INED”) for 9 years, does
not offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-laws 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa, who were both
appointed as Directors on 1 December 2022 to fill causal vacancies
on the Board, shall hold office from their appointment date until the
first general meeting of the Company after their appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Both of them
shall offer themselves for re-election at the 2023 AGM.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the 2023
AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group's business were entered into or existed during
the Year.
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Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which
are provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors
and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect
of potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings
that may be brought against the Directors and the directors of the
Group respectively.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Securities

As at 30 September 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HKS0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”,

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interests

ESHA

B HEEE

Ms. Daisy Yeung
ZEAE R

discretionary trust

ARBEEZEERZT@A

Beneficial owner

BEm#EREA

Beneficial owner

Bm#EAA

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa
EONE 4+
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Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Capital Group Holdings Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Capital Holdings Limited (“AY
Capital Holdings"). AY Capital Holdings was in turn held by CDM Trust &
Board Services AG ("CDM Trust”) in trust for a private discretionary trust
of which Ms. Daisy Yeung is one of the eligible beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2022, none of the
Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Share Options

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) on 26 January 2017. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme
are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. No
option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
Other than the Share Option Scheme as stated above, at the end
of the Year and at no time during the Year was the Company, any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives of
the Company or their spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 30 September 2022, the following persons or
corporations (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO (“DI
Register”) were as follows:

Emperor Capital Group Limited EE2F 5 E B AR AT
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Long position in the Shares BERHMZEE
Number of
Shares % of issued
Name Capacity/Nature of Interests Interested Voting Shares
HEREEN HEET
wa A S H=EtE RIPHE BREERGS
AY Capital Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation 2,879,521,438 42.72%
%% Bl 58 5 1E IR REEMEEZ#E D (Note)
(K7 5%)
CDM Trust Trustee of a private discretionary trust 2,879,521,438 42.72%
WABBEFEZZEA (Note)
(K7 5E)
Dr. Yeung Sau Shing Albert Founder of a private discretionary trust 2,879,521,438 42.72%
("Dr. Albert Yeung”) WARIBEFEZAIILA (Note)
mEREL ((HBEL) (K7 5E)
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 2,879,521,438 42.72%
ENEut (R v (Note)
(K7 5E)
China Huarong Asset Interest in a controlled corporation 551,522,000 8.18%
Management Co., Ltd. REEGEEZ#E =
HEEMREESERD
BIRAE
EMEGCEESTERMBER  Interest in a controlled corporation 551,522,000 8.18%
NS REEMEEZ#E D
Taiping Assets Management Investment Manager 612,900,000 9.09%
(HK) Company Limited KEEEA

AFPEEEER(FEB) BERAHF

Taiping Trustees Limited Trustee 612,900,000 9.09%
KFEEEBRERF ZEEA
Emperor Capital Group Limited E 2E 5 EBHR AT 23
2021/2022 ANNUAL REPORT £ #R



24

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EREGHRS

Note: These Shares were the same Shares of which Ms. Daisy Yeung had
deemed interest as set out under the section of “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in Securities” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2022, the Directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any person
or corporation (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have, any interests
or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares as recorded
in DI Register.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 30 September 2022, none of the Directors or their respective
associates was interested in any business which was considered to
compete or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements, Contracts and Connected
Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company
and certain Directors had material interests, directly or indirectly, in
such transactions:

1. 2020 Master Leasing Agreement (“2020 MLA”)

Date: 3 December 2020
Parties: (1)  The Company
(2) Emperor International Holdings
Limited (“Emperor International”)
Term: From 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024

Emperor Capital Group Limited R 2EFHE B EGRAE
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2020 MLA sets out the framework of
the terms governing all existing and
future tenancy/licensing transaction(s)
( " Tenancy Transaction(s) " ) regarding
leasing of certain office properties or other
properties (including signage or signboard
space) from Emperor International and
its subsidiaries (“Emperor International
Group”) with aggregate tenancy annual

2020F BB E W =& # 5
REBRZEE L HEKE
NE(TRE2EFER)) A
EETHMREYERNHEM
Y% (BiEE S E B E)
ZFERBNKRKREE
BREXZ(HERS1) B
HEZRIRAR » WA ZE 2027
FOR30HLLEARER ~ &

caps being set for the six months ended F20224F X2023%9830
30 September 2021, the financial years BIEMBEFEUAREE
ended/ending 30 September 2022 and 2024538318 L 7X@ B

2023, and the six months ending 31
March 2024 (“Aggregate Annual Caps”).

Pursuant to the 2020 MLA, relevant
members of the Group and the relevant
members of Emperor International Group
may from time to time enter into any
definitive leasing agreements in relation
to any Tenancy Transactions (“Definitive
Leasing Agreement(s)”). The terms of
each Definitive Leasing Agreement shall
be on normal commercial terms or on
terms which are no less favorable to the
Group than terms offered by independent
third parties. The terms and rental shall
be subject to arm’s length negotiation
and be determined based on the condition
of the properties and with reference
to the then prevailing market rents on
property(ies) comparable in location, area
and permitted use.

deemed substantial shareholder of the
Company, it is a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Ms. Daisy Yeung, a Director,
has deemed interest in the transactions
by virtue of being one of the eligible

DRI BEEFE LR
(TMBERE LR -

RIFE2020F BEEWZ >
AEEMEBNEQEHEE
SHFREEBRIE QT
B RE s ERIAE R 5]
TEMERBERSE(E
XBEEWZ) - KIEXE
Bz GREL—RB
RIERUL BB ILSE
=T AER RG]
7 o R RIEE EERT
EEWE > LEREZE
MERR N2 EBBRE
UE s BRNMFEIRRZ
MEERTIHEHEHEZETE °

Connected As Emperor International is indirectly FEMRER HNEEEEABEL
Relationship controlled by a private discretionary trust NEE EERGEAREIRNBDEER
and Directors’  set up by Dr. Albert Yeung who is the i BRIRIZLZHAABBET

B ES]  RE EHRA
BUAE > HRARTZ
BEAL - EEHRF
IR/ LEHMEXTZEER
RmAZ— 2 BEREBN
ZEXSTHEE R °

beneficiaries of the aforesaid trust.
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Announcement: 3 December 2020 nE 2020412834
Aggregate No aggregate amount was recorded as g FH 7S s EE FE I S AT fa] B2 31
Amount: there was no Tenancy Transaction with EEEEECZHER S H
Emperor International Group during the IR B e R AREE
Year.
Aggregate Right-of-use = HK$5,000,000 REE4 A - 500000048 7T
annual cap Rental Expense — HKS$5,000,000 FE fA&FZ - 50000008 7T
for the Year: IR

2. Financial Services Agreement with the Listed Members of 2. HBEES£BE FFLGRETLZE

Emperor Group (“Emperor Group FSA”) AR 7 1 2% (138 £ 5 B £ 7 IR 7% 17
1)
Date: 22 June 2021 HER: 2021 6H22H
Parties: (1)  The Company KB () ARE
(2) Emperor International, Emperor (2 HEFEKE EZER
Entertainment Hotel Limited, Emperor BREBRRNE
Watch & Jewellery Limited, Emperor HEBHFHREBR
Culture Group Limited and Ulferts nE N BEXTE
International Limited (collectively (XEEERRE M
“Listed Members of Emperor Group”) Bt BB ER QS
(BITEE2E£E L
[IEPNCIIZ3=H))
26 Emperor Capital Group Limited E 25 5 £ B AR AT
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Term:

Nature:

Connected
Relationship
and Directors’
Interests:

Announcement:
Circular:

Independent
Shareholders’
approval:

From 1 October 2021 to 30 September
2024 (on normal commercial terms
with reference to the market price no
less favourable to the Group than those
available to independent third parties)

Under the Emperor Group FSA, the
Group has agreed to provide to Listed
Members of Emperor Group (i) brokerage
services for securities, futures and options
trading; (i) wealth management and
asset management services; (iii) placing
and underwriting services; (iv) financing
services including margin loans, IPO loans
and terms loans; and (v) financial advisory
services.

Ms. Daisy Yeung has deemed interest in
this agreement by virtue of being one of
the eligible beneficiaries of the respective
private discretionary trusts controlling
Listed Members of Emperor Group.

22 June 2021

31 August 2021

27 September 2021

Emperor Capital Group Limited
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Amount
Aggregate Amount: Nature of transaction for the Year
R EIN XHHE TEEZEEH

HKS'000
TETT

(@) Commission, brokerage and fees and interest income from
the Listed Members of Emperor Group
MEEEE FHABNERNZME - KLERERAU
RF B A 7

(b)  Maximum margin loan amount to the Listed Members of
Emperor Group*
MEZEE T ABENBRHEZAEENR RS > -

() Maximum IPO loan amount to the Listed Members of
Emperor Group*
MEEEE T AARBEREZERAHAEEERES
T RE* _

(d) Maximum term loan amount to the Listed Members of
Emperor Group*

MREEE LT ARNERHZEHNENRSEE -

(e) Financial advisory fee from the Listed Members of Emperor
Group
MESEE EHABIRBRINZ E/MEHAE 2,700

* The maximum amount granted during the Year

REFERENRSEEE

e o A

28 Emperor Capital Group Limited EE2F 5 E B AR AT
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3. Financial Services Agreement with Ms. Daisy Yeung for the
Yeung Family (“Yeung FSA”)

Date:

Parties:

Term:

Nature:

Connected
Relationship
and Directors’
Interests:

Announcement:

Circular:

Independent
Shareholders’
approval:

22 June 2021

(1) The Company
(2) Ms. Daisy Yeung

From 1 October 2021 to 30 September
2024 (on normal commercial terms
with reference to the market price no
less favourable to the Group than those
available to independent third parties)

Under the Yeung FSA, the Group has
agreed to provide to members of the
Yeung Family (i.e. Ms. Daisy Yeung and
her associates but excluding the Listed
Members of Emperor Group) (i) brokerage
services for securities, futures and
options trading; (ii) wealth management
and asset management services; (iii)
financing services including margin
loans, IPO loans and term loans; and (iv)
financial advisory services. The Group
has also agreed to pay commission and
fee to the Yeung Family, including (1) the
commission and fee for their acting as
placees or underwriters for the securities
of the Company or for the securities
underwritten or placed by the Group; and
(2) referral fee for introducing clients to the
Group relating to the Group’s business.

Ms. Daisy Yeung has deemed interest in
this agreement by virtue of being one of
the members of the Yeung Family.

22 June 2021

31 August 2021

27 September 2021

3. HERFRIMBREXEITLZE
AR 5 155 5 (1145 R /b AR 75 15 45 1)

BER: 2021F6822H

8B () AAF
@ #BHRHTt

FH: H202141081HE E2024
FIH30H (R —MEEK
E/UNEL S i SN b
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A EE R R M5 KRR
5 (BN 5 30 55 ¢ £ M H Bt
BALT > BAEERE
B LEHREKE)EH#®(3)
mr HENHARES
B RS; (WMEEER
EEEERSE, (HRE
% BREAFERER B
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5 M (V) R EE S ARTS ©
A EBENFE R M5 KR kK
HBERER > 81(0)
MEEERABIEFT R
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MERER; RQMASD
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NBEATMEN 2B A
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REE Br— HERAKEE
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Amount
Aggregate Amount: Nature of transaction for the Year
R EIN XHHE TEEZEEH

HKS'000
TETT

(@) Commission, brokerage, fees and interest income from the
Yeung Family
MEERGERINZMAE - K4E& - ERARFEBRA 4,482

(b)  Maximum margin loan amount to the Yeung Family*
MERRGERHEZARERERS TR 58,660

(c) Maximum IPO loan amount to the Yeung Family*
MEERRGREZEXAAHEEERTRSTES -

(d) Maximum term loan amount to the Yeung Family*
AEERGREZCHERRS B -

(e) Financial advisory fee from the Yeung Family

M5 KRR EWER Z & B8 & 1,150

(f)  Commission and fee to the Yeung Family for their services
being provided to the Group
BEREAXNEBRENMEERB 2EESLE B -

* The maximum amount granted during the Year
RAEERENEEEE
Remark: The above aggregate amounts did not exceed the annual caps s LEBRREBAARLENIN20214F
as announced by the Company on 22 June 2021. 6B22HEMZFE LR
30 Emperor Capital Group Limited EE2F 5 E B AR AT
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Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Regarding the related party transaction as set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements, the transactions as shown
in items (i), (iii), (vii) and (viii) are non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (“Disclosed CCTs") and that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. All other transactions as shown in the said note are
connected transactions exempted from all disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Auditor’s Letter on Disclosed CCTs

The Group's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s Disclosed
CCTs in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) "Auditor's Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” (“Auditor’s Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the Disclosed CCTs of the Group as
set out from pages 24 to 30 of this Annual Report in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s Letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive
Directors on Disclosed CCTs

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs have
reviewed the Disclosed CCTs and the Auditor's Letter and have
confirmed that these transactions have been entered into by the
Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other transaction, arrangement
or contract which was significant in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/
her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.
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Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard
to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link of
business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current market best practice). Remuneration should be
paid with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives,
the salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Executive and Non-executive Directors,
internal equity of employment conditions across the Group and
applicability of performance based remuneration. The Directors’
fees are paid fees in line with market practice. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration package
includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’ fees,
contribution to pension schemes, discretionary bonus relating to
financial performance of the Group and individual performance, ad
hoc rewards, share options and other competitive fringe benefits
such as medical and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of
the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are
set out in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

Donations
During the Year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to HK$22,000.
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Auditor = & Em

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible, offer 7= %h-RBf & & /5 & 5t 60 1745 71202302 R 18

itself for re-appointment at the 2023 AGM. A resolution for its re- EAZLEFE > MR EERTEENRE L

appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed thereat.  [BEE(E c —EHEHEZEHEAXRANTZE
Mz REBEZFN LIRS

On behalf of the Board RRESSE
Daisy Yeung *E
Chairperson ¥ HE 5
Hong Kong BE
20 December 2022 20225128208
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for the Company so as to ensure “Accountability,
Responsibility and Transparency” towards Shareholders, stakeholders,
investors as well as employees of the Company.

The Board has adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. During the Year, the
Company had complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code
except with the deviation from code provision C.2.1 which requires
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and not be performed by the same individual.

The Board

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for the
leadership, control and promotion of the success of the Group in
the interests of the Shareholders by directing and supervising its
affairs and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the
financial and management performance of the Group.

Board Composition

As at 30 September 2022, the Board comprised of five Directors,
two of which are Executive Directors (namely Ms. Daisy Yeung (Chief
Executive Officer) and Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa) whilst three are
INEDs (namely Mr. Poon Yan Wai, Ms. Wan Choi Ha and Mr. Wong
Tak Ming, Gary) who possess the skills, experience and expertise
either in the same industry or relevant to the management of the
business of the Group. The Board considers that this composition
ensures a strong independent element with a balance of power and
influence between individual on the Board and an appropriate mix
of skill, knowledge, experience and diversity. The biographies of the
Directors are set out from pages 14 to 16 of this annual report under
the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 requires that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and not be performed by the
same individual. Ms. Daisy Yeung (being the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group) has also been appointed as the Chairperson (as
from 1 December 2022) and Managing Director of the Company
by the Board who provides the Board with strong and consistent
leadership while at the same time leading the management on
effective planning, formulation, implementation and execution of
long-term business strategies of the Group. The Directors have
considered the issue of balance of power and authority of the Board
and the structure which can properly address the potential issue on
power concentration. All Directors, who bring different experience
and expertise to the Company, were properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and that adequate, complete and reliable
information is received by the Directors.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

All the INEDs are professionals with well recognized experience
and expertise in financial, legal or accounting fields who contribute
impartial view and make independent judgment on issues to be
discussed at Board meetings. The term of the INEDs is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election under the Bye-laws of the
Company and the Listing Rules.

The Company had received confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review conducted by the
Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been expressly identified as such
in all corporate communications of the Company that disclose the
names of Directors.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the Company
(comprising all the Executive Directors of the Board) which has been
delegated to carry out the day-to-day management and operation
of the Group, formulate business policies and make decision on
key business issues. The Executive Committee has all powers and
authorities of the Board except the following major matters as set
out in a "Formal schedule on matters reserved for and delegated
by the Board":

- determining the Group's objectives and strategies;
- approving annual and interim results and financial reporting;

- declaring or recommending payment of dividends or other
distributions;

- approving major changes that require
announcement under the Listing Rules;

notification by

- approving publication of announcements for notifiable
transactions (except for discloseable transactions in relation to
lease transactions recognizing the right-of-use asset according
to HKFRS 16 “Leases”) under the Listing Rules;

—  approving non-exempt connected transactions/non-exempt
continuing connected transactions (other than those
transactions took place from time to time under the master
agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/Shareholders
(as the case may be)) under the Listing Rules; and

- approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company.
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Induction, Support and Professional Development
of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding
the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant
laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure
of equity and business interest in the Group and such induction
materials will also be provided to newly appointed Directors shortly
upon their appointment as Directors. All Directors have been
updated on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
There is a procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in order to
assist them to perform their duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they had complied with the code
provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. During the
Year, each Director had participated in continuous professional
development by attending e-seminars/reading materials on the
following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and provided a record of training to the Company:

Name of Directors

EENS

Ms. Daisy Yeung
ZEAE R

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa (to retire on 31 December 2022)
MM & & (# 5202281253158 1F)

Ms. Pearl Chan (resigned on 30 September 2022)
B AR Hr 2 £ (55202249530 H ¥ 1E)

Mr. Poon Yan Wai
BLCESE
Ms. Wan Choi Ha
BEELL

Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary (elected on 25 February 2022)
BB (JE2022452/525H # #)

Mr. Chu Kar Wing (retired on 25 February 2022)
KRB B (FE202242/525H B 1)

Relationship between the Board members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships)
among each other.
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Directors’ Insurance EEZFRE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect ZAATBEMEBEETEH Z ERHFNELEE
of legal action against the Directors. BzrRERZH o

Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment EEZHERARERARA

The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is set AEEZEZEHFEEZ 2B RHEH W T
out below:

No. of meetings attended/held
HEEHE BEERY

Corporate

Audit  Remuneration  Nomination  Governance Executive General

Committee Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
tEER

EnZ88 HMWZEe R4Z8% Z8% BRRAE

Name of Directors

E5pts
Ms. Daisy Yeung (Note 7) 15/15 - 2/2 2/2 - 18/18 n
BREL T (W]

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa (Note 2) 15/15 - - - n 18/18 n
BB L (M2

Ms. Pearl Chan (Note 3) 15/15 - - - - 18/18 n
B (H##3)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BUFHTES

Mr. Poon Yan Wai (Note 4) 15/15 313 2/2 - n - n
BLREE (Wit

Ms. Wan Choi Ha (Note 5) 15/15 33 - 2/2 n - n
BRELLT(H#Y

Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary (Note 6) 6/6 2/2 N n - - -
BEREE M0

Mr. Chu Kar Wing (Note 7) 9/9 n N n - - n
REREREMWH))

Total number of meeting(s) held: 15 3 2 2 1 18 1
ROEHRY.
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Notes:
1. Chairperson of the Executive Committee
2. Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa will retire as Director on 31 December

2022 and ceased to be the Chairperson of the Corporate Governance
Committee on the same day

3. Ms. Pearl Chan resigned as Director on 30 September 2022
4. Chairman of the Audit Committee
5. Chairperson of the Nomination Committee

6. Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary was elected as Director at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 25 February 2022 (“2022 AGM") and
was appointed as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee as well
as a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee on
the same day

7. Mr. Chu Kar Wing retired as Director at 2022 AGM and automatically
ceased to act as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee as well
as a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee on
the same day

During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs without
the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with code
provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and is
satisfied that each Director has been spending sufficient time in
performing his/her responsibilities during the Year.

Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary and key officers of the company secretarial
team for ensuring that the Board procedures as well as all applicable
rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting agenda
is set by the Chairperson of the Board in consultation with other
Board members. Board meeting notice was sent to the Directors
at least 14 days prior to each regular Board meeting. For all
other board meetings, reasonable notice was given. Board papers
and related materials which provide appropriate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information are generally sent to all Directors
and relevant committee members at least 3 days before each Board
meeting and Board Committee meeting (on other agreed period) to
enable the Directors to make informed decisions.
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Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded in sufficient
details the matters considered and decisions reached, with draft
and final versions being circulated to the Directors for their
comment and records respectively, within reasonable time after
the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes, being kept by the
Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any reasonable time
with reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by
the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter
will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than a written
resolution. That Director will abstain from voting on the relevant
Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associates has
a material interest and he/she shall not be counted in the quorum
present at such Board meeting. INEDs, who, and whose close
associates, have no material interest in the transaction are present
at that Board meeting.

Board Committees
To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate effective
management, certain functions of the Board have been delegated
by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee and the majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are
INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board Committees
are given to the respective members of these Committees. Details
of the Board Committees as at 30 September 2022 are set out
below:

1.  Executive Committee (set up on 18 November 2014)
As at 30 September 2022, the Executive Committee consisted
of all the Executive Directors, namely Ms. Daisy Yeung
(Chairperson of the Committee) and Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa
(to retire on 31 December 2022) and as from 1 December
2022, Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
(both being Executive Directors) have become members of
the Executive Committee. The primary duties of the Executive
Committee are (a) formulating business policies and making
decision (including entering into transactions) on matters
relating to the management and day-to-day operations of the
Group; (b) making and reviewing corporate/financial/treasury
planning, investment and operation strategy of the Group; (c)
discussing and approving any financial, borrowing, charging
and guarantee commitment to be made by or on behalf of the
Group; (d) approving any transactions, including discloseable
transactions, exempt connected transactions and non-exempt
continuing connected transactions which took place from time
to time under the master agreement(s) previously approved
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by the Board/Shareholders (as the case may be) under the
Listing Rules; and (e) approving any publication of relevant
announcement for discloseable transaction in relation to lease
transaction recognizing the right-of-use assets by the Company
as a lessee according to HKFRS 16 “Leases”; and (f) having
all power and authorities of the Board except those matters
specifically reserved for the full Board as set out in the “Formal
Schedule on matters reserved for and delegated by the Board”
adopted by the Board from time.

Audit Committee (set up on 1 March 2007)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Poon Yan Wai (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Wan Choi
Ha and Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for (a)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor; (b)
reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’'s independence
and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor; and (d) reviewing financial information and
overseeing the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel and/
or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit process
and the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, and the accuracy and fairness of the annual
consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 30 September 20271 (“Previous Year”) and the
interim consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 31 March 2022;

i reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group during the Previous
Year;

iii.  performed annual review of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group during the Previous
Year;
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iv. ~ recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the 2022 AGM; and

V. approved the audit plan for the financial year ended 30
September 2022, reviewed the independence of external
auditor and approved its engagement.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 1 March 2007)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary (Chairman of the Committee)
and Mr. Poon Yan Wai, both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi
Fai, being an Executive Director (in place of Ms. Daisy Yeung
since 1 December 2022).

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Remuneration Committee is primarily
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on (a)
the Company’s policies and structure of all remuneration
of Directors and senior management; (b) the remuneration
of INEDs; and (c) the specific remuneration packages for
individual Executive Directors and senior management. Details
of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are
set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation
to the Board for approval; and

i. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management
and recommended the Board to approve their specific
packages; and

iii.  reviewed the remuneration packages of newly appointed
Directors.
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Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Wan Choi Ha (Chairperson of the Committee) and
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary, both being INEDs, and Ms. Daisy
Yeung, being the Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are (a) reviewing the structure, size, composition
and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing the Board Diversity
Policy; (c) reviewing the policy for nomination of Directors
("Nomination Policy”) and identifying potential candidates for
directorship; (d) assessing the independence of INEDs; (e)
reviewing the time commitment of each Director in performing
his/her responsibilities; and (f) making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment, re-election
or re-designation of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board;

i reviewed the revised Board Diversity Policy, nomination
policy and terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee and made recommendation to the Board for
approval;

iii.  reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

iv.  reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors;

V. made recommendation to the Board on the re-election
of Director at the 2022 AGM;

vi. made recommendation to the Board on nomination of
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary as new Director to fill the
casual vacancy created by the retirement of Mr. Chu Kar
Wing at the 2022 AGM; and

vii. made recommendation to the Board on the appointment
of Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
as new Directors to fill the causal vacancies created by
the resignation of Ms. Pearl Chan and the retirement of
Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Lousia.
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Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives to the business nature of the Company. Selection
of candidates on the Board is based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee
will also assess the merits and contribution of any Director
proposed for re-election or any candidate nominated to be
appointed as Director that will bring to the Board against
the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board that would complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted the Nomination Policy of the
Group which aims at assisting the Nomination Committee
in identifying and nominating suitable candidates for
directorship based on the Board Diversity Policy and sets out
the nomination criteria and the nomination procedures for (i)
nominating new Director to fill a casual vacancy on the Board;
(i) making recommendation to Shareholders regarding any
Director for election or re-election at general meeting; and (jii)
nomination by Shareholders on election of new Director.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 March
2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CG Committee”)
consists of five members, namely Ms. Fan Man Seung,
Vanessa (in place of Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa since 1
January 2023) (Chairperson of the Committee) being an
Executive Director, Mr. Poon Yan Wai and Ms. Wan Choi Ha,
both being INEDs, a representative of company secretarial
function and a representative of finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CG Committee
is available on the Company’s website. The primary duties
of the CG Committee are (a) developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Company (“CG Policy”) and making recommendations to the
Board; (b) reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices
of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (c) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to Directors and relevant
employees of the Group regarding dealings in the Company’s
securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this report.
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A summary of the work performed by the CG Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation to
the Board;

i reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv.  reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors and
relevant employees of the Group regarding securities
transactions; and

V. reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, whose appointment was approved by the
Board, plays an important role in supporting the Board for ensuring
good information flow within the Board and ensuring that the Board
policy and procedures are followed. She is responsible for advising
the Board on general duties and obligations of Directors and good
corporate governance issues, and has facilitated induction and
professional development of the Directors. She has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. During the Year, the Company
Secretary had duly complied with the relevant training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Securities Transactions of Directors

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors (“ECG Securities Code”) on
no less exacting terms than the required standards as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, all of them confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the
ECG Securities Code throughout the Year.
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Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare the annual
consolidated financial statements of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules. The management has
provided all members of the Board with monthly updates on internal
consolidated financial statements which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position
and prospects as at the reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the
Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgment and estimates that were prudent and
reasonable and ensured the consolidated financial statements were
prepared on a “going concern” basis (with supporting assumptions
or qualifications as necessary) and showed a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group for the Year. The management had
provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board on the
consolidated financial statements to enable it to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before it for
approval. The auditor of the Company had made a statement about
its reporting responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’'s Report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation and
day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company in
achieving its business objectives. Internal control policies and
procedures within the Group are updated regularly with the primary
objective of providing general guidance and recommendations on a
basic framework of risk management and internal control systems
("Control Systems”).

A. Goals and objectives
The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective Control Systems.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or losses.

The key objectives of the Control Systems include:
safeguarding assets;

ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of financial
records and reports;

promoting adherence to policies, procedures, regulations
and laws; and

promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations.
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A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal control
measures and procedures covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls; and
(i) risk management functions in its principal subsidiaries of
the Company.

Governance Control
The control structure of the Control Systems is set out as
follows:

The Board
responsible for the overall Control Systems and reviewing
their effectiveness;

oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing basis with
the assistance of the Audit Committee;

ensure presence of appropriate and effective Control
Systems;

define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of significant risks
(including the environmental, social and governance
("ESG”) risks) that the Group are willing to take in
achieving the strategic objectives and formulate the
Group's risk management strategies.

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Control Systems with the
management annually to ensure that the management
has performed its duty to maintain effective Control
Systems. This discussion also includes the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions as well as
those relating to the Company’s ESG performance and
reporting;

review the nature and extent of significant risks (including
ESG risks), and the Group's ability to respond to changes
in its business and the external environment;

consider major findings on internal control matters (if
any) raised by internal and external auditors and make
recommendations to the Board; and

review and discuss annually with significant control
failings or weaknesses that are identified by the auditors.
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Executive Committee

review the effectiveness of ESG-related risk management
and internal control systems and report to the Audit
Committee for its review.

The management (including heads of business units,
departments and divisions)

design, implement and maintain the Control Systems
properly and ensure the Control Systems are executed
effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in day-
to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the findings
on internal control matters raised by internal or external
auditors; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness
of the Control Systems.

Internal Audit Department

carry out audit checking on sample basis and evaluate
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Control Systems
in respect of all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

alert the management on the audit review findings or
irregularities and advise them on the implementation
of necessary steps and actions to enhance the internal
controls of the Group; and

report the results of internal audit reviews and agreed
action plans to the Audit Committee and the Board on
regular basis.

C. Risk management

(1)

Risk Management Process

The Management regularly reviews overall risks facing by
the Group and changes in market environment. The risk
management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management measures and risk control
and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyze, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks
are evaluated by the Board and management based on
(i) the severity of the impact of the risks on the Group's
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financial results; (ii) the probability and frequency that
the risks will occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at
which risks could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage
the risks as follows:

Risk elimination — The management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

Risk mitigation — The management may implement
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the likelihood,
velocity or severity of the risk to an acceptable level
or contingency plan for possible loss scenarios.

Risk control and monitoring — It involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable and
how to address those that are not. Accidents and
other situations involving loss or near-loss will be
investigated and properly documented as part of
the effort to manage risks.

Risk retention — The management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required and the
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the
risk management program to ensure the level of
risk does not increase to an unacceptable level.

(2) Significant Risks and Strategies
Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment. Such
significant risks of the Group and their respective key
levels and key control measures are set out below:

()

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the borrower or
counterparty may fail to perform its obligation to
pay in a timely manner, or that its ability to perform
such obligation may get impaired before delivery
date.
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The Group’s Credit Committee, the ultimate credit
decision-making organ of the Group, is responsible
for putting in place credit policies and procedures
for approving margin financing and lending portfolio
as well as debt recovery procedures to ensure
prompt and effective recovery of outstanding
debts. The Credit Committee meets both regularly
and timely to review the development and status
of past due accounts and to ensure appropriate
actions are taken in a timely manner. The Group's
exposure to credit risk lies mainly in two areas:

a)

Margin financing

The customers’ trading of securities or
futures may expose the Group to risk arising
from price volatility which may reduce the
customers’ ability to meet their obligations.
The Credit Committee will prescribe from
time to time the lending limits on individual
stock or on any individual customers and
their respective associates by considering
their creditworthiness, financial strength and
the size of their positions or commitments
for the purpose of monitoring the customer
concentration risk and stock concentration
risk.

The Credit and Risk Control Department
("CRC Department”) is responsible for the
daily monitoring of the changes in customers’
positions, their accounts and financing ratios;
to observe strictly the approved financing
and credit policies; to make margin calls
and perform forced liquidation, where
appropriate; to report to the management
regularly and when abnormalities arise; to
closely monitor the unusual movements and
trading halts of stocks and timely identify
non-performing debts; and to demand higher
margin requirements and step up risk control
for particular customers or products, where
appropriate.
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The Group has set up policies on customer
concentration risk and stock concentration
risk. The CRC Department will monitor the
concentration of credit risk and regularly
review stress tests performed by the Finance
and Accounts Department to assess the
Group's credit risk exposure and capital
adequacy and to report anomaly or any
unusual price movements of customers’
stock positions. As at 30 September 2022,
the receivable balances due from the largest
client and five largest clients represented
8.3% and 34.5% of the net carrying amount
of the total accounts receivable from margin
financing respectively.

Lending portfolio

All loans and advances are subject to
credit analysis, borrower's due diligence,
risk assessment and are approved by the
management according to the credit policies
set by the Credit Committee. The Loans
Operation Department is tasked with the
daily monitoring of exposures for loans and
advances. As at 30 September 2022, the
loans receivables due from the largest client
and five largest clients represented 7.2% and
18.5% of the net carrying amount of the total
loans and advances respectively.

Moreover, the Internal Audit Department
also conducts independent reviews on the
adequacy and effectiveness of these policies
and controls to ensure that the Group is
operating according to the established
policies, procedures and credit limits.
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(i)

(i)

Equity Risk

Equity risk arises from fluctuation in the price
and volatility of equities such as stocks, equity
portfolio and stock index futures. The Group does
not have proprietary equity investments. On the
other hand, the Group may be subject to exposure
arising from the underwriting commitments. The
Group mitigates its risks by conducting detailed
analysis of the issuer’s fundamentals and pricing
against market conditions and appetites. Such risk
exposure is also reduced by way of internal sales
and distribution and by sub-underwritings.

Liquidity Risk

The Group’s financing business is a capital
intensive business which may be subject to liquidity
risk. As part of its ordinary brokerage activities,
the Group is also exposed to liquidity risk arising
from timing difference between settlements with
clearing houses or brokers and customers. The
goal of liquidity risk management is to ensure the
Group maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its
business commitments as well as to comply with
the relevant Financial Resources Rules applying to
various licensed subsidiaries.

To address the liquidity risk, the Group’s Finance
and Accounts Department and the management
will review and monitor the Group’s liquidity position
on daily basis to ensure availability of sufficient
liquid funds. In addition, the Group has maintained
sufficient stand-by banking and other facilities in
order to meet any contingency in its operations.
The management believes the Group’s working
capital is adequate to meet its financial obligations.
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3

Emperor Capital Group Limited # 2

(iv)  Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people,
systems or external events. The Group extends
operational risk management to cover potential
losses arising from legal and compliance breaches.
Operational risk is reduced and controlled through
establishing effective internal controls, clear lines
of responsibility, proper segregation of duties
and effective internal reporting and contingency
planning. Itis our corporate culture that the business
and operating line management are fully aware of
their responsibilities for managing the operational
risks of their business units on a day-to-day basis.
Independent monitoring and reviews are conducted
by the Compliance Department and the Internal
Audit Department, which report regularly to the
management and the Audit Committee.

(v)  Others Risks

Occurrence of any natural disaster or outbreak of
contagious diseases such as COVID-19 pandemic,
could adversely affect the Group’'s business and
operations. The Group implements business
continuity plans which include “Work from
Home", “Flexible Working Hours” and “Split-team
Arrangements”; and ensures all safety measures
as required by the Hong Kong SAR Government
are fully implemented.

Due Diligence review performed by the Group in
relation to margin financing, and other loans and
advances

For all financial assistance transactions, responsible
personnel of the Group have taken reasonable steps
verifying the identity of the applicants and guarantors
through examination of identity documents such as
identity cards, passports and address proofs. Clients’
occupation, business, financial standing and credit
history of the client with the Group were also considered.

Notwithstanding the standard procedures above, the

Group performed various due diligence exercises
according to different natures of financial assistance.
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For mortgage loans, the Group engaged no less than
two independent property valuers to appraise the value
of pledged properties. Land records were obtained from
Land Registry in order to ascertain the registered owner
of the property and incumbrances registered against it.

For margin financing business, the Group analysed
the relevant underlying securities in accordance with
price histories, trading performance, trading prospects
and fundamentals of the collateral. The Group also
considered public financial information in the case of
listed securities. The margin clients were required to
deposit their securities, and undertook to maintain
certain position with the Group and personal guarantees
provided by ultimate beneficial owners were required
in case of corporate borrowers. The Group had daily
monitoring of the securities and financial performance
of the listed companies for default events.

For term loans, in the event that the clients deposited
and undertook to maintain securities under the Group's
custody, the Group performed the same due diligence
works as margin financing business. The clients may also
be required to provide the Group with other securities
when the needs arise based on latest credit assessment
conducted from time to time.

The Credit Committee also takes into consideration
existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial, or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change in the borrower’s ability
to meet its debt obligation; potential changes in the
borrower's ability to meet its debt obligation; external
market credit risk indicators for collaterals with similar
characteristics; and significant changes in the value
of the collateral supporting the obligation or credit
enhancement. Lastly, on-premise and face-to-face
verification is required before entering agreement relating
to provision of financial assistance.
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Internal Control

(1) Operational Control
The management is responsible for analysing the control
environment, identifying risks pertaining thereto, and
implementing various controls therein.

Approach taken: The management conducts
interview with relevant staff members, reviews
relevant documentation of the Control Systems
and evaluates findings of any deficiencies in the
design of the Group’s internal control system,
provides recommendations for improvement and
assesses the effectiveness of implementation
of such recommendations, where appropriate.
The scope and findings of review on the risk
management and Control Systems will be reported
to and reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.

Information flow: The transparent information
flow alerts the management promptly of any
deviations. Benchmarking with historical database
and comparisons with the same also act as a
detecting device for spotting unusual activities.

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines:
They are in place to safeguard the assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring
maintenance of proper accounting records in
compliance with the applicable laws, rules and
regulations for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and/or external
publication.

Management information system and technology:
To control over the business activities, it allows
close tracking of various inputs and outputs of
the Group's business such as human resources,
product offerings, lending portfolio and customer
information. It also tracks audit trails in the
authorisation system, under which permissions and
responsibility of authorisation are clearly identified
and adequate records can be maintained in the
Control Systems.

Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each operating segment in the upstream,
midstream and downstream are conducted on a
regular basis such that the performance of each
operating segment can be easily accessible.
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(2) Financial Controls 2) ﬂ BEE

proper controls are in place for the recording of BERIBEENEERZER
complete, accurate and timely accounting and WERE2E - ERNERT
management information; BEFNEEEN;

annual budget and quarterly forecast on all capital FrBEEANBAEBEBEZF

and revenue items are prepared and approved by
the management before being adopted;

the management monitors the business activities
closely and reviews monthly financial results of
operations against budgets/forecast;

regular reports on revenue, trade receivables’
ageing and debtors’ ageing and internal financial
reports are prepared to the management which
give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's financial performance;

monthly updates on internal financial statements
are provided to all Directors which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group's
performance, financial position and prospects in
sufficient details;

annual audit by external auditor is carried out to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements
are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, the Group’s accounting
policies and the applicable laws and regulations;
and

daily available fund report is reviewed to monitor
the cash flows against budgets/forecast.
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(3) Compliance Control
The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and procedures on disclosure of inside
information to ensure, with the assistance of
internal work team (if required), that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of any
one or more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate, for the
attention of the Board. The Board shall make timely
decisions on disclosure, if necessary, and take
appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality
of inside information until proper dissemination of
the inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements which shall be
reviewed and monitored regularly by the Corporate
Governance Committee as delegated by the Board;

CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions
of the Company and ensure proper compliance
with all relevant laws and regulations and the
Listing Rules and disclosure requirements;

Whistle-blowing policy for employees of the Group
to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters. Such arrangement will be reviewed
by the Audit Committee which ensures that proper
arrangement is in place for fair and independent
investigation of the matters; and

Anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist
financing policy and procedure is established
to set out the general framework for combating
against money laundering and financing of
terrorism. It provides guideline to prevent the
Group’s employees and  clients/customers/
suppliers/vendors/contractors from being misused
for money laundering, terrorist financing or other
financial crime and has set out some indications
of potentially suspicious transactions/activities for
employees’ reference.
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E. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had received a confirmation
from the management on the effectiveness of the Control
Systems of the Group. The Audit Committee and the Board
had reviewed the Control Systems and were not aware of
any significant issues that would have an adverse impact on
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's operational,
financial and compliance areas of the Control Systems.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a written dividend policy setting out
the principles for the Board to determine appropriate amount
of dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The Company
intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim and final
dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings attribution
to its Shareholders after taking into consideration of the factors
stated in the policy, including inter alia, (i) cash flow requirements
for business operations; (i) cash available, financial liabilities
and capital commitment; (iii) market environment and challenges;
and (iv) future development and investment opportunities. The
declaration of dividends or recommendation on such payment shall
be subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations including but
not limited to the Listing Rules, the applicable laws of Bermuda and
the Bye-laws of the Company.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy and the Board shall review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company communicates with the Shareholders
and/or potential investors mainly in the following ways: (i) the holding
of annual general meeting ("AGM”) and special general meetings
("SGM”), if any, which may be convened for specific purposes
which provide opportunities for the Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Board; (ii) the publication of announcements,
annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as required under
the Listing Rules and press releases providing updated information
of the Group; (iii) the availability of latest information of the Group on
the Company’s website at https://www.EmperorCapital.com; (iv) the
holding of press conference(s) from time to time; and (v) meeting
with investors and analysts on a regular basis and participating in
investor road shows and sector conferences.

Regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and general
presentations are made when financial results are announced.
Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s
website to raise enquiries through our Investor Relations Department
whose contact details are available on the Company's website and
the “Corporate Information and Key Dates” section of this report.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings for
substantially separate issues, including the re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for an annual
general meeting is sent to Shareholders at least 21 days before
the meeting and notices of all other general meetings are sent to
Shareholders at least 14 days before the meetings.

The deemed Chairperson of the Board, chairman/members of the
Board Committees and the external auditors were available to
attend the 2022 AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders.
With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of
the meeting explained the procedures for conducting a poll during
the meeting.

Shareholders’ Rights
Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code:

Right to Convene/Call General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall have the right to submit a written requisition
requiring a SGM to be called by the Board. The written requisition (i)
must state the purpose(s) of the meeting, and (ii) must be signed by
the requisitionists and deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong for attention of the Company
Secretary, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists. Such requisitions will
be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
and upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a SGM by
serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders. On the contrary, if the
requisition has been verified as not in order, the requisitionists will
be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the SGM will not be
convened as requested.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for a day not more
than two months after the date of deposit of a proper requisition, the
requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them may themselves convene a SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. In addition,
such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
are to be convened by the Board.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of the Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of
the requisition a right to vote at general meetings of the Company
("Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such Shareholders, can
request the Company in writing to (a) give to Shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition
signed by all the Requisitionists must be deposited at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong with a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and
not less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition Provided that an
AGM is called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition has
been deposited, such requisition though not deposited within the
time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for
the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available for viewing on the Company'’s
website.

Enquires from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries can be directed
to the Investor Relations Department of the Company.

Constitutional Documents
There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.
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Auditor’s Independence and Remuneration

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with applicable standards. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditor, Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is independent and had recommended
the Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s auditor at the 2023
AGM. During the Year, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has
rendered audit services and certain non-audit services to the Group
and the remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is set out as
follows:

¥% 2 Em 2 35 3L 1 K B &
ERZECRERREERZENER
NEERHEMZBIE  UEREREFBERE
PREMBRERZEEMENREMME - X
ZEEMERR AR ZZHEMEEY-
FERASSMTEBELAL  TEAE
FHFHEERES  R0BRFIBAFRE
BREADAERDZZHE - KEAFER >
TR GSEMITE R A S ERE M
ZEBRBNETIEZHERE > MAKEE
/AT RzZMEHTWT:

Fees paid/

Services rendered payable

FR 2 1t BR #5 eft &R

HKS'000

FET

Audit services 2,580

Z AR 75

Non-audit services 120

FEIZ BUAR 75
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMPEROR CAPITAL GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Emperor
Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 69 to 179, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 September 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

REEtER

@EFE(E

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEAZEANMAEERBENEER

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Model on loans and advances and accounts receivable from secured margin
clients (collectively referred to as the “Advances to Customers”)

HEEARBHRERERFIREFIR (RBB WEFRH)ERANEEER(HEHEEER)ER

We identified the impairment of Advances to
Customers (other than the impairment in stage 3),
arising from the application of the ECL Model under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” ("HKFRS 9”), as a
key audit matter due to the significant judgment and
estimation made by management to determine the
ECL amount at the reporting date.

RS ERXBEBMHBREER BRI T A
(ERAMBRELENER N EEARREESRE
BEAMEEMETRBRAE(KE =R ZRER
SNFERR/EARBESTEIE > LHRANEETRS B
ZHEEERETHERREEEBFRERA M
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As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the ECL measurement involves significant
management judgement and estimation, with the
involvement of the Group’s external specialists, in (i)
the selection of appropriate models and key inputs
used in the ECL model, including the probability of
default (“PD") and loss given default ("LGD"), (ii) the
determination of the criteria for significant increase
in credit risk (“SICR”) and (iii) the selection and
use of reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information available without undue cost or effort in
the ECL model to estimate the future movement of
different economic drivers and how these drivers will
affect each other and the correlation with the key
inputs, including PD and LGD.
UM BRI TAFAKE > BEAEEHES
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
Advances to Customers included:

B BEREAAERBRRZBAEATHNEFEE:

- Understanding the Group's established credit
risk policies and procedures for impairment
assessment in relation to the application of ECL
model under HKFRS 9, including model set-up
and approval and selection and application of
assumptions and key inputs into the model;

- TR EEENECEARBEKMERE S
MHBHREEFEOREBETAREEBERIM
BENTLRER > @FERANKRIINERL B
ENERMARB R R @A B

- Understanding the key controls over ongoing
monitoring processes, including:
- THREELERBENTIEHIE 81!

(i)  the process of margin call procedures
for margin shortfall and actions taken
by management for those accounts
receivable from margin clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities with
margin call;

) REETEHETHERERZEZRERFK
EEENMKEEFTEEXRHRBEMRK
BEZERIFREFEMFAKRERITEHN
5

(i) the process of periodic reviews for
identification of any indications of
deterioration of the creditability of
borrowers through searching of publicly
available information and any delinquency
in loans or interest repayment for loans and
advances;

(i) MERMKBRREBESLRIIEERE
EBRNANEE B R K AE il & R F
EERNMKRzZEHERER;
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

MREFEEGE)

@EFEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

BRZEMAEIERREHEE(E)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Model on loans and advances and accounts receivable from secured margin
clients (collectively referred to as the “Advances to Customers”) (continued)

REEHR

The management further assesses whether there has
been a SICR for exposures since initial recognition. If there
has been a SICR, the Group will classify the exposures as
stage 2 and measure the loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL rather than 12-month ECL. In assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased, the
Group takes into account quantitative and qualitative, if
applicable, reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information available without undue cost or effort with
significant judgement involved.

EEBE—JSHGRYIBEILECEAREERE
ERMe-HESRRBAERM EEESTIER
B B4 55 — PR ER I A% *E?Jﬁ’i\ﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁmaiéf)éﬂ%ﬁ'ﬁ
FENRERBEHREEGEFEHERRS o K E—
Iﬁéézfmgﬂﬁﬁ%éﬁ@”iDDB%’%‘L%@%F%

BERARETUEANNY NI ESHE 8 & E % (U
Lﬂﬁ)zé\féﬁﬁT? HEEEBENMEMEEE B
Y R E KA -

The total gross amount of (i) loans and advances
and (ii) accounts receivable from secured margin
clients under stages 1 and 2 as at 30 September
2022 are HKS1,702,636,000 and HKS$262,804,000 less
impairment loss of HKS2,854,000 and HKS$198,000
respectively. Please see notes 22, 23 and 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.
IE‘FE’\]

720229830 » 8 — &5 Z B
&ﬂféﬂ&(n)}%ﬁu&ﬁ%&}ﬁﬂﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬁ
#1,702,636,0003 7T &2 262,804, 000‘%7—5 »
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AREBREIERARELIRA (R BA RERRH) AR EREHE (R EEEHE)ER(E)

- Assessing the reasonableness and appropriateness

of the management’s judgement on staging criteria
for determining if SICR has occurred (stage 1 or 2)
or the financial asset is credit-impaired (stage 3)
and the basis for classification of exposures into
the 3 stages as required by HKFRS 9 and examining
supporting information on a sample basis to assess
the appropriateness of the classification of loan
exposures as at the end of the reportmg period;

SHRESREBEEL (5
E E’E%%ﬁﬁzﬁ(%:[ﬁa
ZERIFTRPIIR
JIﬁﬁEﬁAE 4
TR EH

- Evaluating, together with our internal valuation

specialists, the reasonableness and appropriateness
of the ECL models and assumptions, information and
parameters used in the model including establishing
the forward-looking factors, and the relationship
between the forward looking factors and the key
inputs, including PD and LGD, in the ECL model
to determine the impairment loss of Advances to
Customers in stage 1 or 2,

- ERPONBEEERIEEBEEEERARE
SATREI R  ARRE B (B h R E)
NEBEREEE . RAERBETE AR
RHEZ R AN (M EEORER B
BE) MBI LECE 5 _BRNABRE
S RERE;

- Assessing the competence and independence of the

third-party specialists engaged by the Group and their
experience in conducting similar ECL computation;
and

- ‘Mﬁg EELZBZEZAERZH ﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁ'li{u&

REETEURRAGEERRE qu%iZ%% s R

- Testing the accuracy and completeness of key

data sources applied in the ECL computation on a
sample basis by checking to the Group's supporting
information, the relevant loan files and external data
source, as applicable.

- LLV@;%%*@%@%% if;%g %%g%ﬂl#j&}_(ﬂﬂ
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B HENERS

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

PREFEEGE)

@EFE(E

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

BAZEANMAEERBEAETEE)

Impairment of Advances to Customers at Stage 3

FKREZERZAER 2 E

We identified the impairment of Advances to
Customers at Stage 3 as a key audit matter due to the
involvement of significant management estimation in
determining the ECL amount.
BRPRNE=ZBERZAZRBERAEET A B
FRESNSE W HERNECHBEEREZS
BHANEREEE M o

In assessing the lifetime ECL on Advances to
Customers classified as stage 3, the Group performed
the assessment based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the borrowers, general economic conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions with significant judgement involved. The
Group also reviewed the fair value of the collateral
received from the borrowers in determining the
impairment. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future
cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.
REAEDBEAES=BRENAZTRR2RN 2 HTEH
EEHEN > S5ERE SEENBREEES
EEBETTG TRBERXRANEEREZ K
R 5 B HA RO B 88 AT E R i A0 SR BRI T TR R E 1T R
BoBRIRERHE o EEEMTKETERER
BERERERANBITF@ATE - G5t RERE
MENTELKEFANAERBRKETHE
B URBEBEEGTEERGEERENESR -

As set out in notes 22, 23, and 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, the total gross amount as at
30 September 2022 of (i) loans and advances and
(i) accounts receivable from secured margin clients
amounted to HKS$3,016,1790,000 and HK$2,031,389,000
respectively, of which HKS$1,313,554,000 and
HKS$1,768,585,000 respectively are classified as Stage 3.
ARSI IRFRMI 5522 ~ 238 40FT &L » 7120224
9H30H (EMMABRK()EWERFFREER
IR A& %87 7 %3,016,190,000 7% 75 52 2,031,389,000
727t > HH11,313,554,000578 7T A2 1,768,585,0007 7T 73
ANERE=EE -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
Advances to Customers at Stage 3 included those
covered in the above key audit matter related to ECL
model and the following additional procedures:

R ERRE=BENEERBRAERNITHE
FEELXERABEREEEBEEANMAESETSEE
FrBEEU R THEBINEF !

- Corroborating and challenging management’s
assessment and key estimations used in
determining expectation of reasonably possible
outcomes on the recoverability of the loans to
the borrower against our understanding of the
situation and the industries of the borrowers
or guarantor and collateral, if any, from reading
public announcements and other externally
available information; and

- MEAMEBERLGREMIIPERIGSERH
ERARERAURERRWAE) NE TR
PRERITENER SENEREEEETEM
WEIERANERNESEESE REHTA
B ET 1k R R s 5t 5 &%

- Examining underlying documentation supporting
the management’s key estimations used in
determining the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, including the historical
repayment records and expected repayment
subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
fair value of the collateral, if any, and other
information available for the creditability of those
borrowers.

- BRERZREEEEEMGRKREAERE
FRARISEM T ARRE XX > BIFE L EMEC
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Key Audit Matters (continued) E R E G

Key audit matter (continued) How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MREEE(E) (continued)

BAZEMAEEMRBENETE(E)

Impairment of Advances to Customers at Stage 3 (continued)

FKEZIBRZRERZ % EE)

Impairment allowances of HKS$656,572,000 and - Examining the estimated future cash flows and
HKS$1,429,975,000 have been provided in relation to (i) the fair value of collateral together with our own
loans and advances and (ii) accounts receivable from internal valuation specialists, where appropriate,
secured margin clients under stage 3, respectively, including:
as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial - HEHEMPIABHEERZEMGERERESN
statements. ENREFRRNAFE@BER) » 8!
UGS BREWFI0OMIKE > EME=BERIE
THOHEMRRBR K (\EWEIRIRHFREPRME . Obtaining the appraisal reports and assessing
IR EE B 9 511656,572,0007 7T &% 1,429,975,000% the competence and independence of the
JT °© third-party professional valuers and their
experience in conducting valuation of similar
assets;

KR ZREWFEE =7 FXEE
WENARBIMEUAREERBEUEEE
THENEER;

Assessing whether the selection of the
valuation methodology is appropriate for
the collateral; and
SHEMIRIRRERENGEREZEEEE
N4

Evaluating the appropriateness of key
inputs used in the valuation of the collateral
by independently checking to the external
data and publicly available information.

BRBUIEBEINLBE N ARAFER -
ST Ay 48 7 om (1B BT AR AL 38 0 A BUIR B9 1R
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Emperor Capital Group Limited E 25 5 £ B AR AT
2021/2022 ANNUAL REPORT 4E #R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolldated Financial Statements (continued)
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Tong, Mei Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 December 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HeRmkEMEEERER

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

AOVA
Notes HKS'000
B 5% FHE T
Revenue WA
Commission and fee income BEhERWA 6 85,459 125,343
Interest income A B WA 6 427,365 551,469
512,824 676,812
Other income and gains or losses H AU A K U & 8%
&5 18 7 5,408 10,648
Impairment allowances on financial TMEEZREREE
assets, net of reversal 0 bR #5 [=] 8 (590,095) (939,302)
Impairment allowance on property and  #) % K 2% & 2 B &
equipment g 17 (2,833)
Impairment allowance on right-of-use B #E & E 2 B E
assets B 18 = (5,577)
Staff costs BITMA 9 (72,912) (77,883)
Commission and fee expenses BEhFEELZWH (36,488) (49,364)
Other expenses HZ H 13 (82,473) (82,691)
Finance costs MBER 10 (26,845) (71,516)
Share of profit of an associate EE—E#MEA AT 2
iz A 20 = 146
Loss before tax FR 70 51 &5 18 13 (290,581) (541,560)
Income tax expense FRiS A= 14 (8,653) (34,534)
Loss for the year attributable to EREERE AR
owners of the Company FERBE (299,234) (576,094)
Other comprehensive (expense) B2 mE (F%) K m
income
ltem that may be reclassified HEBEEEHDEE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bm2IEE:
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEBFRES
translation of foreign operations 2 ERERE (67) 123
Total comprehensive expense for the ARG HEE ABLEE
year attributable to owners of SHBZARLE
the Company (299,301) (575,971)
Loss per share sKEsE
Basic BN HK(4.44) cents HK(8.55) cents
15 -3 (11 Al
Emperor Capital Group Limited 22 HEBER A E 69
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HEMBRKAR

At 30 September 2022 52022898 30H

2022 2021
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000
B 5E F#T TFA T
Non-current assets ERBEE

Property and equipment EINE R 17 2,306
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 9,296
Intangible assets mELEE 19 -

Interest in an associate R—EBE T 20
= -

Amount due from an associate W —BEHE N B 20
15 = 3,638
Other assets Hih& E 21 5,189 10,126
Loans and advances SRR 22 686,871 665,372
Deferred tax assets RILAIE & E 27 590 -
701,213 690,738

Current assets MBEE
Accounts receivable JE T BR =X 23 691,807 1,391,469
Loans and advances EE N 22 1,669,893 1,845,640
Other debtors, deposits and HME R

prepayments BehFENLRIE 14,361 9,107
Tax recoverable AJ [5] Y ¥R 18 15,004 1,386

Pledged bank deposits — BIRRIRITER — 24
general accounts —REER 160,000 160,000

Bank balances and cash — RITHEG MRS 25
general accounts —RERE 860,796 864,062

Bank balances and cash — BITHEGF LIRS~ 25
segregated accounts BIUER 1,573,074 1,834,598
4,984,935 6,106,262

70 Emperor Capital Group Limited EE2F 5 E B AR AT
2021/2022 ANNUAL REPORT £ #



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HEMBRAR

At 30 September 2022 52022898 30H

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000
Bt &% F#x FAE T
Current liabilities mEaE
Accounts payable FEJ BR X 26 1,653,186 1,993,462
Other creditors and accrued charges Hh (I IR e
&H 32,575 55,381
Tax liabilities MIE&E 12,260 13,857
Lease liabilities HE&R 28 6,464 10,492
Short-term bank borrowings FRHARITER 29 430,000 370,000
Bonds issued BEITES 30 - 499,080
2,134,485 2,942,272
Net current assets RBEERE 2,850,450 3,163,990
Total assets less current liabilities MEERMNEERE 3,551,663 3,854,728
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Lease liabilities HE&R 28 1,322 5,086
Net assets HE#E 3,550,341 3,849,642
Capital and reserves BExKi#EE
Share capital [N 31 67,408 67,408
Reserves R 3,482,933 3,782,234
Total equity D4 3,550,341 3,849,642

The consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 179 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20
December 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

BEEGH2022F 128208 #t /& R HETIED
FOOEFI/IB 2 MBRE » WH T
EERREFTTEE!

DAISY YEUNG FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA
W T B
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EF
Emperor Capital Group Limited ZE2F 5 £ B AR A G 71
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SAEmEER

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

TREAERAES

Share Share Special
capital premium reserve

[ fe i M8 R

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER

Capital
contribution Translation REENED]
reserve reserve profits Total
Bx
BMARE MERE REBER @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT THERT T#ERT THET

At 1 October 2020 152020105815 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (193) 1147155 4,425,613
Loss for the year EERE - - - - - (576,094) (576,094)
Other comprehensive FEHM2EKR R

income for the year - - - - 123 - 123
At 30 September 2021 152021958308 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (70) 571,061 3,849,642
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (299,234) (299,234)
Other comprehensive FEHMZERS

expense for the year - - - - (67) - (67)
At 30 September 2022 1:202249830H 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (137) 271,827 3,550,341

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
of the ordinary shares of a subsidiary of the Company in issue
and the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company for
acquisition of a subsidiary pursuant to a group reorganisation on 2
April 2007.

Capital contribution reserve represents the deemed contribution
arising from a fellow subsidiary waiving certain amount of
management fee in previous years.

79 Emperor Capital Group Limited EE2F 5 E B AR AT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

SARERER

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

FLOWS

AOVA
HKS'000
TATT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Loss before tax B0 A &S 18 (290,581) (541,560)
Adjustments for: FE
Finance costs T &R 26,845 71,516
Interest income B A (427,365) (551,469)
Depreciation of property and equipment MENRFZHBZITE 3,105 2,759
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FTRHEEEZINE 10,877 10,795
Share of profit of an associate Bh—REBE R
55 ) (146)
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—HEBHEQFZ
&5 18 111 -
Impairment allowances on financial THEEZRBERE
assets, net of reversal 0 B 35 [ 590,095 939,302
Impairment allowance on property MENSEZBRERE
and equipment 2,833
Impairment allowance on right-of-use FEREEEZRERESE
assets 5,577
Operating cash flows before movements  EE &£ & F a1
in working capital KEREmRE (86,913) (60,393)
Decrease in accounts receivable FE WL BR 7R 2 B 835,356 2,288,591
Decrease (increase) in other assets Hh& & 2 /2 (8 0) 4,937 (2,903)
(Increase) decrease in loans and advances B K&# 2z (1) #HD (546,825) 398,381
Increase in other debtors, deposits and HMBWIRR s BER
prepayments TS FIE Z 10 (5,254) (2174)
Decrease (increase) in bank balances IRITAE BR IR E —
and cash — segregated accounts BIRPZRD (B) 261,524 (260,073)
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable — FE{FERER Z G4 #2 M (340,276) 273,903
(Decrease) increase in other creditors HE MR RSB
and accrued charges 2GR & m (18,104) 31,511
Cash generated from operations KEEEZRE 104,445 2,666,843
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BENEBHNER (24,439) (10,455)
PRC Tax paid B hERE (19) (38)
Canada Tax refund MEKXER = 18
Interest paid [=EDRAIRS (11,306) (16,503)
Interest received BWF B 402,649 520,349
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RBE&ZEEZHZREFHE 471,330 3,160,214
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER

For the year ended 30 September 2022 # ZE202259830H [EFE

2021
HK$’000
FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Purchase of property and equipment BEYENSLE (7,692) (274)
Proceeds on disposal of an associate HE—BEEQTZ
Fr 8 18 3,527 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING AR EEeazRE R
ACTIVITIES (4,165) (274)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEH
Drawdown on bank borrowings REIRITER 5,360,000 3,470,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BEETEXR (5,300,000) (5,471,000)
Redemption of bonds issued BREIEETES (500,000) (899,870)
Interest paid on bonds issued BETESZENMHE (19,038) (75,693)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEASR (11,393) (11,347)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING BimEEeszREFHE
ACTIVITIES (470,431) (2,987910)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH HREMkREEEMZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (iR 4) ¥ 5 58 (3,266) 172,030
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FNZ2RERAEZEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 864,062 692,032
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FERZAEMREZEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 860,796 864,062
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF REhBREEEBYZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EiRoR
Bank balances and cash — general fEﬁ“nE?)S'ZIEi—
accounts AR B 860,796 864,062

ERRMEBETHMEENEREHZRER
FEMBRERWEI4PEFL -

Disclosure in relation to the changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities are detailed in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

1.

GENERAL

Emperor Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
and registered as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).
The immediate holding company is Emperor Capital Group
Holdings Limited which is a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"). The
ultimate holding company is Albert Yeung Capital Holdings
Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the BVI. The
entire issued share capital of Albert Yeung Capital Holdings
Limited is in turn held by CDM Trust & Board Services AG,
being the trustee of Albert Yeung Capital Discretionary Trust,
a discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert.

Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 24 April 2007. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 36.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HKS"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

— R EHE

BERSFEEERRBA(ARTNTS
BIEBREISIENTE (EET) =
M NELAEREERLAE - &H
BERABAEEFFEETERER
RE) NEBRZBEEFMARILZE
BRAB c REERNBABIMESE
ERERAR > MEBRZEESZM
MIZBRAR - GXMEXERE
RABZ2WBEBITRAHEZ M E
T AW —IE 15 15 5T Albert  Yeung
Capital Discretionary Trust Z % 5% A
CDM Trust & Board Services AGHiH ©

KRB 215D B2007F 482482
TEBBMAERSMBERAE (TR
PRI EMR £ o ZRAB MM ERE K
TEERMB MU REBRELR R
BENMKEZEMI— -

ERBRREERRNE - KREEE
MEBABZ EERFHH M EEI6 -

REMBREDUBT(ET) 2
P HIMBARBZINAEER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 B 35 R R M 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

2.

/6

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual periods
beginning on or after T October 2021 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments relate to changes in the
basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as a result of
interest rate benchmark reform, specific hedge accounting
requirements and the related disclosure requirements applying
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures ("HKFRS 7").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)
Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (continued)

As at 1 October 2021, the Group has certain financial liabilities,
the interests of which are indexed to benchmark rates that
will or may be subject to interest rate benchmark reform. The
following table shows the total amounts of these outstanding
contracts. The amounts of financial liabilities are shown at
their carrying amounts.

Financial liabilities EMaE
Bank loans WITER

FE P # 5T R AR E 5] & 78 At 75
gﬁfé)%fj'](réﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
I\J /’E

TEEBRFE K&Z.ﬂ’;‘ﬂé
ARBHSENE)

BREEMBERSERNEN - &F
B ERFEIN « BEEUBEREE
RIB7H - BEEMBEBESERF45
REEMBRESERF16I2ZIEETE
FIEBELE-F2BBRZHE (E)
752021410818 > ZIK%I%E%:F
THER HMXEREN kT E
??%"J%%EEEKEB’J%E%UTH?J ‘F
RINTZERBEGHNZBEE - =
MERTBRREREEYT -

HKD Hong
Kong Interbank
Offered Rate
(“HIBOR")

AXERRT

CE i3}
(FrEERT
CEZi3-9)

HK$’000
FER

370,000

The amendments have had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements as none of the relevant contracts has
been transitioned to the relevant replacement rates during the
year. The Group will apply the practical expedient in relation
to the changes in contractual cash flows resulting from the
interest rate benchmark reform for bank loans measured at
amortised cost. The Group expects no significant gains or
losses should the interest rate benchmark for these loans
change resulting from the reform on application of the
amendments. Additional disclosures as required by HKFRS 7
are set out in note 40.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

2.

/8

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and February

2022 Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback*

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)*

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants*

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 — 2020

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that:

(i)  the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are met
at the end of the reporting period, even if the lender
does not test compliance until a later date; and

clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments, these
terms do not affect its classification as current or non-
current only if the entity recognises the option separately
as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 B 35 R R M 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

2.

80

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (“the 2022 Amendments”)

The 2022 Amendments modify the requirements introduced by
the amendments to HKAS 1 issued in 2020, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current (“the 2020 Amendments”)
on how an entity classifies debt and other financial liabilities
with covenants as current or non-current. The amendments
specify that only covenants with which the entity is required
to comply with on or before the end of the reporting period
affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date. Covenants which
are required to comply with only after the reporting period do
not affect whether that right exists at the end of the reporting
period.

The amendments also specify the disclosure requirements
about information that enables users of financial statements
to understand the risk that the liabilities could become
repayable within twelve months after the reporting period, if
the entity classify liabilities arising from loan arrangements
as non-current when the entity’s right to defer settlement
of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying with
covenants within twelve months after the reporting period.

The amendments also defer the effective date of the 2020
Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024. The amendments, together with the
2020 Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with early application
permitted. If an entity applies the 2020 amendments for
an earlier period after the issue of the 2022 Amendments,
the entity should also apply the 2022 Amendments for that
period.

Based on the Group's outstanding liabilities as at 30 September
2022, the application of the amendments will not result in
reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSS") (conz‘/hued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in
paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no
longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group's
significant accounting policies. The impacts of application,
if any, will be disclosed in the Group's future consolidated
financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

3.

82

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16, measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loss
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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84

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associate used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of
associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interest in an associate (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal of the relevant associate.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liabilities relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, such as
sponsoring service fee and performance fee from asset
management services, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled using the most likely
amount, which better predicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included
in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.

Description of the Group’s performance obligation of main
source of income under the scope of HKFRS 15 are as follows:

Brokerage

The Group provides broking and dealing services for
securities, futures and options contracts. Commission income
is recognised at a point in time on the execution date of
the trades at a certain percentage of the transaction value
of the trades executed. The Group provides custodian and
handling services for securities, futures and options customer
accounts. Fee income is recognised when the transaction is
executed and service is completed (i.e. at a point in time),
except for custodian service fee which is recognised over time.
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88

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Corporate finance

The Group provides placing, underwriting or sub-underwriting
services to customers for their fund raising activities in equity
and debt capital markets. Revenue is recognised when the
relevant placing, underwriting, sub-underwriting services are
completed. Accordingly, the revenue is recognised at a point
in time.

The Group also provides sponsoring services to clients
for their fund raising activities and corporate advisory
services to corporate clients for their corporate actions.
The Group considers that all the services promised in a
particular contract of being a sponsor or corporate advisor
are interdependent and interrelated and should be therefore
accounted for as a single performance obligation. As
there is enforceable right to payment for the Group for the
performance of services completed up to date based on the
contracts with customers regarding sponsor or corporate
advisory services, the revenue is recognised over time based
on the stage of completion of the contract, the services
transferred to customers up to date.

Wealth management

The Group provides wealth management services to
customers. The customers simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefit provided by the Group, hence the
revenue is recognised as a performance obligation satisfied
over time. Wealth management fee income is charged at
a fixed percentage per month of the net asset value of the
managed accounts under management of the Group.

The Group is also entitled to a performance fee when the
performance meets certain levels in accordance with Private
Placement Memorandum for the relevant performance period
and it is recognised at the end of the relevant performance
period, when it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
and are accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of leased properties and machinery and equipment
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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90

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less
any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property and equipment (continued)

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest
in an associate that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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94

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Share options granted to directors and employees
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payments
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payments reserve. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employment benefit

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
where appropriate, based on approved formulas that take
into consideration the profit attributable to the Group after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

All other short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised for benefits
accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries, and
annual leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of
the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Such grants
are recognised as other income and presented under “other
income and gains or losses”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs, that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or
proposed to be use by individual group entities in their income
tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred taxes are
determined consistently with the tax treatment in the income
tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of
each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most likely
amount or the expected value.
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98

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment losses on property and equipment and right-of-
use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property and equipment and right-of-
use assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property and equipment and right-
of-use assets are estimated individually, when it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment losses on property and equipment and right-of-
use assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Emperor Capital Group Limited E 2E 5 EBHR AT
2021/2022 ANNUAL REPORT 4£E ¥k

¢

nv

& X
&%

v

MBERZEREBEER
BstHER(E

TR (E
MERZHEUREHESEZRE
B8 (#8)
M—IEEE(RRSELEN) 2K
Bl ZEETENERTEE > AZEE
(FBEEELBEM 2 FEENRE
Holyol£ 2 c AN EEERI
DNEHEEEFERE—RMOERE
—EERESELBEMN AEELR
— AR ELBNNEERE(BER
EXEERADE BB EEZX
ERSELBENNCEEEERRA)
HZAREEFBEU 2 [E£%E °
PEEBERBE  ZRAEBEEL
DR EAT A 20 REE (HE
B) meEENZEMNRNNZAERS
EXfBEUNSBEEEZ REERKRLA
PREEHMEE - —BEEMNKE
BAREREBRNEAFERBERNA&
(WrlstE) EFERAEE(MMTET)
MEEFNRSE - AT EEZE
ENREFGE SERLEASRS
ZBEMNNZARSESFBUNEME
E o REBEINNRIBENER

R EBEERERD  BIZEE (H
REeELBUN—ERSELEM)
ZHREERAEMEHEEEST 2G5
I El & 88 > MR MNR 2 BRE B &
BrASBBREMEERNBEFEREMR
ZHEEE(NREEEBEMNI—HEIR
TEEBEM)BIBREBEZRARK
HE 18 ° 78 {8 &5 158 # O] BD B 7% 18 m FR
= o
EMIT R
EEEBREAASTESAOKRXXH—
BETNHE > ARBEFREES MBI
NMERLIEIEHMEERETRERE -
FIENERATABENHEZERME
EHRR 5 HE % 517 08 R MR
Bl - UWER A ABERNLERER
BERHEEZRZEBH SR RN
BOAREZHERARNEEZ R
BEE-

99



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 B 35 R R M 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

3.

100

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Emperor Capital Group Limited E 25 5 £ B AR AT
2021/2022 ANNUAL REPORT 4E #R

SAMBEEZGRELR
EAQHHE 5
BA W HEE ()

THEENETREGVNIEAFE
STE EERGHMELENEZEU
IRFRIN - HAIaREBEZBUH RS
ZEHFBISTHSE - WRNETEME
EkzMaf(BBEmRATEY
fR(MZBERBATEIER) ZER
EESTMEBEMRINEEBEZR
SRAT RS EEBEMAZREE
HEMEEHNLAFENESHMEEN
TMEENQATERNNKRGETEE
BRME) - WIEBBERIZATE
IRz EMEENEMEBEERE
2R AR ABNEKIEm AR o

BERMNFREAGE—RETHEENS
MEBEZHBENANZERABD
RABRARMNEBRZEE -8B
BHESRcHEENERERZ
TREIFHIE (B A) BAEHR - b
SAARRBEZRARMTR(EBEE =M
HUWER Z B BRI R — 50 Z P
BEERAKER - XPMARAMEE
TR EEAERERVIBIARKZ
BREFEZELER-

EXEEABEEFBAREPERNFE
WAZH /WA -

THEE
TMEENBANAERFE

BaToRFZemAELBEE
WA

EHEEANENRAFTEETRE
EUWRENEERE, &

BHRRRETEEANES
EEHRERAE MEIFHRTM
EERFENEIEREREE
KEZHEB o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading and is not contingent consideration of an acquirer in
a business combination) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3.

102

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period (with the amortised
cost being the gross carrying amount less the impairment
allowance). If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets including other
debtors and deposits, amount due from an associate, loans
and advances, accounts receivable, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable that result from transactions within the scope
of HKFRS 15 and the ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/or
collectively using a provision matrix with debtors having similar
credit ratings.

For all other instruments, the Group applies the general
approach to measure ECL for all financial assets, if any, which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. On this basis, the
Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information, if
applicable, that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) S|gn|f|cant increase in credit risk (continued)
existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
the event of default occurs when the information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

In respective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

3.

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED AW BEBRRZEREER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT EAFHBEKRE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) BEXGHHBEK(E)

Financial instruments (continued) EFMITAGE)

Financial assets (continued) LB E (B)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) THEEREHE)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL () TEHREEBIEZTENHER

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default are based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

Past-due status;

Nature, size, background and industry of debtors;
and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
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o

recognised through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
In assessing the ECL for financial assets, the Group
performs the assessment based on the Group'’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors specific to the
borrowers and the current conditions at the reporting date
as well as the forecast of future conditions. The Group
also reviews the value of collateral received from the
customers in measuring impairment. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating the impairment
amount are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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3.

108

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other
creditors, short-term bank borrowings and bonds issued are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

The application of ECL Model

The directors of the Company estimate the amount of loss
allowance for ECL on financial assets at amortised cost
based on the credit risk of the respective financial instrument.
The loss allowance amount is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows with the consideration of expected
future credit loss of the respective financial instrument. The
assessment of the credit risk and expected cash flows of
the respective financial instrument involves a high degree of
estimation and uncertainty. The provision of ECL is sensitive
to changes in estimates. The estimates would include the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral value
when determining impairment allowances. When the actual
future cash flows are less than expected or more than
expected, a material impairment loss or a material reversal of
impairment loss may arise, accordingly. The information about
the ECL on financial assets at amortised cost are disclosed
in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Risk Management Department is responsible for
developing and maintaining the processes for measuring ECL
including monitoring of credit risk, incorporation of forward-
looking information and the method used to measure ECL; and
ensuring that the Group has policies and procedures in place
to appropriately maintain and validate models used to assess
and measure ECL.
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4.

110

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

The application of ECL Model (continued)

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group employs experts who use external and internal
information to generate scenarios of future forecasts of
relevant economic variables. The internal and external
information used includes the historical data of the Group
and economic data and forecasts published by governmental
bodies, monetary authorities or other financial institutions.
Accordingly, when measuring ECL, the Group selects and
uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking information
without undue cost or effort in its assessment, which is based
on assumptions and estimates for the future movement of
different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect
each other as well as the correlation between historical default
rate and macro-economic factors. Management estimates
these forward-looking economic factors, such as GDP growth,
unemployment rate, interest rate and inflation etc. under
different scenario and analyse the impact on PD and LGD for
different financial assets.

Measurement of ECL

PD constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. PD is an
estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon
and the calculation is based on reasonable and appropriate
statistical rating models selected by the management. These
statistical models are based on market data (where available),
as well as internal data comprising both quantitative and
qualitative factors, if applicable, which includes historical
data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. The
management gathers this information and adjusts the data to
reflect probability-weighted forward looking information that is
reasonable and supportable and available without undue cost
or effort.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

The application of ECL Model (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking
into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit
enhancements with estimation involved. The LGD models for
secured assets consider forecasts of future collateral valuation
taking into account sale discounts, transaction volume of the
secured assets and seniority of claim. For unsecured loans,
the calculation of LGD includes the judgments in determining
the proportion of loan recovered after default and the duration
of recovery.

In assessing the lifetime ECL on credit-impaired financial
assets classified as stage 3, the Group performs the
assessment based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors or borrowers, which include any (i) significant
financial difficulty of the debtors or borrowers, (ii) the status
and progress of financial restructuring, general economic
conditions and both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions with
significant judgments involved. Moreover, the Group also
reviews and assesses the fair value of the collateral received
from the customers in determining the impairment.

Relevant information with regard to the exposure of credit
risk and expected credit losses are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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4.

112

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment of property and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Property and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset; and (3) the appropriate key inputs to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the assets belongs including allocation of corporate assets
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established. Changing the inputs and estimates including the
discount rates or the growth rates in the cash flow projections
could materially affect the recoverable amounts of the various
cash-generating units.

As at 30 September 2022, in view of impairment indicators,
the Group performed impairment assessment on property and
equipment and right-of-use assets of carrying amounts (before
impairment allowance) of HK$6,893,000 (2021: HKS$5,139,000)
and HKS$1,670,000 (2021: HKS$14,873,000) respectively.
Impairment losses of HKSNil (2021: HKS$2,833,000) and HKSNil
(2021: HKS5,577,000) have been recognised on property and
equipment and right-of-use assets. Details of the impairment
of property and equipment and right-of-use assets are
disclosed in notes 17 and 18.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Income taxes

As at 30 September 2022, tax losses of HKS$3,209,370,000
(2021: HKS2,751,030,000) have not been recognised as deferred
tax asset due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In case where the actual future taxable
profits generated are more than expected, or change in facts
and circumstances which result in revision of future taxable
profits estimation, a material recognition of deferred tax asset
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a recognition takes place.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see above), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Significant increase in credit risk in measurement of ECL

As explained in note 3, the Group monitors all financial assets
that are subject to impairment requirements to assess whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, except for certain loans and advances and account
receivables from margin clients which are measured on lifetime
ECL basis as for those credit risk had increased significantly
since initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase
in credit risk, the Company will measure the loss allowance
based on lifetime rather than 12m ECL. HKFRS 9 does not
define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In
assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increased, the Group takes into account quantitative and
qualitative information, if applicable, that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Management will take into account information like financial
position of the borrowers, overdue period of principal and
interest, loan to collateral ratio that triggered margin calls for
additional collateral, change in fair value of pledged securities
or properties that constituted events of breach of contracts
and status of margin calls. Other details are also set out in
“Impairment of financial assets” in notes 3 and 40.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

Determination of consolidation scope of certain pledged
securities in money lending

The Group entered into secured loan arrangements with
customers that contain several covenants such that the Group
may have the voting rights on certain relevant activities of
the pledged company and/or seize and enforce the pledged
company if a covenant is breached. When these protective
rights become exercisable and/or the Group seizes and
enforces the pledged companies, there is a change in facts
and circumstances and the control assessment is required to
be performed.

All facts and circumstances must be taken into consideration
in the assessment of whether these rights are substantive
and whether the Group, as lender, has practical ability to
exercise these rights as power to direct the relevant activities
of the pledged company. The principle of control sets out the
following three elements of control: (a) power over the pledged
company; (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
involvement with the pledged company; and (c) the ability to
use power over the pledged company to affect the amount of
the lender’s returns.

In conducting the assessment to determine this consolidated
scope, the directors of the Company considers whether the
rights held by the Group are substantive and whether are there
any barriers (economic or otherwise) that prevent or deter
the Group from exercising its rights based on all facts and
circumstances. The management assessed and determined
that there are financial disincentives and/or legal or regulatory
requirements that prevent or deter the Group from exercising
its rights based on all facts and circumstances for all relevant
cases of pledged companies in current year.
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. SEPEH
Information reported to the executive directors of the ERARNBERTES(FTELERE
Company, being the chief operating decision makers, for the NUPEERRFEDHRIEZE
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment BLTLERRPIRERE 28R o

performance focuses on types of services provided.

According to HKFRS 8, the Group has the following operating RIED AT FRSERFER » K&k
and reportable segments: EEUTKERTEZRD
(a)  Financing - Provision of margin financing and (@ B - REFEMRE R
money lending services B AR5
(b)  Brokerage — Provision of securities, options, (b) EERH — BEEE
services futures, insurance, other assets o\ HRLT (2
and wealth management 5 Hﬂﬁﬁg&
products broking services and HEEEED S
related handling services 4% 47 B 75 T2 ME BS
FERD
(c)  Placing and = Provision of placing and (c) FeEHGE — RHEEHEH
underwriting underwriting services AR 75
(d)  Corporate = Provision of corporate finance (d) TtEmE — RBEH-EREE
finance advisory services AR 75
Segment revenue and results SEBUTA R ELE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results UTFAEREBZIWARFERKES
by operating and reportable segments: NI 2D EZ 9
For the year ended 30 September 2022 # F2022598300LLEE

Brokerage Placing and  Corporate
Financing services underwriting finance  Elimination Total

R GRRY EE88H tXR#E Hi &4 a5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TEn TERn FEn FEn FEn FEn

REVENUE O

Segment revenue ~ external ABRA-IBEE
customers
Commission and fee income BERERKA = 67,496 ! ) = 85,459
Interest income FEWA 418,503 8,862 = 427,365
Inter-segment sales NMEEE 320,153 = (320,153) =

738,656 76,358 , ; (320153) 512,824
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. SEEH (&
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEFEIHE T IRIRITHIBERINE o

Brokerage  Placing and Corporate
Financing services underwriting finance Total

R CRky EER8H EXRME st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TR FER FER F#ER

RESULTS e
Segment results NHEE (257,760) (370) (254,980)
Unallocated other income and ROEEMB AR
gains or losses KRR 2,276
Unallocated corporate expenses XoECXER
- staff costs (including —BIRAE(B%E
directors’ remuneration A B
but excluding staff BREEET
commission expenses) MELH) (1,500)
- service charge to related —-HMTHERTZ
companies (note 35(a)(ii)) k% &
(M3£35(8)(i) (19,536)
- others —Ef (16,841)
Loss before tax B E0 K5 18 (290,581)
Income tax expense FeRES (8,653)
Loss for the year FEEE (299,234)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenue and results
For the year ended 30 September 2021

5.

5. 7EEM(Z
FEBUA B FELE
B E2021F0830HEEE

Brokerage  Placing and Corporate
Financing services underwriting finance  Elimination Total
BX KERE EEHEHE 2 LX@E i 84 @zt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TET TET TET FTET TET TET
REVENUE LON
Segment revenue — WA
external customers —-HBEE
Commission and fee BeRERKRA
income - 96,328 16,280 12,735 - 125,343
Interest income F E WA 548,448 3,021 - - - 551,469
Inter-segment sales HEREHEE 281,493 - - - (281,493) -
829,941 99,349 16280 12735 (281493) 676812
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DEEHE (& N
Segment revenue and results (continued) SEBUT A R K 4R (7B )
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEFEIHE T IRIRITHIBERINE o

Brokerage  Placing and Corporate
Financing services  underwriting finance
R RER® BREAGH rEME Bt

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS"OOO
TAT TET TET TER TET

RESULTS e

Segment results nHEE (541,639) 16,530 5,740 1,679 (517.690)

Unallocated other income and FREEMBAR
gains or losses WIS E 3,872

Unallocated corporate expenses RN E G2 E A

- staff costs (including -BIRA(BRERL
directors’ remuneration e BREE
but excluding staff EIfExH)
commission expenses) (1,500)
- service charge to related = b-YN=IP4
companies (note 35(a){ii)) RBE
(# 7£35(a)(ii)) (10,396)
- others —HAf (15,992)
Share of profit of an associate BE—BEHE N2 EH 146
Loss before tax Bt (541,560)
Income tax expense PrEREx (34,534)
Loss for the year FEBB (576,094)
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenue and results (continued)
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note
3. Segment results represents the profit (loss) earned by
each segment without allocation of central administration
costs (including directors’ remuneration but excluding staff
commission expenses), unallocated other income and gains
or losses, service charge to related companies, and share
of profit of an associate. This is the measure reported to
the executive directors of the Company for the purpose
of resources allocation and performance assessment. No
analysis of segment asset and segment liability is presented
as the chief operating decision maker does not regularly
review such information for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment. Therefore, only
segment revenue and segment results are presented.

Other segment information
For the year ended 30 September 2022

Financing
'®

HK$'000
FER

NEMERRE

Additions of property and

equipment
Depreciation of property and MENREZINE

equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use FTHEEEZNE

assets
Impairment allowances on FEWER T 2 BE#E

accounts receivable, net of MNeR#ED

reversal 269,807
Impairment allowances on loans ~ ERNRBRZAEEE

and advances, net of reversal k% [l 318,073
Finance costs HHER 26,464

Brokerage
services
BERH
HKS$'000
THET TR T#ET T#ER

SEWER ()
S ER IS A R R4 ()
DEEHERIBITHHERKE -

FI2 7 B8 2 & 5t B R 2 Y SE3PR 4t
ZHREEGSTHRER o DEEREE
BN EFrEREL 2 m A (B51R) » k7
RPRTHRERBEREESZMWE -
MEETMEXHERIN Ko HEHM
WARK@HEE G TFTHAEQT
ZRHBENREL—BBE ARG
F o IEBRAERBAITES 28, UM
NEERRFLHRREZER - HE
BRERRANLFEHEREHFE
BRI DB E RN ERER » WEES
NEEERDBEEZOMN - Al >
EE25] DB AR D BREE ©

HithoZEE
HF20225698308ILEE

Placing and  Corporate
underwriting finance Total

RENAEHE ©&XMEA st
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

272,022

318,073

26,845
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 W55 4R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Other segment information (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2021

DWER ()
Hfth 5 2 & 8 (2)
B E2021F9830HLEFE

Brokerage Placing and  Corporate
services  underwriting finance \
Rel®s BEEREE GtERSE a5t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'00
TER TET TER TER
Additions of property and REWMENR
equipment - 271 - 3 274
Depreciation of property and MERZEZITE
equipment 1121 1,631 - 7 2,759
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FREEEZIFE 3,012 7783 - - 10,795
Impairment allowances on accounts ~ FEWBE R Z R {ERE
receivable, net of reversal MR #E 658,985 (290) - (120) 658,575
Impairment allowances on loans BANER ZAE
and advances, net of reversal BE - NkRED 280,727 - - - 280,727
Impairment allowance on property — MIENREZ REEE
and equipment 2,833 - - - 2,833
Impairment allowance on FHEEEZ
right-of-use assets BEEE 5577 - - - 5,577
Finance costs WHER 71,085 431 - - 71,516
Geographical information HME &R

The following illustrates the geographical analysis of (i) the
Group's revenue from its external customers, based on the
country from which the trades are derived in relation to
brokerage revenue from overseas products trading or/and
based on the country in which the customers are located in
relation to financing, brokerage, placing and underwriting and
corporate finance revenue, and (i) the Group’s non-current
assets, based on the geographical location of the assets:

Revenue

YA
2022

HK$'000
FER

507,088
ES 5,732
Hi 4

Hong Kong
United States
Others

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred
tax assets.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EE2F 5 E B AR AT
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512,824 676,812

UTHRBANFTEBRBEEINBERZ
WAGLREBHIEREE Z K LK
ATE  HERXZHRREE, KT
B Kie >  BcEHAEREXRE
WATME > BERERAEZER)
NiycEBIFRBEE (HEREE
ZHMBAE) ZME D

Non-current assets

FERBEE
2022
HK$’'000
FET

2021
HKS’000
TET

2021
HKS’000
TET

673,222 12,258
3,590 = -
1,494

13,752

M FRBEEFBESHIANREIL

MBEEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. #EEHE )
Information about major customer EREEEZRNEHNH

B E20229F9H830H &% 2021498301 Lk
FEH > UEB-FTABEERMBAMGAE

For the years ended 30 September 2022 and 30 September
2021, there was no single customer who contributed 10% or

more of the Group's revenue.

B U ABI10%8 A £ o

6. REVENUE 6. WA
AOVA
HKS'000
FET
Revenue A
Commission and fee income (Note (i): & h&BU A
(WL @) -
Commission and fees income on BEZRSZHEN
dealing in securities (Note (i) ERAWBA
(K7 52 (i) 86,019
Commission and fees income on BEERENRAE
dealing in futures and options BNZHEER
contracts (Note (i) BRI A
(B 52 (i) 6,986
Commission from insurance brokerage 1R B & 42 &
and wealth management (Note (i) MEEEZ
8 & (B2 (i) 3,323
Corporate finance advisory services TrEMEBRERBE
fee income (Note (iii) W A (B &2 (i) 12,735
Placing and underwriting commission FcEEBHEMEE
(Note (iv)) (B 2 (iv)) 16,280
125,343
Interest income: FMEWA:
Interest income from margin and HEMBRAMREE
initial public offer (“IPO") financing (MErrAEE))
(Note (v)) RMENFERA
(B3 (v) 132,693 224,233
Interest income from loans and BRNBRZ
advances (Note (V) B A (K32 () 285,810 324,215
Interest income from bank deposits IRITFEMZ
(Note (ii)) R B A (B 2 (i) 8,817 3,005
Others (Note (i) H At (57 52 (i) 45 16
427,365 551,469
512,824 676,812
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 W55 4R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

6. REVENUE (continued) 6.

Notes:

() The commission and fee income is the only revenue arising under
the scope of HKFRS 15, while interest income is under the scope
of HKFRS 9.

Included in revenue, revenue arising from contracts with customers
recognised at a point in time and over time were HKS$73,982,000
(2021: HKS$112,205,000) and HKS11,477,000 (2021: HKS$13,138,000),
respectively.

All services provided to customers are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

(i) Amounts are reported under brokerage services segment as set
out in Note 5.

(iif)

Amounts are reported under corporate finance segment set out in
Note 5.

Amounts are reported under placing and underwriting segment set
out in Note 5.

(v)  Amounts are reported under financing segment set out in Note 5.

7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS OR LOSSES 7.

Other income (Note (i) HAan U A (K722 31)

Exchange gains or losses, net

Loss on disposal of an associate

(Note (ii)) (B 22 (i)

PE W m BB 1R 0 P R

HE—BME QT EE

Notes:

(i) During the current year, the Group recognised Covid-19 related
government grants of HKS$2,255,000 (2021: HK$3,428,000) as
included in other income in connection with the Employment
Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong SAR Government.

(i) Details of disposal of an associate are set out in Note 20.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EE2F 5 E B AR AT
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WA (%)

EY

(i)

(i)

(iif)

MEREBERRADBRESEBMHFR
HEAFISHBETEENME—A >
MABRARBREBYHBREEL
SEISEMEE o

WABREKREERBES LK
HERERRIZELGHORAD NS
73,982,000 75 (20214F : 112,205,000
B 7o) &11,477000% 7T (20214 :
13,138,0003 7T) ©

REGERZAMAERFHRS —FH
B o REEBVHREEREISHR
ETHRE > PERZERTHEHNZ
RPERHERIKE °

BERBOBETNZ2REBEHNMN
55 ©

EERMEDPETZERSBEHNMH
55 °

EERGHDMAETZ2REEHN
Py 5E5 ©

ERDEBETZERSEHRINMEE
50

ELfth W A B Uk =5 5% 15 48

(i)

6,844
3,804

10,648

HAEE » REEBER2019TRFES
¥ 48 B8 B2 AT 4 Bh 2,255,000 3 7T (2021
£ 13,428,00087T) > Wt ARE B
BBFRHOMERZE St ERNE
A o

HE—BBEQATNFBEHRNWE
20 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 55 R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

8. IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES ON FINANCIAL 8. SR&EEZHEIRE Nk
ASSETS, NET OF REVERSAL 13 o]
2021
HKS$'000 HKS'000
F#T FHBIT
Net impairment allowances on: THIEEZRE
BERE
Accounts receivable & K BR 3R 272,022 658,575
Loans and advances = ONET 318,073 280,727
590,095 939,302
9. STAFF COSTS 9 BIMA

Staff costs represent the amounts
paid and payable to the directors and
employees and comprise:

Salaries, bonus and allowances

Contributions to retirement benefits
scheme

2022
HK$°000
FER

2021
HKS'000
THTT

EIRFEEMNK

10. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:
Bank overdrafts and loans
Bonds issued
Lease liabilities

Others

ENFEENEEY
2% B
i~ TBAT KBRS 74,912
BRIKBH 5T B =
2971
77,883
10. BAFEERB

2022
HK$'000
FEx

2021
HK$'000
TET

THEBEZHE:

RITEXNMER 15,978
BETES 54916
HEaR 598
Hih 24

71,516

Emperor Capital Group Limited E 2E 5 EBHR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 # ZE202259830H [EFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S N EERERETHRASZME
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2021: 6) BT B F7AL(20214F : 61i1) S
directors and the chief executive were as follows: MESITHAEZHMESW T :
For the year ended 30 September 2022 HEF2022569830HILLEE

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
BITES BURTES
Choi Wong
Daisy  Suk Hing, Pearl, Chu Poon Wan Tak Ming
Yeung Louisa Chan Kar Wing Yan Wai Choi Ha Gray
mHE gHm W 1R & REH BR BEE HEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn TEn T#En TEn TER T#En TEn
(Notes

(b), (@)  (Notes (b)  (Note (b))  (Note (c)  (Note(c)  (Note(c)  (Note (c)
(Mt

b)) @) (HEE) (WEL)  (HEC) (WEe) (WiEe)  (WEC)

Fees we
QOther remuneration Hithf &

Salaries and allowances ezl

Discretionary bonus RIETLA (W (5)
(Note (5))

Contributions to BREBRGEER
retirement

Benefits scheme

Total remuneration iR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S N EXEREETHABZME
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#&)

B E2021F90830H L FEE

Independent non-executive directors

For the year ended 30 September 2021

Executive directors

YTES

Choi

Daisy

Yeung

B

HKS'000

THET

(Notes
), (

HKS'000

(Note (b))

BUFATES

Pearl, Chu Poon
Chan  Kar Wing Yan Wai
W {7 RER LR
HKS'000  HKS'000
THERT TERT

HKS'000
TER

HKS'000

TER THT

(Note (c))  (Note (c))

(Note (c))

)

Fees wne 250 250 250 250 250 250 1,500
Other remuneration Etif <
Salaries and allowances He 2k 1,568 2126 1,821 - - - 5,515
Discretionary bonus (Note (3)) KIETEA (H1 5 (8) - - - - - - -
Contributions to retirement benefits RINEH G EHEH
scheme 38 149 91 - - - 278
Total remuneration [T 1,856 2,525 2162 250 250 250 7293
Notes: HiaE:
(a)  Discretionary bonus is determined as regard to the Group's (@) MBEANDRIARERLEES @

operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

ARBRBHBGSTERBFME °

(b)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for () LEERAIIBITEENHEAFEEAE
their services rendered in connection with the management of NEINRENBAREEEZEIRMERY
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. There was no RN - MAFER > EEMEIRIE
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any F fa] 22 HE AR 22 o [ = 32 <8 BRAE AT
remuneration during the year. B o

()  The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown (00 LERMINBIIIFNTESHMES
above were for their services rendered as directors of the RBEEIARAANFESRERFTHOR
Company. There was no arrangement under which a director Bl o MAFEERN > EFMERBEW
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. ZHREFZERBEEIEAINE o

(d)  Ms Daisy Yeung is also the Chief Executive of the Company and her (d BHFZITABERIERSTHEAE

emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by her as Chief Executive. No apportionment has been made as it
is impracticable to apportion this amount among her services to
the Company and its subsidiaries.

Emperor Capital Group Limited ZE2F 5 £ B AR A G
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 W55 4R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022%F9830H IEFE
12. EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group
included two (2021: two) directors of the Company for the year
ended 30 September 2022, details of whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in note 11 above. The emoluments
of the remaining three (2021: three) individual for the year were
as follows:

e R K
B @ H

fE4l

Salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind

Bonus

Contributions to retirement benefits
scheme

RIKEA 5B R

12.

The remunerations were within the following bands:

HK$2,000,001 to HKS$2,500,000 2,000,001 T E
2,500,000 7T
HK$2,500,001 to HKS$3,000,000 2,500,001 L&
3,000,000 7T
HKS$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 T E
3,500,000 7T
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 T &
4,000,0007% 7T

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

Emperor Capital Group Limited E 25 5 £ B AR AT
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& &

LB E2022F9830HIEFE » &~ &
B AERREHNATEERQTM
2RONE MB)ES HEZME
B EXXMIEET1IREE o FRAERE »
Hp=420021E : Z) AL 2Zl £
mE:

2022
HKS$'000

2021
HKS'000

FERT TETT

2,348
7,593

156

10,097

M= FTHEE:

Number of employees
B8 AR
2022

RAEE > AEETESZMIE FE
HEFHLLERSHFMAL > FAHHE
FEMAAREEI I AL EH K2 187
B fFRRERERZHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 55 R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE
13. LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax has been arrived at after BRIREIE B D06 .

charging:
Other expenses: Hihz .

Auditor’s remuneration 2 BT B <=

Legal and professional fees ERENREXER

Advertising and promotion expenses EEhkEEXZWH

Information technology services and & TR T AR 75 K2
communication expenses B Z N

Depreciation of property and MELSBEZITE
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEEZINE

General and administrative expenses —RRITEZH
(Note) (b7 5%)

Rates and building management fee EMNEFERE

Settlement expenses HEER

Miscellaneous expenses IS H

Notes:

Included in general and administrative expenses for the year ended 30
September 2021 is a provision of HKS6 million as a result of regulatory
matters. Management is of the view that adequate provision has been
made as at the end of reporting period for the consequence of the
regulatory matters and there are no other impacts to the consolidated
financial statements. During the year ended 30 September 2022, a total
of HKS$5.4 million was paid to the regulator.

13. BRI AVRES 48

2022 2021
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET TETT

2,423
13,946
1198

17,749

2,759
10,795

16,892
2,523
4,270

10,136

82,691

Mtat:

KB E2021F9830H L FEM — MR RITE
% R s 6,000,000 T A K EEEHWE
H - BEEBRAE HERSHREREE
FHERELEREEG  BHEEHHR
RUEHMPEE - HZE20229F9830H1EF
B &HmE S %8 15400,0008 T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

14.

128

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current year: KEE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax SAMER
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FREREMER
Canada Income Tax MEKRFAER
Under (over) provision in prior year: BEFEREBRE
(BER#E®) :
Hong Kong A
Deferred tax: EIEFR IR
Current year (Note 27) NEE (MF:E27)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HKS2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HKS2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly,
the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HKS2 million of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HKS2 million.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China ("PRC") on
Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries
is 25%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EE2F 5 E B AR AT
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14. FRISIAX

2022 2021
HKS$’000

HKS'000

Fi# T

13,183
38
(18)

(1,705)

23,036

34,5634

R AR E B R 1T IR AY R 1T A w4l
SERERBER 2520000004 T
i M) i 428.25% Z I R IR - BB
2,000,000 7Tz i@ #] Bl #16.5% 2 17
REYM o AT EMSHRMARSG B E
B B B 2 m A i A B 3R16.5% 2 # —
MEER - At » GEREEEREZ
& B F 15 3L E2,000,000% T 2 &
STRESR TR E A #%28.25% 2 M K5t & »
It i #8 382,000,000 7T 2 fih 5t & 2R
D A 216.5% 2 I EHH o

RIEHEARTEME (THE) SEFR
Bk ((EFREREN) REEMRSE
MIAEBHIER > PEBATZRE
#A25% o

HB 2R ZRIRREBMEEIEER
ZHRITRERGAE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £20224F9830H IEFE
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. H

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

s FsZ (8)
AEERBRGAABZREMEE
U 35 2% FF B PR PR BT AS R B BRI0 T

2022 AOVA
HKS'000 HKS’000
FET FHE T
Loss before tax PRI AR 18 (290,581) (541,560)
Income tax at applicable rate #16.5% (20214 :
of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) 16.5%) = 38 A = 5
HZ RN (47,946) (89,357)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PMIRFE M S el HR
for tax purpose THZMBEEE 1,597 2,553
Tax effect of income not taxable MIRFE M S BARR
for tax purpose WAZRBEE (2,662) (8,881)
Under (over) provision in respect of BEFEREBETE
prior years (FBEERE) 276 (1,705)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not ERBEFEARBEHEIZ
recognised 1 I8 &5 18 (723) (2,410)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised fkﬁﬁﬁm ﬁlﬁ BBz
MiEFE 58,656 110,939
Reversal of deferred tax assets R IE & &= # [0 = 23,036
Income tax at concessionary rate BEEREHW
FRig i (165)
Others HAith 524
Income tax expense for the year FEMRBHRMAXZ 34,534

As at 30 September 2022, the Group had unused estimated
tax losses of approximately HK$3,209,370,000 (2021:
HKS$2,751,030,000) available for offset against future profits
of the respective companies in which the losses arose. The
unused tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely with
no expiry date but subject to the approval of the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department. As at 30 September 2022 and
2021, no tax loss have been recognised as deferred tax assets
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams, of which
approximately HK$788,789,000 (2021: HKS681,561,000) arose
from the impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries and
was eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

<2022F 9830  "EBE A E
BHEELEERBERZ2ABEATZ
RKEBANZ KRB BGEHEFREESIE
#973,209,370,000 75 (20214 :
2,751,030,00087T) c RERZHR
T8 5 18 W 8 JE m B BA T o) & R H 45
HaOMAFEBRMERILER  HA
EE o 152022E % 2021E9830H »
BERRKERNERZAT A
BHEBITERIAEIERBEE E
HA49788,789,000E 7T (2021&.
681,561,000 7T) KB EUHIE A
RIERE ﬁﬁﬁ?éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%}&iﬁ °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. SRES1E
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to KRNBEEANEEEREREBIET
owners of the Company is based on the following data: RIETIEIESE

2022 2021
HKS$’000 HKS'000

FERT TETT

Loss o]
Loss for the purpose of basic loss B stEEREREIE
per share Z 518 (299,234) (576,094)

Number of shares ¢ &8
Weighted average number of ordinary BARstEEREX
shares for the purposes of basic loss BlEZERAK
per share hn#E g & 6,740,846 6,740,846
HK(4.44) cents HK(8.55) cents
Basic loss per share BEREFREE 7 L Al
No diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 September BN A 5 7E 8 £20229F9H308 &
2022 and 30 September 2021 were presented as there were 2021930 It FEHE|EME T
no potential ordinary shares outstanding during the years. EHZEBEEBER > AT EZ5]Z%
LEEEEREEHEE -
16. DIVIDENDS 16. B2
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders 15202245 » BRI ANE EBRKE
of the Company during 2022, nor has any dividend been IR REZEMRE > BERSHAR
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2021: HKSNil). MEMmMERZTARKREQ2IFE . Z
BIT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

17. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 17. MEREE

Leasehold
improvements

mERE
HK$'000
TER

Furniture
and fixtures

FRRkEE
HK$'000
TER

Office
equipment

MOERME
HK$'000
TER

Computer
Motor
vehicle

and other
equipment
BElR
Hit3 fe
HK$'000
TER

nE
HK$'000
%

Total

it
HK$'000
F#7

COST A
At 1 October 2020 152020410818 16,333 2,240 6,662 23,405 673 49,313
Additions AE 84 55 68 67 - 274
At 30 September 2021 152021598308 16,417 2,295 6,730 23,472 673 49,587
Additions AE 832 185 259 5,606 810 7692
Disposals HE - - - - (673) (673)
At 30 September 2022 15202298301 17,249 2,480 6,989 29,078 810 56,606
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION REMERAE

AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 October 2020 15202010818 14,346 2,107 6,662 17901 673 41,689
Provided for the year AEERE 800 67 68 1,824 - 2,759
Impairment for the year AEERE 669 51 - 2113 - 2,833
At 30 September 2021 1£202159830H 15,815 2,225 6,730 21,838 673 47281
Provided for the year AEERSE 720 59 90 2,01 135 3,105
Eliminated on disposal HERKHE - - - - (673) (673)
At 30 September 2022 15202298308 16,535 2,284 6,820 23939 135 49,713
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 September 2022 1£202249430H 74 196 169 5139 675 6,893
At 30 September 2021 1£2021F9830H 602 70 - 1,634 - 2,306

All the above items of property and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the rate of 20% per annum, except
that leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter
of the lease terms or 5 years.

FTELMZYERRBEEHUER
ER20% 2 FRFLUNE » Y ERE
ERBISNSFE (UBREERE) TLU
e -

Emperor Capital Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 B 35 R R M 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

17.

132

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Impairment assessment

During the year ended 30 September 2022, as a result of the
recurring losses of the Group and significant uncertainty on
global and local economic environment, the management
of the Group concluded there was indicator for impairment
and conducted impairment assessment on property and
equipment, and right-of-use assets of carrying amounts
(before impairment allowance) of HKS$6,893,000 and
HKS1,670,000 (2021 HKS5,139,000 and HKS$14,873,000),
respectively. The Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit of financing and brokerage services
to which the assets belong when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, including allocation of
corporate assets when reasonable and consistent basis can
be established.

Financing

The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group covering
the following 5 years with a pre-tax discount rate of 16%
(2021: 15%) as at 30 September 2022.

Based on the result of the assessment, the management
of the Group determined that the recoverable amount of
cash-generating unit is lower than the carrying amount. The
impairment amount has been allocated to each category of
property and equipment and right-of-use assets such that the
carrying amount of each category of asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less cost of disposal, its
value in use and zero. Based on the value in use calculation
and the allocation, impairment losses of HKSNil and HKSNil
(2021: HKS2,833,000 and HKS$5,577,000) has been recognised
against the carrying amount of property and equipment and
right-of-use assets, respectively.

Brokerage services

The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the group covering
the following 5 years with a pre-tax discount rate of 16%
(2021: 15%) as at 30 September 2022.

Based on the result of the assessment, the management of
the Group determined that the recoverable amount of cash-
generating unit is above the carrying amount. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not result in impairment.
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7%6,893,0007 75 % 1,670,000 75

(20214 :5,139,00078 75 5214,873,000
BIT) IYENSHEUREREEED
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RS EETREST S W AKATEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EREEE
Leased
properties
HEYME
HK$'000
FHET

As at 30 September 2022 152022998 30H

Carrying amount REE 1,670
As at 30 September 2021 <2021%9H30H

Carrying amount ERMEE 9,296
For the year ended 30 September 2022 B E2022F9H830HIEFE

Depreciation for the year REEFITE (10,877)

Additions =1 3,257
Total cash outflow for leases HEZRES RH4EEE (11,393)
For the year ended 30 September 2021 B E2021F9830H L FE

Depreciation for the year KEEHE (10,795)

Impairment for the year KEERE (5,577)

Additions wNE 2,909
Total cash outflow for leases HEZR® RHEEE (11,347)
No expenses relating to short-term leases incurred for the B ZE2022F /202198300 EEE
years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021. B E LR AR S AR ER -
For both years, the Group leases various offices, an advertising RWMEFEE AEEEEZEMAE -
billboard and server center for its operations. Lease contracts EEENEREPOUREEZ Ao
are entered into for fixed term of 24 months to 61 months MEENZEEFRA24ERE61E
(2021: 20 months to 61 months). Lease terms are negotiated B(2021F 20 @B E£61M@H) - HE
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different BRGIREEBEERETHENAES
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and K EE BRI GE o 7L E R H
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group RESFAOHERENRER K&
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period EERAEANEENRETENREIE
for which the contract is enforceable. ENEETS
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 #; Z£2022F9830H IEFE

18.

19.

134

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Lease liabilities of HKS7,786,000 (2021: HKS15,578,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HKS$1,670,000
(20271: HKS9,296,000) as at 30 September 2022. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Details of maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 28 and 40.

Impairment assessment
Details of the impairment assessment of right-of-use assets
are disclosed in note 17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18.

19.

EREEEZ
22022498300 » B ¥ 537,786,000
# 70 (20214F : 15,578,000 7T) B &
BE > EEEREEEA1,670,000%
70 (20214F : 9,296,000 75) ° FH E 1%
EREEABSEHEEEZER
moh WENMEARZE  BE
BEASHEGENRIE -

HEaGISHOmZEBH NN
2840 o

i B 5 (&
FERAEEEZREFEZEBHN
MisE17

EBREE

HK$’000
FER

COST % 7%
At 1 October 2020, 30 September 2021 and 75202010818 ~ 202149830H

30 September 2022 K22022F9H30H 9,802
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT 5H OB E
At 1 October 2020, 30 September 2021 and 75202010818 ~ 20219F9H30H

30 September 2022 ’22022%9H30H 9,802
CARRYING VALUES fREE
At 30 September 2022 520229 9H30H -
At 30 September 2021 5202194308 -

Trading rights were fully amortised over 10 years from the
effective day of the merger of the Stock Exchange, the Hong
Kong Futures Exchange and the Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited to year 2000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 55 R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Cost of investment in an unlisted

20. K—HBEARZHE

2022
HK$’000

FER

RIFELETBMERTZ

2021
HKS'000
TETT

associate 87N 1
Share of post-acquisition loss and FEUWERER X
other comprehensive expense Hth2mEBEx ™M
Amount due from an associate (Note (i) FEUW— Bt = A B FRIE
(B3 5% () 5987
Less: Loss allocated in excess of cost B IENBEEBIEESR
of investment £ B =N (2,349)
3,638

1R2022F 53  AEER—RIBIUE=
HHERBEQADHN 2D B
733,527,000 70 BE DL ERHIE
111,00078 7 GRINMIEE7FAIRER) ©

In May 2022, the Group disposed of the entire interest in the
associate to an independent third party at a consideration of
HKS$3,527,000, resulting in the recognition of a loss on disposal
of HKS$111,000 as disclosed in note 7.

As at 30 September 2021, the Group had interest in the 7520219 9830H » K& E K T 5 B
following associate: ENEERRER !

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital held by
the Group
FERRFEZ
BEfTRAEELH
2022 2021
(Note (i)
(HfE2 (i)

Form of
business
structure

Class of
share held

Place of

Name of entity incorporation Principal activity

EBERERS  HARMAINE

FisRi Y

TEXEE

Boom High Investment Limited (“Boom High")  Incorporated BVI Ordinary shares - 28%  Investment holding
BEREERRA(EX)) SRR I HERUEE EBk REER
Notes: Htat:
() The amount due from an associate was unsecured, non-interest () RER—EBESABHRERERE %
bearing and repayable on demand. ERBEREE -
(i)~ The Group was able to exercise significant influence over Boom (i)  HAR0NEFEXREERESXZHMBERE

BORERERBIB20% 2R M M
FEEERZESRZIESF > HEE
AN XITEEARESN -

High because it had more than 20% voting rights in its financial
and operating policy decisions and the Group was entitled to
appoint a director in Boom High in 2021.
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4R 5 W55 4R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 #; Z£2022F9830H IEFE

21. OTHER ASSETS 21. Hth&EE
2022 AOVA
HKS$’000 HKS’000
F#ET FHET
Statutory and other deposits v S5 5,189
Statutory and other deposits primarily represent deposits with FEENEMBETEREFRARR
various exchanges and clearing houses. They are non-interest SGNEEFIZzEE  c ZEREAR
bearing. o
22. LOANS AND ADVANCES 22. ERRRBH

2022
HK$'000

FER

Fixed-rate loans receivable FEUE &R EE = 2,776,406

Variable-rate loans receivable EUCZFEER 239,784
3,016,190

Less: Provision for impairment AR E RS (659,426)
2,356,764

Analysed as: PR IR I

Current RENEB 1,669,893

Non-current ERENE D 686,871

2,356,764

136 Emperor Capital Group Limited £ 25 5 £ B AR AT
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2021
HKS'000
TETT

3,256,884
280,577

3,537,461
(1,026,449)

2,511,012

1,845,640
665,372

2,511,012




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

22.

LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s fixed-rate and variable-
rate loans receivable together with their remaining contractual
maturity dates are as follows:

22. BERMBRBR(E
AEEENEENERIBER
ZREEERFGHAWHHE 250
I

Fixed-rate loans receivable: FEWEEMEER:
Within one year —FR
In more than one year but no more —FERERFRN
than five years
Over five years hFE®
Past due 2 % 5
Variable-rate loans receivable: R ZFERER:
Within one year —FR
In more than one year but no more —FERERFERN
than five years
Over five years hFE®
Past due 2% 83

Details of movements in provision for impairment of loans and
advances are set out in note 40.

2022 2021
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER TERT

1,379,586 1,380,314

126,481 122,689
342,656 270,429

1,848,723 1,773,432
268,387 457,003

2,117,110 2,230,435

WAL 14,617

47,811 48,455
169,923 209,404

226,528 272,476
13,126 8,101

239,654 280,577

ERNBRHEREESES ZFIBEN
By 5E40 ©
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 #; Z£2022F9830H IEFE

22.

138

LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued)
The effective interest rates of the Group’s loans receivable are
as follows:

Effective interest rates:
BERAIE:

Fixed-rate loans receivable

per month
HH0.67%EZ 5 H3.83%

U E E M K E R

Variable-rate loans receivable
prime rate per annum

FEWF B E M

BFEREBEMNE

As at 30 September 2022, 239 (2021: 165) secured loans with
the aggregate gross amount of approximately HKS$1,596,182,000
(2021: HKS1,322,268,000) were secured by first legal charges
in respect of respective properties located in Hong Kong and
Canada. The collateral for each individual loan is sufficient
to cover the loan amount on an individual basis. They were
advanced to various independent borrowers and will be due for
repayment within 1 to 30 years (2021: 1 to 30 years).

As at 30 September 2022, loans receivable amounting to
approximately HK$787,450,000 (2021: HK$688,413,000) provided
to independent third parties of the Group, were with second or
third legal charges in respect of properties located in Hong Kong
and Canada and will be due for repayment within 1 to 30 years
(2021: 1 to 30 years) from the respective loans’ date of advance.

As at 30 September 2022, there are 14 secured loans (2021
28) with the aggregate gross amount of approximately
HKS376,185,000 (2021: HKS773,871,000). The borrowers hold
Hong Kong listed marketable securities under the securities
account in one of the Group entities. The Group has the right to
sell or require a sale of all these securities and use the proceeds
to repay the outstanding loans in the event that the borrowers fail
to pay the amount due on due date when the value of marketable
securities is sufficient to cover the margin loan amount under
the securities account. The remaining gross balance of loans
of approximately HK$256,374,000 (2021: HKS752,909,000) were
unsecured.

As at 30 September 2022 and 30 September 2021, there are
no individual (2027: nil) loans with net carrying amount, on an
individual basis, being more than 10% of the net carrying amount
of the total loans and advance.

Details of credit risk profile disclosure are set out in “'credit risk
and impairment assessment” in note 40.
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FH05%E8H383%
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prime rate per annum
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE
23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 23. EURER X

2022 2021
HK$’000 HKS'000

FAET TETT

Accounts receivable from the business % & 5%;5%?2

of dealing in securities: FE WL BR 7
Clearing houses, dealers, brokers EER R
and cash clients whIREER 42,038 102,325
Secured margin loans EREHFHFEER 2,031,389 3,594,507
IPO margin loans BRNHEEFRERN 2,408 8,900
Accounts receivable from the business KBEHESHNE B £
of dealing in futures contracts: Z FEWER X
Clearing houses, brokers and BER s KR
margin clients TRER 48,522 70,276
Accounts receivable from the business FEHT¥REXH >
of corporate finance & W BR FR 2,860 1,558
2,127,217 3,777,566
Less: provision for impairment BB E (1,435,410) (2,386,097)
691,807 1,391,469
The settlement terms of accounts receivable, except for secured HABBEFMELEZRIBERE
margin loans and IPO margin loans, arising from the business BHRAFARERNEA L BAEEFREES
of dealing in securities are two days after trade date, and of RN 2 EEHRARR ZHEME »
accounts receivable arising from the business of dealing in MEENEBEBMES 2 BUER
futures contracts are one day after trade date. MZEBHARARXZEE—H-
Normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from the RETLEME SN &fﬁ%?‘zzﬁg
business of corporate finance and placing and underwriting are WERMN EBEERLBRBES QKR
determined in accordance with the contractual terms. The Group BT o %Bﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂf‘“ ’ 2&%@?7?
seeks to maintain tight control over its outstanding accounts HEHKEERBEEREEB R
receivable from the business of corporate finance in order to WER N RIFEZEEE o
minimise the credit risk.
Details of credit risk profile disclosure are set out in “credit risk SRR RIS N2 5 B B H N M 5E40
and impairment assessment” in note 40. Z2HMEE R KRBT o
As at 30 September 2022, accounts receivable from foreign 122022498 30H » FEWUR IME 4L BRFRA
brokers denominated in Australian dollar, Renminbi, Singapore RTT -~ NREE S FTINR T ~ 2R5%  BREE K
dollar, British Pound, Euro and United States dollar were E7ostE 9 RI4%201,00058 7T (2021
approximately HK$201,000 (2021: HK$221,000), HK$6,000 (2021: £:221,0003 75) 6,000 7T (2021
HKS$170,000), HK$29,000 (2021: HKS$31,000), HKS$39,000 (2021: £ :170,000575) ~29,000%8 7T (2021
HKS$47,000), HKSNil (2021: HKS$92,000) and HKS$33,211,000 & :31,00077T) ~39,00077T (20214 :
(2021: HKS30,571,000) respectively. 47,000%7T) ~ TE 7T (20214 :92,000

HE7r) &33,211,000% 7T (20214 .
30,571,000387T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 W55 4R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 #; Z£2022F9830H IEFE

23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)
As at 30 September 2022 and 30 September 2021, no individual
account represented more than 10% of the net carrying amount
of total accounts receivable.

No ageing analysis of secured margin loans and IPO margin loans
is disclosed as in the opinion of the executive directors of the
Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the nature of this business.

The ageing analysis of the remaining balance of the accounts
receivable (before impairment) are as follows:

23.

Past due: EHA

0 — 30 days 0ZE30H

31 — 60 days 31E60H

61 — 90 days 61ZE90H

Over 90 days HB#890H
Accounts receivable which were past due B %8 88 2 18 W BR =X
Accounts receivable which were not past due >k B Hi > FE UR BR =X

24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS = GENERAL
ACCOUNTS

Pledged bank deposits

24.

ERBIRTER

The deposits of HK$160,000,000 (2021: HKS$160,000,000) with a
bank were to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group
to the extent of HK$160,000,000 (2021: HK$160,000,000), which
was not utilised as at 30 September 2022 and 30 September
2021.
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FEURBR 7R (&)
1520224 9H30H &2021F9430H »
B R AR IE(E FE WL BR AR RB AR @
FEBIBEI0% o

ARBRITEERA > BRILIEXRS
MEH REDTZHMEESK > &
WENBEARRTRERNERAH
REFRERZRE DN -

FE W BR SR B B8R CRLE BT 2 BR & DA ad
T

2022
HK$'000

2021
HKS'000

FERT TETT

1,405
452
45
518

2,420
171,739

174159

BEHRITER — —RIRA

2022
HK$’000
FER

160,000 160,000

R 17 77 30160,000,0005 7T (20214 :
160,000,000 7t) E1F % A~ & B & %
8 17 2 & & £160,000,00038 7T (2021
£ 1160,000,000% T) 2 K #8 » H K
2022498301 &% 202149830H = %
A o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £20224F9830H IEFE
25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. SRIT&EBR IR ®

Bank balances IR1T 4 ER

- segregated accounts (Note) —BIERRP (K 5E) 1,573,074 1,834,598

— general accounts and cash ——RERPANIRE 860,796 864,062

2,433,870 2,698,660
Note: The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients and Wa: TETRREEBRBREY > ~&E
other institutions in the course of the conduct of the regulated WERERFERERMNEMEEER 2
activities. These clients’ money are maintained in one or more MIE - ZEEPRMEGFER—EX
segregated bank accounts and bear interest at commercial rates. ZEBILIBITIREPANRIZEERN =X
The Group has recognised the corresponding accounts payable R AKEECHIABNTERE
to respective clients and other institutions. However, the Group PR EMEE 2 BERRR o A
currently does not have an enforceable right to offset those REBRBTEMNAFRZ ZEIR
payables with the deposits placed. HZ SRR A R BITH o

As at 30 September 2022, bank balances and cash denominated F220224E9830H ' LUR T IIE KR TS
in Australian dollar, Canadian dollar, Japanese Yen, United HE -~ E7o AR HEERFIFK Tet
States dollar, Renminbi, British Pound and Singapore dollar, are BZRITEBRKRIREDHIA%77,0004%
approximately HKS77,000 (2021: HKS84,000), HK$149,000 (2021 75 (202146 : 84,0007 7T) ~149,0004#
HKS$204,000), HKS8,000 (2021: HKS$10,000), HKS$251,957,000 75 (20214 :204,0007%875) ~ 8,000 7T
(2021: HKS$312,911,000), HKS34,200,000 (2021: HKS54,719,000), (20214 :10,000%7T) 251,957,000
HKS$7,025,000 (2021: HKS$10,000) and HKS$5,985,000 (2021 Bt (2021:312,911,00087T) ~
HKS$15,535,000) respectively. 34,200,000 75 (20214 : 54,719,000
A71) 27,025,000 7T (20214 :10,000

#7T) &5,985,000/8 7T (20214 -

15,535,000 7T) °
26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 26. F& {3 BR X

BEEBEXRGZEN

BRAK

Accounts payable from the business of
dealing in securities:

St

Clearing houses and brokers EEPT M4 8,033 18,915

Margin and cash clients FTREREER 1,484,312 1,812,086
Accounts payable from the business of HIESNESTEEE

dealing in futures contracts: I ERX -

Margin clients TRER 160,841 162,461

1,653,186 1,993,462
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022%F9830H IEFE
26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (continued)

The settlement terms of accounts payable, except for margin
clients, arising from the business of dealing in securities are
two days after trade date and accounts payable arising from the
business of dealing in futures contracts are one day after trade
date. No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the
executive directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of this business.

Accounts payable to margin and cash clients arising from the
business of dealing in securities and dealing in futures bear
interest at commercial rates, and are repayable on demand
subsequent to settlement date.

Included in accounts payable, amounts of approximately
HKS$1,573,074,000 and HKS$1,834,598,000 as at 30 September
2022 and 30 September 2021 respectively were payable to
clients and other institutions in respect of the segregated bank
balances received and held for clients and other institutions in
the course of conducting the regulated activities. However, the
Group currently does not have an enforceable right to offset these
accounts payable with the deposits placed.

As at 30 September 2022, accounts payable denominated in
Australian dollar, Japanese Yen, United States dollar, Singapore
dollar, British Pound and Renminbi were approximately
HKS72,000 (2021: HKS79,000), HKS8,000 (2021: HKS10,000),
HKS$185,540,000 (2021: HKS$247,874,000), HKS458,000 (2021:
HKS$9,631,000), HKS7,016,000 (2021: HKSNIl) and HK$21,382,000
(2021: HKS35,370,000) respectively.

27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

142

TEIEIRIRE E

Deferred tax assets

26.

27.
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FE 19 BR 7k (42
BHEEEBXEBMELE ZBNOKRR(GF
BERGRN ZEEHRSZZBEM
H> MAESNEEXHTMELEZR
TIRMZEBEHRRAXZAER—H -
TRBRITEER A > BRILIEXRS
ME REDHTZHMEESK > &
K BB I AR & DA o

B EBENMNEEEXRBMELEZ
BNFRAREERZRRTIREE
MERFHE > WARGERRZENRE
= o

MAEETSREESARETATRANE
MBI B 2 B R 1T4E R
= 52022998308 5202198 30H
2 EGRREIEBOTE N EMEES
2 FHIBEH R4 21,573,074,00058 70 K
1,834,598,00078 77 o AT » N EEEIRAF
WL AR RS IREZ ERETIR™
ZA] SR A THE ©

#2022F9830H  LURTT-HE %
ToFIE T EERARKHEZE
BRI D B4 A72,00058 7T (20214 :
79,0005 7c) ~ 8,000 7T (20214 .
10,000 7T) ~185,540,000 7T (2021
247,874,000 75) 458,000 7T
(20214E : 9,631,000 7T) ~7,016,0007%
7C (20214 1 8 7T) K&21,382,000%8 7T
(20214 : 35,370,000 7T) ©
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2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 55 R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £20224F9830H IEFE
27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (continued)

The following are the deferred tax assets recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

27. BIERIBEE (&

MEBEBEENAEHBENR:

UTBEFERBEFEHES

ZIEGE

Accelerated tax ECL
depreciation Tax loss provision
FHESR
MEMBHE REBGHE HREEG
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FERT FERT FERT
At 1 October 2020 752020410818 - 16,995 6,041 23,036
Charge to profit or loss Na8@m (HiF14)

(Note 14) - (16,995) (6,047)  (23,036)
At 30 September 2021 152021498308 - - - -
Credit to profit or loss StABR (faE14)

(Note 14) 177 - 413 590
At 30 September 2022 152022598308 177 - 413 590

28. LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities payable:

Within one year

Within a period of more than one year
but not more than two years

28. fHE &S

2022
HK$'000

FERT

ENEERE:

2021

HKS'000
THET

Less: Amount due for settlement with
12 months shown under
current liabilities

Amount due for settlement after
12 months shown under non-current
liabilities

—FRN 10,492
BE—FEBABAME
5,086
15,578
PPk =Ko
1218 BB HE >~
EEZENFIE (10,492)
TAEEREBEERBZ
1218 B 1 B H = 45
Z FE{fT 8 5,086

Emperor Capital Group Limited E 2E 5 EBHR AT
2021/2022 ANNUAL REPORT 4£E ¥k

143



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 #; Z£2022F9830H IEFE

29. SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS 29. JHEASRITER
As at 30 September 2022 and 30 September 2021, no short- 1520224 9H30H &2021F9430H »
term bank borrowings utilised were secured by bank deposits of BEGAETEREAEE 2T
the Group (note 24). All the short-term bank borrowings carried 7 RERAR (M 5E24) - FRBE B HIIRTT
interest with a range of HIBOR+2% p.a. to HIBOR+2.5% p.a. (2021: ERNEEENFLEBRTEERE
HIBOR+2% p.a. to HIBOR+2.5% p.a.). 2% ZEBBIRITRIZERENM2.5% 2 B

QONE FEBRTREREN%E
EBIBTRERBEM25% ) °

2022 2021
HK$'000 HKS'000

FER TET

The carrying amounts of bank loans HEBARERER

that contain a repayment on demand 1R BB LA T BRI
clause (shown under current liabilities) BEZIRITEM
but repayable: GIARBEE)
ZEREE:
Within one year — &R 430,000 370,000
30. BONDS ISSUED 30. BRTES

144

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TR

Current
Corporate bonds — Placing NEMEHF — B & 499,080
The Company has not issued any new tranches of corporate B E20228F M 2021F9B30HLEEFE »
bonds during the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021. RAB BT EAMMABES o
As at 30 September 2022, all corporate bonds have matured and K2022% 98308 » FRERBEIESFHEE
fully repaid. BIEA R BB R AT

Emperor Capital Group Limited £ 25 5 £ B AR AT
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

30. BONDS ISSUED (continued) 30. BRITESF (&

As at 30 September 2021, the current portion of outstanding
balance of HKS$499.1 million represented four tranches of the
corporate bonds issued under the placing agreement dated 12
April 2019 for bonds issuing with an aggregate principal amount
of up to HKS500 million. The principal amount of such bonds
with interest accrued thereon up to date of redemption were fully
repaid.

During the year ended 30 September 2021, the Company had
entered into an early redemption of nine tranches of the corporate
bonds under the placing agreement dated 11 April 2018 and
15 October 2018 for bonds issuing with an aggregate principal
amount of up to HKS900 million in November 2020, June
and August 2021 respectively. The principal amount of such
bonds together with interest accrued thereon up to the date of
redemption was fully repaid.

The above bonds were with a maturity period of 3 years from
the issue date, and the interest were paid annually in arrears with
the first interest payment date on the first anniversary date after
bond issuance. The bonds denominated in Hong Kong Dollars
carry a fixed annual interest rate with 5.25%.

Pursuant to the bond instrument of bonds placing
abovementioned, the Group could, at any time, before the
maturity date of the bonds, redeem the bonds by giving not less
than 10 business days written notice at 100% of the principal
amount of such bonds together with payment of interest
accrued thereon up to the date of redemption. The directors
considered that such early redemption option of the bonds was
not accounted for separately from the bonds since the economic
characteristics and risks of such early redemption option were
closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the
bonds. Subject to the conditions of the bond instrument, the
bondholder(s) did not have the right to request the Company to
redeem the bonds prior to the maturity date of the bonds.

Emperor Capital Group Limited E 2E 5 EBHR AT
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BiE LMESEEZESIE A&
B RESIAHAERERAZEER
DREIVEEXRCEmENRERE
HAREEZI00%EBE EELIHEARE
S AERIBELOES c EFRA
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BEENKSESERAREBSNER
R N BB T R o EEE R
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. lgas

Number of ordinary shares of Nominal value of
HK$0.01 each ordinary shares
SKREEIOETZEERRHHE LEkkizEE
2022 2021 2022 2021

HK$'000 HKS$’000
F#5 T#7

Authorised: EE
At beginning of year F1 SOOI 500,000,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
At end of year FR SOOI 500,000,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At beginning of year ¥ 6,740,845,724 6,740,845,724
At end of year R 6,740,845,724 6,740,845,724
32. SHARE OPTIONS 32. MR

The shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary resolution RABREEF2017F1826H £ 17

at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 ZARNEIREEFAELBEB—IE

January 2017 to approve the adoption of a share option scheme EERER MAERMNEAT—IE

of the Company which became effective on 27 January 2017 BERGESt B (HF2017E1827BER)
(“2017 Share Option Scheme”). A summary of the 2017 Share (MO17FEBERRRESTEI) c 2017F AR
Option Scheme is set out as follows: B 2 EHINW T :
1. Purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme 1. 2017FEMEBRRESTSIZEN
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate BAEEBENRS N B
talented eligible participants to strive for future BEHsraERBEEALRE
developments and expansion of the Group. BoABRZEENERME S o
2. Eligibility 2. GERAL
Eligible participants include employees (whether full-time SERZ2HEOEEES (TH2
or part time, including Non-executive Directors) and such BoiRE > BEFERTER)R
other eligible participants. ERMHEMEERZHEE -
3. Shares available for issue under the 2017 3. 20175 MBI tETEITE T A
Share Option Scheme 3% 17 A2 1
()  Total number of shares: 674,084,572 shares, (i & T" 48 81 674,084,5728%
representing 10% of the total number of issued B&19 » 1LFR20178E1826H
shares as at 26 January 2017, being the date of (BP 48 38 K 4920174 B .
passing the resolution for adoption of the 2017 Share BEEIZ AZEEH BE
Option Scheme. TR 42 810% ©

(i)  Percentage of the issued shares that it represents: (i) EEFETROGBEDE: K
10% as at 20 December 2022. 2022512 820H A&10% ©
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £20224F9830H IEFE
32. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

4.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible

participant under the 2017 Share Option

Scheme

(i) in aggregate not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue
in any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders; and

(i) options granted to substantial shareholders or
Independent Non-executive Directors or their
respective associates in any 712-month period
exceeding the higher of 0.1% of the shares in
issue and with an aggregate value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the shareholders
of the Company.

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the Board but in any event no
exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

(i)  Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HKS1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant;

(iii)  Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price:
The exercise price is determined by the Board (subject
to adjustment) and will not be less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer date;
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date;
and (i) the nominal value of a share.

The remaining life of the 2017 Share Option
Scheme:
Approximately 5 years (expiring on 26 January 2027).

Emperor Capital Group Limited E 25 5 EBE R QT
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32.

33.

148

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

During the years ended 30 September 2021 and 2022,
no option was granted, exercised, cancelled or remained
outstanding under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and no
share-based payment expenses have been recognised in both
current and prior years.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of independent trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of
the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the
ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new
employees joining the Group on or after 1T December 2000 are
required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the profit or loss
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there are
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At 30 September 2021 and 30 September 2022, no forfeited
contributions arose upon employees leaving the ORSO Scheme.

Emperor Capital Group Limited £ 25 5 £ B AR AT
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s loans and
borrowings arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

Bond interest

34.

MEZBEENERNEIR

TRFLAEERETHELENE
MRERES BREENIFRE
2y METHELENERSER
RBeRBNBEANRKEEZRER
EAEENGERERAERTNE
SRELTHEERENEGR -

PEVELI
(included Short-
in other term bank Lease
creditors) borrowings  Bonds issued liabilities
13 R %% 2
(A Hfth
EfiRTS) HHBTER SBTRS HEAR Wt
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TERT FTHET THET TER TERT
At 1 October 2020 522020410 81H 29,892 2,371,000 1,394,604 23,418 3818914
Financing cash flows RERSTE (75,693) (2,001,000) (899,870) (11,347) (2,987910)
Interest expense FEXH 50,570 - 4,346 598 55,514
New leases entered AL - - - 2909 2909
At 30 September 2021 1£2021%9530H 4,769 370,000 499,080 15,578 889,427
Financing cash flows RERESTE (19,038) 60,000 (500,000) (11,393) (470,431)
Interest expense FELH 14,269 - 920 350 15,539
New leases entered AL - - - 3,251 3,251
At 30 September 2022 15202298308 - 430,000 - 7,786 437,786
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 W55 4R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 # ZE202259830H [EFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. AEALRS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (@ FBRRZFHBREEM ﬁlﬁj\ﬁﬁ
these financial statements, the Group had the following M2 X F5 > KEBHREE
significant transactions with related parties: ATETTHNEARRS:
2021
HKS'000 HKS'000
T#ER FTAET
()  Corporate finance advisory iy MBEEAFIWRRZ
services fee income from PERMEBERE
related companies (notes 3 & 5) BWA (M 53%5) 2,730
(i) Sharing of information technology (i) D EBETRERT
services and administrative BENB &M
expenses paid and payable B R % R ATE
to related companies (note 2) &R MH2) 10,396
(i)  Commission and brokerage (i)  mTFHWEEE &
income from BB A
— a related company (notes 3 & 5) - —HEEEAT
(M &3%5) 39
- directors of the Company -AREIZEE
(note 3) (Ht53) 9
(iv)  Printing, advertising and (iv) MEAEABSMENR
promotion expenses to related EEhEGER
companies (notes 2 & 5) (K322 125) 614
(V) Accounts payable to marginand (V) HHEBEBFELZ
cash clients arising from BUAFRLEEER
business of dealing in securities 2R
by
- an associate - —EHEAT 11,534
- directors of the Company -AREIZEE
(notes 1 & 2) (HtaE1R2) 1934
13,468
(vi)  Rental deposits and other deposits (vi) RBEATRZTHESE
paid to related companies rEehHEMEE
(notes 2, 4 & 5) (Ht322 ~ 455) 3,271
(vii) Interest expense from lease (viii ENBEQAHEEZ
payable to related companies FMEZH
(notes 3, 5 & 6) (W53 ~ 55%6) 552
(viil) Lease liabilities payable to related  (vii) FEIEAEAT Z
companies (notes 3, 5 & 6) HE&R
(H1a#3 ~ 556) 14,674

Emperor Capital Group Limited 2 £ &
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £20224F9830H IEFE
35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(continued)

(@)

(b)

Notes:

M

For the transactions with the director(s) of the Company,
the directors include a director who is one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the relevant private discretionary trust
set up by Dr. Albert Yeung who is the deemed controlling
shareholder of the Company.

These transactions are connected transactions exempted
from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.33 of
the Listing Rules.

These transactions are disclosable continuing connected
transactions (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules) of the Company, details of which have been set out
in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
under “Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements, Contracts and Connected Transactions” of
the Directors’ Report. The directors confirmed that the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

This amount represents refundable rental deposits and other
deposits paid for the continuing connected transactions
as set out in item 1 of the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” under “Directors’ Material Interests
in Transactions, Arrangements, Contracts and Connected
Transactions” of the Director’s Report.

The related companies are ultimately controlled by a relevant
private discretionary trust set up by Dr. Albert Yeung who is
the deemed controlling shareholder of the Company.

During the current year, interest expenses of HK$309,000
(2021: HKS$552,000) were incurred in relation to lease
payable to related companies. As at 30 September
2022, lease liabilities payable to related companies was
HKS$4,968,000 (2021: HKS14,674,000) and the corresponding
carrying amount (before impairment allowances) of
the right-of-use assets was HKS$4,551,000 (2021:
HKS$14,873,000). The total cash outflow for leases with
related companies for the year ended 30 September 2022
was HKS$9,903,000 (2021: HKS10,073,000) in accordance
with the relevant rental agreements.

The compensation to directors and key management
personnel was disclosed in notes 11 and 12.

Emperor Capital Group Limited 2 £ 35
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S
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36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30
September 2021 and 2022 are as follows:

36. EEMEBE AT
JR20214F K22022F9830H » A A F
TBHBABZHBENT:

Proportion of

Place of Issued and fully nominal value of

Name of subsidiary

MELE A

incorporation/
operation

MM
XA

paid capital/

registered capital

EETRARE
BEx iiMES

issued share capital
held by the Company
TLARBEZEHT
R E{E L

30.9.2022
%

30.9.2021
)

Principal activities

TEXRE

Easy Facility Limited Hong Kong & 78 HKS1 100 100 Provision of money lending services
SHMEERRE THTT REEHRS
Emperor Asset Management Limited ~ Hong Kong & 7 HKS7,000,000 100 100 Provision of asset management services
HREEEEEBRLA 7,000,000 7t REEEBERS
Emperor Capital Limited Hong Kong & 78 HK$10,000,000 100 100 Provision of corporate finance advisory
HEMEBRAT 10,000,0007% 7t services
RECEMEERRS
Emperor Capital (China) Limited Hong Kong & & HK$100,000 100 100 Provision of promotion and marketing
HERFPEEXBERAT 100,000% 7T services in the PRC
KRPEREEERTHEERS
Emperor Finance Limited Hong Kong & 78 HKS2 100 100 Provision of money lending services
HEMBERAF 287 REEHRRS
Emperor Futures Limited Hong Kong &7  HKS$50,000,000 100 100 Provision of futures brokerage services
HEHEBRAT 50,000,000 7t RUBELLRS
Emperor Prestige Credit Limited Hong Kong & 78 HKS$1,000,000 100 100 Provision of money lending services
HEFHEEERAT 1,000,000 7t REEHRRS
Emperor Securities Limited Hong Kong &7#  HKS$900,000,000 100 100 Provision of securities brokerage
HEFSEH)BRAF 900,000,000 7T services and margin financing
services
RESSELERBRIFERERS
Emperor Wealth Management Limited  Hong Kong & HK$6,500,000 100 100 Provision of insurance and other
HEMEEEBRAR 6,500,000% 75 brokerage Services
17 IR b B E A8 42 IR 75
Honour Fine Limited Hong Kong & 7 HKS1 100 = Provision of online platform media
TBRERAT BT services
REAGTAERRS
WAFEEHEH (LB BRATH PRC # HK$1,000,000 100 100 Business development in the PRC
1,000,000 7t RAEETEBER
HERELRHUR)BRABDH PRC HK$1,000,000 100 100 Business development in the PRC
1,000,000 7t RABEETEBER
HERELZHORINBRAZ4 PRC HK$500,000 100 100 Business development in the PRC
500,000 7t RRBEETEBER
# The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise. # ZBAB T EEE RS -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, EREIHMTESRATELER
in the opinion of the executive directors, principally affected the EEXENEEFEZARTANBL
results or net assets of the Group. g e

To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

HITEFERS

SAESIFE B A

AEENREBRARAE -

executive directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

KARFEERIANFER (L AIEFRE
;%%g%@aﬁ%ﬁfﬂﬂ%%%z%
%55 °

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year, or at any time during the year.
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37. SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 37. XA EEHHE

COMPANY

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary

Subordinated loan due from a

FRBEE
R—RENBARZRE
Bl —EREREZ

subsidiary BEER
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG
Tax recoverable A] [o] W #3 18
Other assets HM&EE
Bank balances and cash IRITHGNIRE
Current liabilities mEaE

Other creditors and accrued

Hth & 1 BR 7R % FE 5t

charges &HA
Amount due to a subsidiary EN—ERBARZ
I
Bonds issued BETES
Short-term bank borrowings FRHARIT A
Net current assets mEEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBERE
Net assets BEZFE
Capital and reserves BARN B
Share capital & 2
Reserves # &
Total equity (Note) T %% 4B 88 (A7 32)

Emperor Capital Group Limited

219,003

2,150,000
2,369,003

2,917,825
14,944
220
18,549
2,951,538

1,497

1,995,953

430,000
2,427,450
524,088
2,893,091
2,893,091

67,408

2,825,683

2,893,091

REFZHFEEBRRA
2021/2022 ANNUAL REPORT £ ¥}

2021

HKS'000

TET

219,003

2,150,000

2,369,003

3,267,033
1,386
207
36,936

3,305,562

13,016

1,882,106
497,605
370,000

2,762,727

542,835

2,911,838

2,911,838

67,408
2,844,430

2,911,838
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37. SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 37. "G FEEHINE (&
COMPANY (continued)

Note: By &t
Retained
profits
Share Share Special (accumulated
capital premium reserve losses) Total
R iEF
BEx RBHzEE SHNRE (RstEs18) 4t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHET F#ET T#T FTHET
At 1 October 2020 #22020%1081H 67,408 3,184,623 101,953 164,088 3,518,072
Loss and total comprehensive E£ERENEZE
expense for the year B 4R %R - - - (606,234)  (606,234)
At 30 September 2021 2202198 30H 67,408 3,184,623 101,953 (442,146) 2,911,838
Loss and total comprehensive FEBENREE
expense for the year B S 4R AR - - - (18,747) (18,747)
At 30 September 2022 520224 9530H 67,408 3,184,623 101,953 (460,893) 2,893,091
Special reserve represents the difference between nominal value of the NAHEBIEARANBABDBEETEER
ordinary shares of the subsidiaries of the Company in issue and the Z2EBEEARBRER2007F4B2B2 &
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company for acquisition of a EEAMKE—BWBABDMETZRS
subsidiary pursuant to a group reorganisation on 2 April 2007. EEREZZEEE -

154 Emperor Capital Group Limited EE2F 5 E B AR AT
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. XA EIR

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists
of debts, which include short-term bank borrowings as disclosed
in respective note (2021: short-term bank borrowings and bonds
issued as disclosed in respective notes), and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves as set out on the consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and respective notes. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from the prior year.

The management reviews the capital structure by considering the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the share capital.
In view of this, the Group manages its overall capital structure
through the drawdown and repayment of bank borrowings, issue
of bonds, payment of dividends and issue of share capital.

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated Subsidiaries”)
are registered with Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC")
for the business they operate in. The Regulated Subsidiaries
are subject to liquid capital requirements under Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R”) adopted by
the SFC. Under the SF(FR)R, the Regulated Subsidiaries must
maintain their liquid capital in excess of HKS3 million or 5% of
their total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher. The required
information is filed with SFC on a monthly basis.

Another subsidiary of the Group was licensed with the Insurance
Authority. It is required to maintain a minimum net asset value of
HKS$100,000 for the period from 1 October 2021 to 31 December
20271 and HK$300,000 for the period from 1 January 2022 to 30
September 2022.

Emperor Capital Group Limited E 2E 5 EBHR AT
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FAEBEEHEELR  UBRERAEH
CERRENEERTELKEREE
KE  RREBREBLES KBRS
FERETRREZERE AR A&
B EARBEREER (BEEHIE
17 8 7R (360 90 48 A B 5E AT 32 B8)) (2021
FIRPARTERREETES @A
MM EEPIIRER)) NAERTEE AR
HEZ(BEEEVFERRIR HS
BoEHRNSENEMHE 2%
TRAERGER) AEBEZBEREK
BEFEESTE -

EEEEBEREARNAERRKZEE
BERIR S BAZRE - BRI > &
EEEBRNNREBRRITENR ¥
TRERF - XAREREBETREAEE
HEBERRERE -

FEBETHBEARD(RREWER
B)MKREEEZEXHFRREFRAE
EHERLZER(BER)EM - %
REMBABABTERGRRMNZ
&R IE (BB ER) RA (TSF(FR)
R) ZRBEAMTE ° RIESF(FRIR >
ERENBRAAEREREZRY
B A8 53,000,000% 7T 3 K F 2 &
AEEEBEZS% UBRSERE) -
FIREENRARREESRR -

rEES—FENBLARFEREES
ERZERE - ZMBABAEKRE2021
F10818 ¥ £2021%128318 1k 87
B & B2022F181H & £20224F94
R LEAE AR REEEFE
100,0007% 7T %2 300,000 7T ©
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39.

156

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES OFFSETTING

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial
assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers
similar financial instruments that are either:

offset in the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position; or

not offset in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited (“HKSCC") and brokers, the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off the money obligations receivable and
payable with HKSCC and brokers on the same settlement date
and the Group intends to settle on a net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
the accounts receivable and payable with brokerage clients that
are due to be settled on the same date and the Group intends
to settle these balances on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the same date
which are being offset, amounts due from/to HKSCC, dealers,
brokers and brokerage clients that are not to be settled on the
same date, financial collateral including cash and securities
received by the Group, deposit placed with HKSCC and brokers do
not meet the criteria for offsetting in the consolidated statement
of financial position since the right of set-off of the recognised
amounts is only enforceable following an event of default.

Emperor Capital Group Limited EE2F 5 E B AR AT
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 #; Z 2022498300 I FE
39. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES OFFSETTING (continued)

As at 30 September 2022

Financial assets

Amounts due from
clearing house,

Gross
amounts

of recognised
financial
assets

EREERM
BEZUE
HK$'000
TER

EHMEE

LGN
XEEELA

dealers, brokers and PESES
brokerage clients ERZHA 776,450
Deposits placed with BRREEmz &S

clearing house

5,189

Financial liabilities

Amounts due to clearing
house, dealers,
brokers and brokerage
clients

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
liabilities

EREERM
AfRzHE
HK$'000
TR

THaE

FEREHEF
REHBEA
SEERES
RRZHA 1,737,829

Gross
amounts

of recognised
financial
liabilities

set off in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position
KiZEME
iR 7 R PO IEE 8
ZEHRER
NP4 k]
HK$'000
F#ERT

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
assets set

off in the
consolidated
statement

of financial
position
KiZEME
iR 7 R P IEE 8
ZEHAER
BEZHE
HK$'000
FT#ERT

3. EMEEAERMAMRZIEN

(#)

15202259H30H

Related amounts not set off
Net amounts in the consolidated statement
of financial of financial position
assets LEMRGEMBERARA
presented g CA ]
in the
consolidated
statement of
financial Financial Collateral

position instruments received Net amount

&G M

kiR EA

EFZzER
BEZRH EMIA CEWERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER

691,807 (14,831) (602,123)

5,189

Net amounts  Related amounts not set off
of financial in the consolidated statement
liabilities of financial position
presented I EEEZAHBERARA
in the I ZBRRIE
consolidated
statement
of financial Financial Collateral

#H
HK$'000
TR

position  instruments pledged Net amount

R ARG M

kiR EA

EFzER
ARz B8 EMIA EWERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER

#H
HK$'000
TET

(1,653,186) 1,638,355

Emperor Capital Group Limited ZE2F 5 £ B AR A G
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 &, F 2022498300 I FE
39. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES OFFSETTING (continued)

As at 30 September 2021

Financial assets

Amounts due from
clearing house,

Gross amounts
of recognised

financial
assets

TET

EWEER
RBEELEA

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
liabilities set
off in the
consolidated
statement
of financial
position
REEHMH
iR 2R P 18R
2B f
8Bz
HKS$'000
TET

39. &

/=

72021498 30H

Net amounts of
financial assets
presented

in the
consolidated
statement

of financial
position
L
L
2z €/
BEZFH
HKS'000
THER

Related amounts not set off
in the consolidated statement
of financial position
L ERGEHBRARA
W iH 2 B SIE

Collateral
received

Financial
instruments

Bl R @
HKS'000
TER

EWMIA
HK$'000
TAT

MEELEMARZIEN

(#)

Net amount

28
HKS'000
TET

dealers, brokers and PESES

brokerage clients BEZHE 1,575,660 (184,197) 1,391,469 (63,795) (1,212,556) 115118
Deposits placed with BHRREEmZEZE

clearing house 10,126 - 10,126 - - 10,126

Financial liabilities

Amounts due to clearing
house, dealers,
brokers and brokerage
clients

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
EDIES

8 |
HK$'000
TET

THERE

e HFR
REEELEA
RELEH

ERZHE 2,177,653

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial assets
set off in the
consolidated
statement

of financial
position
REEHMH

R 7 A3 86

HK$'000
TET

(184,191)

Net amounts
of financial
liabilities
presented

in the
consolidated
statement
of financial
position
REEHMH
L
5z &/
=4 &
HK$'000
TER

1,993,462

Related amounts not set off in
the consolidated statement of
financial position
RERBRARA
K 3H 2 HEMRE

Collateral
pledged

Financial
instruments

Bl @
HK$'000
TER

$HMIA
HK$'000
TAT

(63,795) -

Net amount

FE8
HK$'000
TET

1929,667
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. R EM EIEEERKE

AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include other debtors
and deposits, accounts receivable, loans and advances, amount
due from an associate, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits, accounts payable, short-term bank borrowings, lease
liabilities, bonds issued and other creditors. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in
foreign exchange rates relating to receivables from and payables
to foreign brokers and foreign currency deposits with banks.
The management monitors foreign exchange exposures and will
consider hedging significant foreign exchange exposures should
the need arises.

It is the Group's policy for each operating entity to operate in local
currencies as far as possible to minimise currency risks. Most
of the Group’s principal businesses are conducted and recorded
in Hong Kong dollar, the functional currency of respective group
entities, except for certain receivables from and payables to
foreign brokers and bank deposits which are denominated in
Australian dollar, Canadian dollar, United States dollar, Renminbi,
Japanese Yen, British Pound and Singapore dollar (see notes 23,
25 and 26 for details). The executive directors of the Company
considered that the effect of currency risk is insignificant as
the Group has minimal exposure in Australian dollar, Renminbi,
Japanese Yen, Euro, British Pound and Singapore dollar and
there is the linked exchange rate system of Hong Kong dollar
against United States dollar. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis
in relation to foreign currency exposure has been carried out by
the management.

Emperor Capital Group Limited E 2E 5 EBHR AT
2021/2022 ANNUAL REPORT 4£E ¥k

AEETESHITESFEHEMBUR
RRTFER ~ BUERR ~ ERREBR
W —HEBMEATD ZHIE RITHE
BRRIRE - BEAERTER - B
M RRHRTER  HEARE - B%
TESFMEMEMIRR - ZFERT
BZHBRBERSBZMEE - B2FE
TR T RA R B K 0 1a R &
FREZzERHHNNT  -EEEE
BLERZSAR  UEERERUE
MANEKMBERN

™ 315 B

B mpE

& W E B 7 (K] BB R K FE AT R 1R Sh
MR ZERARIIBRTERERAZ
SNEERAFEEPABR 2 EBERER -
EEEERINERRE > THRNER
EREPERIERRE -

AEERSEECEERERNZER
HEAENEMERLE  KINER
BER/NME e FEBZREZBHBETEXRH
UBT(REEEEBRZINEER)E
TR AR S T U K AT 5% 5
ML Z IR RIBITERLURTT
ERTETARE - HE -~ HiE
R0 oo st E R oh (FF 18 R 5£23
S 25K226) o KRB HITEERA
MR AERLORT - AR ~ HE
BN~ HEBRAMKTETZIRZER
DU KRBT EE T I 2 ERFIE
SNEERIEEREATE Al
EEBUEMIIERARETEMNR
RLE D o

159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 W55 4R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Cash flow interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate accounts receivable, bank balances, loans and
advances, accounts payable and short-term bank borrowings

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly relates to the
fluctuation of Prime Rate arising from the Group’s accounts
receivable and loans and advances, market savings interest rate
arising from the Group’s bank balances and HIBOR arising from
Group's short-term bank borrowings. The Group’s exposure
to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are
detailed below.

Financial instruments bearing variable interest rates in
nature

Assets BE

Accounts receivable [ UL BR =X

Loans and advances ERRBR

Bank balances R 1T 45 BR
Liabilities =R

Short-term bank borrowings FHRIRITE M

160 Emperor Capital Group Limited E 25 5 £ B AR AT
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Cash flow interest rate risk (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period
and it is assumed that the amount of the above assets and
liabilities at the end of the reporting period was in existence
for the whole year and all other variables were held constant
throughout the respective year. A 50 basis point (2021: 50 basis
point) change represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates in respect of variable
rate accounts receivable, loans and advances, bank balances and
short-term bank borrowings.

Change in basis points

+50
HKS$’000
FHER

KEEBRRE
&5 18R D
(B h0)

Decrease (increase) in loss
after tax for the year

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the market interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate benchmark reform

As disclosed in note 2, the short-term bank borrowings of the
Group will be subject to the interest rate benchmark reform.
The Company is closely monitoring the market and managing
the transition to new benchmark interest rates, including
announcements made by the relevant IBOR regulators.

HIBOR

As at 30 September 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings of
HKS$430,000,000 are bearing interest indexed to HIBOR. Based
on the assessment of the management, HIBOR will continue to
be used until maturity of the terms.

Emperor Capital Group Limited E 2E 5 EBHR AT
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EEERR > HRERFIEHZ AR
WA RRENFIESZ R > 815
NERBZBREDRAERRE -

FIEBEMNE

LN B SE2FT IR EE 0 AE AV HAIR
TEFTEZHFEEENERRR o
ARBBERYERTHIEER
FEEREMNIBEB K BIEHEE
IBOREEEMBEEMN QG o

&BRITIRIE 7 E
18202249830 » AEERIRITE
430,000,000 TR EBIRITEE
FRESRE - REBEEBT(GE  HE
BEREBRTRAXHFEEERR
ZUH o

161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 B 35 R R M 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40.

162

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has a delegated team to compile the
credit and risk management policies, to approve credit limits
and to determine any debt recovery action on those delinquent
receivables. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group 's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk by any single debtor as the exposure
is spread over a number of individual and institutional customers,
except for the loans and advances and accounts receivable as
disclosed in notes 22 and 23.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

THEMREEBRREE

(#7)

Féﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HEHFARERBTREFZEE > &
%%ﬁ%*ﬁaﬁﬁm%rﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf
ZEAEERBRA/GEEGMHIKRRTE
FiEizzSEEZREE ARE
ERB&ENML AEEEEEZIK
—XEEK EEmRECEERARE
BHRR UMECGERBEREEH
ZEHEREWER R BUE AW ERTT
B o IO AEBPRBRSHRES S
18 5! FE UL AR TR 2 FT IR (Bl = 88 - LUFE R

LA W Bl FRIE 1R R 50 R (B S 18
2 o
AEEZRMBBE D ZETEER
FEMRES ° K%li#xﬁﬁﬁ:ﬁ%
—RURREREREERR > LT}
AR D BZ 1I1l/\7>’z’f%!%7i‘%%)f"

MW E2N23MEBEBZER R BN
& U BR SR BR Sb o

A3 F 75 2 A E R E SRS

7‘%?—71;1*3? ZE RS ZIRTT

HEI E/TZTIZI,\ IZEA/D\EBE °

AEBENRNEEERRTREEN
THER

Internal credit rating Description ECL categories

P BB 1S & 5T 4R $ii 3t FHEEREER

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and 12m ECL
does not have any past-due amounts or debtor
frequently repays after due dates in full

15 & Bz HFFNENRBREEETMBEMRE B 12ERBEHREERE
BAKERINHARTHER

Medium risk There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL — not
risk since initial recognition through information credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources

R E R g REANFERXIIBER > EERREGE ZHABEEBE-
e A ME 1B 0 TRZELEEERE

High risk There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired impaired

= R BERBRIEEHREERE 2HAREEEE-

BELEEERE
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. %n§HP§IEE$“&H$

TERE Y FL2022F9830H &20214F
OR30HASEEmEEREERE

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group'’s
financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment as at 30
September 2022 and 30 September 2021:

Internal
credit rating 12m or lifetime ECL
R & L E R A ]

Financial assets at amortised cost

REHREHEZZHEE
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments Low risk 12m ECL
(notes (1) & (i)
EMBEURT  BERBARBE M ()R() EER NERRHEEEE
Amount due from an associate (note (i) 20 Low risk 12m ECL
FE— B AR SE (W22 (1) EER NERRHEEER
Loans and advances 22 Low risk 12m ECL
ENRER BRR NERRHEEERS
Medium risk Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired
TERR EHRBEEER-IALEEEHE
High risk Lifetime ECL ~ credit-impaired
BER EHRBEERR-CELEEARE
Accounts receivable = secured margin loans 23 Low risk 12m ECL
EWER - ERAREEN BRR NERRHESES
Medium risk Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired
TERR EHRBEEER-IREEEEHE
High risk Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
BER EHRBEERA-CRLEEHE
Accounts receivable - others (Note (i) 23 Low/Medium risk  Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired
YIRS - Bt (W22 (1) &/ wERR EHRBEEBR-TARELESHRE
High risk Lifetime ECL - creditimpaired
BER EHRBEERR-CELEEAE
P\edged hank deposits — general accounts (note (ij)) 2 Low risk 12m ECL
BERRTER-—RERR (W) ERR NERBHEEESR
Bank balances and cash - segregated accounts 25 Low risk 12m ECL
(note (i) RER NEABBEESRE
BTEBRREE-BLRA (W)
Bank balances and cash ~ general accounts 25 Low risk 12m ECL
EER NERREHEEESE

(note (i)
BAEERRE-—RER (L))

Notes:

(i) Prepayments of HK$1,711,000 (2021: HK$1,069,000) under other
debtors, deposits and prepayments were not classified as financial
assets at amortised cost.

(i) The directors of the Company consider the impacts of the ECL are
immaterial to the Group and no reconciliation loss allowances have
been prepared.
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EBEEILZEER

2022 Gross carrying amount
2022

HK$'000
TiER

(i)

1,446,459
256,177

1,313,554

260,749
2,055

1,768,585

RE4E

HKS'000
TiEn

3,016,190

2,031,389

160,000

1,573,074

860,796

AR

1,543,249
110,719

1,883,493

87,340
410,349

3,096,818

181,501

1,558

8,038

3,638

3,537,461

3,594,507
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AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The estimated default rates for each class of financial assets
are estimated based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the respective class of financial assets and are
adjusted for forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including macroeconomic data such as
GDP Growth, unemployment, benchmark interest rates and house
prices. The identification of internal credit rating for individual
financial assets is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific financial assets is updated.

Definition of 12m ECL, Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) and
Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) are as below:

12m ECL (stage 1): Exposures where there have not
been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition and
that are not credit-impaired upon
origination, the portion of the lifetime
ECL associated with the probability
of default events occurring within the

next 12 months is recognised.

Lifetime ECL Exposures where there have been a
(not credit-impaired)  significant increase in credit risk since

(stage 2): initial recognition but are not credit-
impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting
the remaining lifetime of the financial
asset) is recognised.

Lifetime ECL Exposures are assessed as credit-

(credit-impaired) impaired when one or more events

(stage 3): that have a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of that
asset have occurred. For exposures
that have become credit-impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recognised and interest
revenue is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (gross carrying amount net
of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount from the beginning of
the subsequent reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. £l A EIHEEHIERBE
AND POLICIES (continued) =

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The Management determines staging of financial assets subject
to ECL assessment based on quantitative and qualitative factors,
if applicable, including overdue period of interest and principal,
change in fair value of pledged listed securities or properties that
triggered the margin calls for additional collateral or constituted
events of breach of contracts respectively, and status of margin
calls.

The following tables show reconciliation of gross carrying
amount and loss allowances that has been recognised for loans
and advances and accounts receivable from margin client.
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For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. M EAMGEEEENREE

AND POLICIES (continued) (#)

Credit risk and impairment assessment f“fé 2 B Bz iR B 5F (k (&)
(continued)

Loans and advances — loss allowance BaRBR—EIEEE

30 September 2022 202259H30H

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired)

B
ERGA 2MABER
2@ AT BAEEE
ERSH EHHE)  EREE) @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#R  FER AR TR
(Note(})
(W)

Loss allowance as at 1 October 2021 BK2021E1081HZ BRAE b 1,020,230 1,026,449
Changes in the loss allowance due to financial ~ 72021108 1HREREEEL 2
assets as at 1 October 2021 BEREEY
= Transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL —M128 8 ik HEERE Eﬁ*i % #
(not credit-impaired) BHEEBER(IREEEEHE)
- Transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL - EE12 BERBEES ?ﬁ@ﬁ’m’\ﬁ %
(credit-impaired) (Note (i) BEEFE(CEEEERE) (/WE())
- Transfer from lifetime ECL (not credit- ~HEMBEREERRMARERS
impaired) to lifetime ECL HEBREHENEOER
(credit-impaired) (Note (i) (BREEEREB) /f/fu}“(//))

- Transfer from lifetime ECL (not credit- -HENENEERR(IAREREE
impaired) to 12m ECL AESEENEARAE é@i?@

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising -EREARBESERARAE2MAME

from financial assets transferred from BB %?é‘ f ERE) ZERME
12m ECL to lifetime ECL (not credit- EFMEL BBEEFE BN E
impaired) 8

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from —HREAESEEEREREL MR

financial assets transferred from 12m EEBEBREESD TE) ZEHE
ECL to lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) EMELZBHEEERZER
(Note (i) SHEFBMEN)

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from -HEMEHEERE (URELEEHE)

financial assets transferred from lifetime BRENENEEER(CEEEE
ECL (not credit-impaired) to lifetime RE)ZEREEMEL ZBHBEE
ECL (credit-impaired) (Note (i) BEZENFNEFRWZ)0)

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from -HEHENEEEE (AL LEEEHE)

financial assets transferred from BEEEARNLEEEZeREE
lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) to MEL BEESFE BN E R
12m ECL

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from -MEEBEHREERB(CELEEERRE)

financial assets transferred from lifetime BREZDEARNEERE SHER
ECL (credit-impaired) to 12m ECL FEEEBEEFE EN I BEE
- Net remeasurement of ECL due to change 5 E ERgamAEKEBE s BH
in credit risk without transfer of stage EEBBZEMS2FE M ()
(Note (iv)) 208,469 209,410
New financial assets originated or purchased ~ E45REAZH S/ E E (0122 (i)

(Note (i) 3,853 4,836
Financial assets that have been derecognised ~ BRIEEDZ 2BEE (2,064) (2,548)
Transferred to accounts receivable from secured % ﬁk i EUBRRARRAEN

margin clients (Note (v)) Wit (v) (264,074) (264,074)
Written off of financial assets (Note (Vi) Wﬁé%nﬁﬁ%(ﬂ/ﬁi{v&) (421,022) (421,022)
As at 30 September 2022 12022698308 ) 656,572 659,426

e o A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 55 R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. £l A EIHEEHIERBE

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(#7)
{2 £ LW e L M 3T 45 (49)

(continued)

Loans and advances — loss allowance (continued)

30 September 2021

BmRBrh—RHEREE)

20214 9H30H

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-

12m ECL impaired)

1EAEH
EEBHE

HKS 000
TET

HK$'000
TET

Lifetime ECL
(credit-
impaired)

HKS$’000
TH7
Note(i)

M)

+
HK$'000
TET

Loss allowance as at 1 October 2020 2020108 1R B E 25174 143 720,405 745,722
Changes in the loss allowance due to financial ~ 52020108 1HRERHEEEL 2
assets as at 1 October 2020 BEREEEY
= Transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime —E12 BRRBEERREREZ RN
ECL (not credit-impaired) FERRUXEEEERHE) (559) 559 - -
= Transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL —Eﬂ121@ﬁf§3ﬁ1 EEREAELLRE
(credit-impaired) (Note (i) FEFR(CRECERAE) W2 (16,334) - 16,334 -
- Transfer from lifetime ECL (not credit- —E%HH?EHH Ll (I%?‘ﬁ Em )
impaired) to lifetime ECL (credit- i?%’*i%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ FEEEB(BELEE
impaired) (Note (i) &) (2 (i) - (40) 40 -
- Transfer from lifetime ECL (not credit- —E%mﬁﬁﬁﬁ EFE(ABEEEERMA)
impaired) to 12m ECL BEENERRBEEER 10 (10) - -
= Transfer from lifetime ECL (creditimpaired) ~ —~H2BEBEEHRBELEEHAE)
to 12m ECL BRTNERESE *fés}a 19 - (19) -
- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from -HEARRCEREERE2HRES
financial assets transferred from 12m EERE I REER m JZEREE
ECL to lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) FELZERESFRZEFHBEE - (424) - (424)
- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from —Eﬂ121@ﬁfﬁ3ﬁ1 L5 Tﬁﬁﬁ E2HES
financial assets transferred from 12m SFACEEEENA) 2eBEE
ECL to lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) FEEEEZTEBH ] Eﬁ BZENHERHE
(Note (i)) (H#3) - - 181,328 181,328
- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from -HEHRAEERS (I%?*E{‘gm )
financial assets transferred from BREXHERCERB(BREEEE
lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) to HiE )z%nﬂééﬁﬁéizﬁ BEEHE
lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) (Note (i) ZEMAEZEME) - - 114 114
- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from -HE2ARHREERE(URELEEERE)
financial assets transferred from lifetime BRENERAMEEFHZEMEE
ECL (not credit-impaired) to 12m ECL MEL LSRR EFHESE 8) - - ®)
- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from -HE2HBRHEEFER ?XEH EHE)
financial assets transferred from lifetime BRTEREREEFE SREE
ECL (credit-impaired) to 12m ECL MELZBHE ‘5@3 }azé%ﬁu@@ﬁ (13) - - (13)
- Net remeasurement of ECL due to change -HEERREDMEREER  BHAREE
in credit risk without transfer of stage BEZERAEFEMWZ0)
(Note (iv) 134 (4 108559 108,669
New financial assets originated or purchased ~ B4 HEAZH &7 E E (2 (i)
(Note (i) 1,894 319 - 2213
Financial assets that have been derecognised ~ E&ILBAZ2REE (4,572) (49) (6,531) (11152)
As at 30 September 2021 12021498308 5,745 474 1,020,230 1,026,449
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 W55 4R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Loans and advances — loss allowance (continued)
Notes:

0) During the year ended 30 September 2022, loans and advances
with a gross carrying amount of approximately HK$179 million
(2021: HKS696 million), which were classified as stage 1 as
at beginning of the reporting period, were assessed as credit-
impaired and were transferred to stage 3. Accordingly, the
impairment allowance of approximately HKS5 million (2021:
HKS$16 million) made under 12m ECL was transferred to lifetime
ECL (credit-impaired). Additional re-measurement of impairment
allowance of approximately HKS73 million (2021: HK$181 million)
was made under lifetime ECL (credit impaired) by the management
under the individual assessment.

As at 30 September 2022, included in these exposures of
approximately HK$179 million (20271: HKS696 million) was loans
and advances with gross carrying amount of approximately
HKS106 million (2021: HKS$444 million) supported by listed
securities of the borrowers held in custody by a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and an impairment allowance of
approximately HKS57 million (2021: HKS$135 million) was made
during the year due to a decrease in the fair value of these listed
securities caused by market fluctuations. The Group has the rights
on these listed securities to repay these remaining outstanding
exposures of approximately HKS45 million (2021: HKS$309 million).

As at 30 September 2022, included in these exposures of
approximately HK$179 million (2021: HKS696 million) was loans
and advances with gross carrying amounts of approximately
HKS36 million (2021: HKS$189 million) which were partially
supported by secured properties held by the borrowers in Hong
Kong with no impairment allowances made during the year. The
Group has the rights on these secured properties held by the
borrowers in Hong Kong to repay these remaining outstanding
exposures of approximately HK$36 million (2021: HK$189 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 55 R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Loans and advances — loss allowance (continued)
Notes: (continued)

() (continued)
As at 30 September 2022, included in these exposures of
approximately HKS$179 million (2021: HKS696 million) was
unsecured loans and advances with gross carrying amounts
of approximately HKS37 million (2021: HKS63 million) and an
impairment allowance of approximately HKS16 million (2021:
HKS46 million) was made during the year.

The fair values of the properties in Canada were arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group. The fair value
was based on the market approach, by comparing recent market
transactions of similar interests located in the surrounding area
and then making adjustments to the transaction prices of the
comparables based on elements of comparison. In determining
the fair value of the relevant properties, the management work
closely with the qualified external valuer to determine appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. The
management considered that the major adjustment on the fair
value of these properties related to the adjustment relating to size,
view, location and relative quality.

As at 30 September 2022 and 2021, the fair value of the property
in Hong Kong was determined by the management under
the market approach which was based on market observable
transactions of similar interests located in the same building,
estate or village with reference to an indicative offering price from
an interested buyer. The management considered that the major
adjustment on the fair value of these properties related to the floor
level adjustment on individual floors of the property and that a
higher level would have a higher fair value.

In determining the allowances for credit-impaired loans and
advances with the pledged properties as mentioned above, the
management takes into account the fair value of collateral and
the outstanding balance of loans receivable individually taking
into account any executable settlement plan and realisation
arrangements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 #; Z£2022F9830H IEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Loans and advances — loss allowance (continued)

Notes: (continued)

170

(ii)

(iii)

During the year ended 30 September 2022, loans and advances
with gross carrying amount of approximately HK$54 million (2021:
HKS53 million), which were classified as stage 2 as at beginning
of the reporting period, were assessed as credit-impaired and
were transferred to stage 3. Accordingly, the impairment allowance
of approximately HKS0.3 million (2021: HKS0.04 million) made
under lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) was transferred to lifetime
ECL (credit-impaired). Additional re-measurement of impairment
allowance of approximately HK$33 million (2021: HKS0.1 million)
was made under lifetime ECL (credit impaired) by the management
under the individual assessment. The remaining loans and
advances of gross carrying amount of approximately HKS$20.7
million (2021: HKS$52.86 million) was supported by secured
properties held by the borrowers in Hong Kong and expected
repayments as at year end.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, impairment allowances
HKS0.9 million (2021: HKS$1.8 million) was made against new
financial assets originated or purchased under 12m ECL with the
gross carrying amount of HK$671 million (2021: HKS805 million),
which included newly granted mortgage loans, secured term loans
and unsecured loans of gross carrying amount of HKS662 million
(2021: HKS729 million), HKSNil (2021: HK$57 million) and HKS9
million (2021: HKS19 million) respectively. The 12m ECL has taken
into account the fair value of the related properties in Hong Kong
or pledged securities, if any, under the ECL model.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, impairment allowances
of HKS0.1 million (2021: HK$0.32 million) was made against new
financial assets originated or purchased under lifetime ECL (not
credit-impaired) with the gross carrying amount of HKS80 million
(2021: HKS50 million), which included newly granted mortgage
loans, secured term loan, and newly granted unsecured loans of
gross carrying amount of HKS77 million (2021: HKS$19 million),
HKSNIl (2021: HKS25 million) and HKS3 million (2021: HKS6 million)
respectively. The lifetime ECL (not-credit-impaired) has taken into
account the fair value of the related properties in Hong Kong or
pledged securities, if any, under the ECL model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 55 R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Loans and advances — loss allowance (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iiiy  (continued)

During the year ended 30 September 2022, included in the
impairment allowance of approximately HKS4 million (2021:
HKSNil) from new financial assets originated or purchased under
lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) was mainly related to the gross
carrying amount of approximately HKS87 million (2021: HKS$12
million). The loans and advances of HKS87 million as at 30
September 2022 were mainly mortgage loans of HKS$82 million
granted during the year with interest and principal overdue for
more than 90 days and were supported by secured properties held
by the borrowers with no impairment allowance made during the
year. The remaining gross carrying amount of approximately HKS5
million was unsecured loans overdue for more than 90 days as at
year end and impairment allowance of approximately HKS4 million
was made for the year, considering the expected repayment as at
year end.

(iv)  Included in impairment allowance of approximately HKS$208
million (2021: HKS109 million) recognised for those remained
under lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) are mainly due to impairment
allowance of term loans and mortgage loans approximately
HKS$163 million and HKS44 million respectively, for gross carrying
amount of approximately HKS$477 million and HKS$317 million
respectively as at 30 September 2022. Included in the term loan
impairment allowance are impairment of approximately HK$241
million as a result of further decrease in fair value of pledged listed
securities and deterioration of financial ability of the borrowers of
gross carrying amount of approximately HK$323 million as at year
end and approximately HK$372 million of gross carrying amount
were transferred out during the year (further details in note (v)), and
a reversal of impairment allowance of approximately HKS$78 million
of gross carrying amount of HKS154 million as at 30 September
2022 based on actual repayments during the year and expected
repayments from the borrowers received subsequent to year end.

During the year ended 30 September 2021, impairment allowance
of approximately HK$109 million was recognised under lifetime
ECL (credit-impaired) for term loans of gross carrying amount of
approximately HK$357 million as at 30 September 2021, which
had no transfer of stage, as a result of further decrease in fair
value pledged listed securities and deterioration of financial ability
of the borrowers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Loans and advances — loss allowance (continued)

Notes: (continued)

172

)

(vi)

(vii)

Emperor Capital Group Limited # 2

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Group executed an
account combination by transferring 16 stage 3 term loans from
Emperor Prestige Credit Limited (“"EPCL") to Emperor Securities
Limited (“ESL"), both of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group, to combine with the margin loans of the same borrowers in
ESL. Based on account opening agreement, all the assets held in
the margin accounts are charged to the margin loan by way of first
fixed charge and the Group shall be entitled at any time without
notice to combine and/or consolidate all or any of the client’s
accounts and exposures within the Group.

Through the account combination, loans and advances of gross
carrying amount and impairment allowance of approximately
HK$372,034,000 and HKS$S264,074,000 are merged with the
amount receivable of the respective margin clients.

The Group writes off loans and advances of gross carrying amount
of approximately HK$421,022,000 which has been fully impaired
during the year when there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the loans and
advances are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.

The Group has established credit policies to ensure all loans
and advances are subject to credit risk assessment and ongoing
monitoring, including evaluation of customers’ credit ratings (if
publicly available), financial background and repayment abilities.
ECL assessment is carried out based on a close monitoring
and evaluation of the collectability of individual account and on
management’s judgement, including the current creditworthiness
of the borrowers, collateral value, the past collection history and
available forward looking information. The Group had commenced
legal proceedings against borrowers of impaired loans with the
gross carrying amount totaling to approximately HK$336 million
(2021: HKS$573 million), on which provision for impairment of
approximately HKS$47 million (2021: HKS467 million) was made as
at 30 September 2022. As at the reporting date legal proceedings
are still in progress.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £20224F9830H IEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. £l A EIHEEHIERBE

AND POLICIES (continued) (#)

Credit risk and impairment assessment 1"' B R R EF R (E)
(continued)

Accounts receivable from secured margin client = loss BB AFRER IR — 518 1EE
allowance

30 September 2022

Loss allowance as at T October 2021

Changes in the loss allowance due to financial
assets as at 1 October 2021

- Transfer from lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)

to lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) (Note (i)

= Transfer from lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)

to 12m ECL

= Transfer from lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)
to 12m ECL (Note (V)

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from
financial assets transferred from 12m
ECL to lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)
(Note (i)

= Net remeasurement of ECL arising from
financial assets transferred from lifetime
ECL (not credit-impaired) to lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) (Note (ii))

= Net remeasurement of ECL arising from
financial assets transferred from lifetime
ECL (not credit-impaired) to 12m ECL

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from
financial assets transferred from lifetime

ECL (credit-impaired) to 12m ECL (Note (1)

- Net remeasurement of ECL due to change
in credit risk without transfer of
stage (Note (i)
New financial assets originated or purchased
(Note (iv))
New financial assets from account combination
(Note (vii))
Financial assets that have been derecognised
Written off of financial assets (Note vj)

202259H30H

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
2HEN
EEGH
(B REE
ERAE)
HK$'000
THER

Lifetime ECL
(credit-
impaired)
2HEN
REBHA(
BRE
EEAE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THR
(Note (i)
(Wt (i)

12BREH

BEER
HK$'000
FER

R20NFW0R1HZ BBEEE
RONFFRREREEEL 2 BREEED

2,379,213 2,382,990

~B2WRAR AR (R BELRAE)
ﬁsm%ﬁﬂﬁaﬁrgm(e%1
B 1) (K2 ()

méﬁﬁféﬁm HERAFER]
BEENEREBEEGA

-HEMBBEERRBREREHE)
BREVERRMBEEHRWEY)

—Emlﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ EFEBRE2EN
EEEREBELEEHEI 22NEE
FELZRHEEREZENTERE
(M)

~HEHRNEERE(LRELRE ‘*W)
BRFLNENEERR(CREEENE
ZEHEEMELEZANEEREL
St 8FE (W)

-HeBABEERR(IAEEEEAE)
BRENEARMEAERRZERAE
FELZRBEEREZERTERE

-HEBRBEERREELEERE)
BRENERRMEERRZEHEE
FELZRHEERRZENTERE

BHE)
2,535

59,271 (59,271)

(2,433)

As at 30 September 2022

(Wt (y) (59,271)
-AEERRESMARLEL BHEE
BBRZEMSEFBME ()
278,470 278,366
EEXRBAZTSREEWZ1y)
7 91
RAAHEEZHSBEE (I Vi)
264,074 264,074
BRIERDZEHEE (10) (445)
WHEREE M () (1,486,698)  (1,486,698)
152022495308 1,429,975 1,430,173
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022%F9830H IEFE
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. M EAMEEEENRNE

AND POLICIES (continued) (#&) N
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1"' BRI R R AT (2)
(continued)

Accounts receivable from secured margin client — loss BB AFRERIR S — 51812 E
allowance (continued) (#&

30 September 2021 20214 9H30H

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-

12m ECL impaired) impaired)
2HEH 2 HEH

) ) A5t
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL
(Note (i)
)

Loss allowance as at 1 October 2020 (Note (j) 152020108180 2 BB & & (#122() 5,007 20,631 1,698,367 1,724,005

Changes in the loss allowance due to financial ~ /20205 10F1BEREMEEEL 2 BRERET
assets as at 1 October 2020

= Transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL AR HEEEEERE2HED
(not credit-impaired) (Note () EEERAREEEREA) () (575) 575 - -
= Transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL -HNBEAERCERBERE2HRES
(credit-impaired) (Note (i) EEER(CEEEERA) (i) (808) - 808 -
- Transfer from lifetime ECL (not credit- -HEERBAEERR(UREEEERE)
impaired) to 12m ECL BREENERRBEEER 8 8) - -
= Transfer from lifetime ECL -MEHBREERR(IAREEE m )
(not credit-impaired) to lifetime ECL BT HEPEEFRCYEES
(credit-impaired) (Note (i) B (M (i) - (20,196) 20,196 -
- Net remeasurement of ECL arising - E121@ FENCEREERE BT
from financial assets transferred FERB(UAREEERNR 2/
from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL é ENELEBEABE ERE
(not credit-impaired) (Note (i) BRI - 249 - 249
- Net remeasurement of ECL arising - Eﬂ121@ ARBEERESEET RS
from financial assets transferred SEBCREEERE) 2 EREE
from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL Fﬁﬁizfﬁﬁﬁf BEEBZEMNETHE
(credit-impaired) (Note (i) (Wt (i) - - 379,230 379,230
- Net remeasurement of ECL arising -HNEREHEEFR(URELEERE)
from financial assets transferred AETEAEBESF R SHER
from 12m ECL (not credit-impaired) MELZBHEERBC ENGERH
to 12m ECL ® - - t)
- Net remeasurement of ECL arising -HEPEREEFR(IAELEEE m )
from financial assets transferred BT HEPEEFRCYEES
from lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) HE)ZSMEREFMEL BHES
to lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) BEZEHHEFE W (i)
(Note (i) - - 228729 228729
- Net remeasurement of ECL due to -AEERREEMERLER 2 REEE
change in credit risk without transfer BEZENFEFBMW W)
of stage (Note (iv)) (3) 10 (8,837) (8,830)
New financial assets originated or purchased ~ E4HBAZHEBEE M2 (1)
(Note (1) 15 2,504 60,720 63329
Financial assets that have been derecognised ~ BRIEEDZ 2BEE (3,616) (98) - (3,714)
As at 30 September 2021 12021498301 20 3,757 2,379,213 2,382,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40. £ EMEEEHIEREE
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Accounts receivable from secured margin client — loss
allowance (continued)

Notes:

()

(ii)

During the year ended 30 September 2022, accounts receivable
from secured margin clients with a gross carrying amount of
HKS120 million (2021: HKS616 million), which were classified as
stage 1 as at beginning of the reporting period, were assessed as
credit-impaired and were transferred to stage 3. Accordingly, 12m
ECL of HKSNil (2021: HKS0.81 million) was transferred to lifetime
ECL (credit-impaired) during the year ended 30 September 2022.
Additional re-measurement of impairment allowance of HKS0.6
million (2021: HKS379 million) made under lifetime ECL (credit-
impaired) was provided by the management under the individual
assessment. Additional disclosures for the stage 3 exposures and
individual assessment are detailed in footnote (viii) in this note.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, accounts receivable
from secured margin clients with a gross carrying amount of
approximately HK$371 million (2021: HKS$348 million), which were
classified as stage 2 as at beginning of the reporting period,
were assessed as credit-impaired and transferred to stage 3.
Accordingly, lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) of HKS0.7 million
(2021: HKS20 million) was transferred to lifetime ECL (credit-
impaired) during the year ended 30 September 2022. Additional
re-measurement of impairment allowance of HK$53 million (2021:
HKS$229 million) made under lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) was
provided by the management under the individual assessment.
Additional disclosure for the stage 3 exposure and individual
assessment are detailed in footnote (viii) in this note.
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{2 £ LW e L M 3T 45 (49)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Accounts receivable from secured margin client — loss
allowance (continued)

Notes: (continued)

176

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Impairment allowance of HK$278 million (2021: impairment
reversal of HKS9 million) was made under lifetime ECL (credit-
impaired) related to accounts receivable from secured margin
clients with a gross carrying amount of HKS1,414 million (2021:
HKS$1,972 million) due to a decrease (2021: increase) in fair
value of the pledged listed securities during the year ended 30
September 2022. Additional disclosures for the stage 3 exposure
and individual assessment are detailed in footnote (viii) in this note.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, new advances to
secured margin clients with gross carrying amount of HKS$17
million (2021: HKS160 million) were assessed as credit-impaired
under Stage 3 due to the decrease in fair value of the pledged
listed securities after the new advances with outstanding margin
call more than 30 days. Accordingly, an impairment allowance
of HKS7,000 (2021: HKS61 million) was made under lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) by individual assessments. Additional disclosure
for the stage 3 exposure and individual assessment are detailed
in footnote (viii) in this note.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, accounts receivables
from secured margin clients with a gross carrying amount of
HKS66 million (2021: HKSNil), which were classified as stage
3 as the beginning of the reporting period, were assessed and
transferred to stage 1 due to resumption of trading of the pledged
listed securities. Accordingly, a reversal of impairment allowance
of HKS$59 million was made under 12m ECL.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are over two years past
due, whichever occurs earlier. The Group has taken legal action
against the debtors to recover the amount due.

Details are set out in note (v) under the reconciliation of loss
allowance of loans and advances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & Z£2022F9830H IEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 40.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Accounts receivable from secured margin client = loss
allowance (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vii)

As at 30 September 2022, 100% (2021: 100%), 100% (2021: 100%),
7% (2021: 21%) of the outstanding balances in gross carrying
amount were secured by sufficient collateral for stage 1, 2 and
3 respectively. In determining the allowances for credit impaired
loans to margin clients, the management of the Group also
takes into account shortfall by comparing the fair value of listed
securities pledged as collateral and the outstanding balance of
accounts receivable from margin client individually, subsequent
settlement, executable settlement plan and restructuring
arrangements with available forward looking information.

To minimise the Group’s exposure to credit risk, the Group has a
policy for reviewing and monitoring accounts receivable without
sufficient collateral and those with default or delinquency in
interest or principal payment. ECL assessment is carried out based
on an evaluation of the collectability and ageing analysis of the
accounts and on management’s judgement including the current
creditworthiness, collateral value, the past collection history and
available forward looking information.

Management had set up the credit limits for each individual
customer which are subject to regular reviews by management.
Any extension of credit beyond these approval limits has to be
approved by relevant level of management on an individual basis
according to the exceeded amount. Impairments are also made
for those clients with shortfall as at the year end and with no
settlement or executable settlement plan and arrangement after
the year end. The Group has commenced legal proceedings
against the borrowers of these credit-impaired loans with the gross
carrying amount totalling to approximately HK$102 million (2021:
HKS$1,297 million), on which provision for impairment of HKS96
million (2021: HKS$1,187 million) was made as at 30 September
2022. As at the reporting date, the legal proceedings are still in
progress.

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flow, bank borrowings and bonds
issued are the sources of funds to finance the operations of
the Group. The majority of the Group’s banking facilities are
subject to floating rate and are renewable annually. The Group’s
liquidity risk management includes making available standby
banking facilities and diversifying the funding sources. The Group
regularly reviews the major funding positions to ensure adequate
financial resources are available to meet their respective financial
obligations.

As at 30 September 2022, the Group has available unutilised
banking facilities of approximately HK$2,251.2 million (2021:
HKS$2,301.2 million).

Emperor Capital Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4R 5 W55 4R R MY 5E

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £2022F9830H IEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. The table includes both interest and

principal cash flows.

Liquidity table

30 September 2022
Accounts payable
Other creditors
Lease liabilities

Bonds issued (including bonds
interest)

Short-term bank borrowings
(note)

Repayable
on demand
or less than
3 months

ARERY

ZEARRE
HK$'000
TER

202249H30H

AR 1,653,186
Efth B TR 915
HE&R 3,220

BEES (AERS
M)

BRI ER
(W)

430,000

2,087,321

3 months to
1 year

ZEANE
25

X
HK$'000
F#ER

1 year to
5 years
—E0E
ELF
HK$'000
TERT

1,653,186
915
8,609

430,000
2,092,710

Repayable
on demand Over Over
or less than 3 months to 1 year to
3 months 1 year 5 years
_BREXY —FNE
“EEREE ERE
HK$'000 HKS'000
TERT TERT
30 September 2021 202149H830H
Accounts payable FEFTER TR 1,993,462 - - 1,993,462
Other creditors (excluding bonds — ELfthfE (T 8k %’K( (253
interest) BHRNE) 3,670 - - 3,670
Lease liabilities HE&E 2933 7879 5,130 15942
Bonds issued (including bonds BETES (BEES
interest) ) - 526,250 - 526,250
Short-term bank borrowings (note) ~ f2 ER R 17 fE 3 (41 52) 370,000 - - 370,000
2,370,065 534129 5130 2,909,324
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR MR R M G

For the year ended 30 September 2022 & £20224F9830H IEFE
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

41.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity table (continued)

Note: Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the ‘repayable on demand or less than 3 months’ time band
in the maturity analysis. As at 30 September 2022, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank borrowings
amounted to HKS430,000,000 (2021: HK$370,000,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not believe
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At
that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will
amount to HKS$431,601,000 (2021: HK$370,658,000).

Fair value

Except as detailed in the following table, the executive directors
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values:

40.

THEMRESEBRREE

(&)
I)lbﬁjﬁﬁnr (/rﬁ
HEEETER(E)
Wat: EBEBREREBERZIETER
Thet ABIB DMz B ERS =
BEAREE I BRIAER o 7520224
9H30H » ZERTMERZ KRR
7~ % 48 %8 4 430,000,000 7T (2021
£ :370,000,0008 7T) o £ & B &
EBZHHRR  EFRAHBETLR
RAJBET RIS E R BNEE -
BEEREZSRTERBETRE
,\Tmm FTE Mt B BB EE
BE > AERFBEZHRER
Hj ﬁ,@ ZB 1% %4431,601,0005 7T (2021
4F : 370,658,000 7t,) ©

AT
B TRERESN  FATRTES
R kR B S R 9 T S A A
B 2 B 1A 2 PR A R 5
FEEE:

Carrying
amount* Fair value*
BRmEE* RFE*
HKS’000 HKS$’000
FET FET
As at 30 September 2022 §5202259H30H
Bonds issued BETES - -
As at 30 September 2021 $£202159830H
Bonds issued BE1TES 499,080 501,337
* Both represent the principal portion only. * MEEREXEZES D
This liabilities are classified under Level 2 in the fair value Jtt;—,@\fé BRAFERBENFEASE
hierarchy. 4
RECLASSIFICATION A1, EFHE

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified or restated to
conform to the current year’s presentation.

Emperor Capital Group Limited
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
e E

Year ended 30 September
HEIR3BALFE

2019 2020 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTAER FTER FT#ER

RESULT E$
Revenue A 1,314,270 1,082,854 917,407 676,812 512,824
Profit (loss) before BrigATRF (B518)

taxation 660,048 (230,219)  (679,607)  (541,560) BEMPEIEL:S)
Taxation Mg (110,853) (28,487) (10,140) (34,534) (8,653)
Profit (loss) for the year — EE A (K518) 549,195 (258,706)  (689,747)  (576,094) IMPELWEL)

As at 30 September
79A30H

2019 2020 2021
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
FER FER FER

ASSETS AND BERAR

LIABILITIES
Total assets REE 10,771,667 9887174 10,016,872 6,797,000 [ENLIALE]
Total liabilities mas (5,339,796)  (4,771,038)  (5591,259)  (2,947,358) MEAEEKF))
Net assets EEZFE 5,431,871 5116136 4425613 3,849,642 [ERIIKLY
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